
           

FINAL AGENDA
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
TUESDAY
DECEMBER 3, 2013

  COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

4:00 P.M. AND 6:00 P.M.
 

4:00 P.M. MEETING
 

Individual Items on the 4:00 p.m. meeting agenda may be postponed to the 6:00 p.m.
meeting.

             

1. CALL TO ORDER
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and
to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

 

2. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means .

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER

COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MISSION STATEMENT

MISSION STATEMENT
 

The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life of its citizens.
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS
 

A.   Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Joint Work Session with the Hopi
Tribal Council of October 24, 2013; the Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013; the Combined
Special Meeting/Work Session of November 12, 2013; the Joint City/County Work Session of
November 18, 2013; and the Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013. 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Amend/approve the minutes of the City Council Joint Work Session with the Hopi Tribal

Council of October 24, 2013; the Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013; the Combined
Special Meeting/Work Session of November 12, 2013; the Joint City/County Work
Session of November 18, 2013; and the Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013.

 

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 



5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about an item that is not on the
agenda (or is listed under Possible Future Agenda Items). Comments relating to items that
are on the agenda will be taken at the time that the item is discussed. If you wish to address
the Council at tonight's meeting, please complete a comment card and submit it to the
recording clerk as soon as possible. Your name will be called when it is your turn to speak.
You may address the Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments
made during Public Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow
everyone an opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present
at the meeting and wishing to speak may appoint a representative who may have no more
than fifteen minutes to speak. 

 

6. PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS

None 
 

7. APPOINTMENTS

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and
to the general public that the City Council may vote to go into executive session, which will not
be open to the public, for the purpose of discussing or considering employment, assignment,
appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public
officer, appointee, or employee of any public body...., pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1).

 

A.   Consideration of Appointments:  Airport Commission. 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Make two appointments to terms expiring October 2016.
 

B.   Consideration of Appointments:  Water Commission.
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Make three appointments to terms expiring December 2016.
 

C.   Consideration of Appointments:  Planning and Zoning Commission.
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Make two appointments to terms expiring December 2016.
 

D.   Consideration of Appointments:  Sustainability Commission. 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Make three appointments to terms expiring October 2016.
 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting December 3, 2013                           2 



             

8. LIQUOR LICENSE PUBLIC HEARINGS
 

A.   Consideration and Action on Liquor License Application:  Sucheewa Buschmann,
"Ewa's Thai Cuisine", 110 S. San Francisco St., Series 12 (restaurant), New License.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Hold Public Hearing

The City Council has the option to:
2) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval;
3) Forward the application to the State with no recommendation; or
4) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial based on the
testimony received at the public hearing and/or other factors.

 

B.   Consideration and Action on Liquor License Application:  Cecily Slift-Maniaci, "The
Toasted Owl Cafe", 121 E. Birch Ave., Series 12 (restaurant), New License.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Hold the Public Hearing

The City Council has the option to:
2) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval;
3) Forward the application to the State with no recommendation; or
4) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial based on the
testimony received at the public hearing and/or other factors.

 

9. CONSENT ITEMS
All matters under Consent Agenda are considered by the City Council to be routine and will
be enacted by one motion approving the recommendations listed on the agenda. Unless
otherwise indicated , expenditures approved by Council are budgeted items.

 

A.   Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Third Amendment to Transit Service
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) to provide City Project Management Services to the
Northern Arizona Intergovernmental Public Transportation  Authority (NAIPTA) for the Bus
Facility Expansion Project. 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve the Third Amendment to the Transportation Service Intergovernmental

Agreement with the Northern Arizona Intergovernmental Public Transit Authority
(NAIPTA).

 

B.   Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Flagstaff Metropolitan Planning Organization
(FMPO) Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) technical update 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Award the contract to Kimley Horn Associates in the amount of $110,000 for consulting

services. 

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting December 3, 2013                           3 



             

C.   Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Rio de Flag Flood Control Project Design
Concept Report

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1)Award the Engineering Design Professional Services Contract to Michael Baker Jr.

 Inc., of Phoenix, Arizona in an amount not to exceed $247,285.89, including a
$22,480.00 contract allowance and a 205 calendar-day contract period; and 
2)Approve Change Order Authority to the City Manager in the amount of $22,480.00
(10% of contract amount excluding allowance) for unanticipated or additional items of
work; and
3)Authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents.

 

10. ROUTINE ITEMS
 

A.   Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Wildcat Hill WWTP Temporary Digested
Solids Dewatering System Project

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Authorize award and execution of a contract with Felix Construction for the

installation of the Temporary Digested Solids Dewatering Project at the Wildcat Hill
Wastewater Treatment Plant for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,023,501.
2) Authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents.

 

B.   Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Bundled Drainage Improvement Projects #1
and #2 construction contracts

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Approve the construction contracts with Kinney Construction Services in the amount

of $153,605.81 for Bundled Drainage Improvements Project #1 with 120 calendar days
contract time; and $207,395.89 for Bundled Drainage Improvements Project #2 with 120
calendar days contract time
2) Approve change order authority in the amount of $15,360.58 (10% of contract
amount) for Bundled Drainage Improvements #1; and $20,739.59 (10% of contract
amount) for Bundled Drainage Improvements #2.
3) Authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents

 

RECESS 

6:00 P.M. MEETING

RECONVENE
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting December 3, 2013                           4 



             

11. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER

COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 

 

12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
 

13. CARRY OVER ITEMS FROM THE 4:00 P.M. AGENDA
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS
 

A.   Public Hearing, Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2013-30:  A resolution
amending the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan to change the
land use designation of approximately 4.02 acres of real property located at
600 West University Heights Drive from Parks and Recreation to High Density Residential
(Changing Land Use Designation for Trailside Apartments).

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Hold Public Hearing

2) Read Resolution No. 2013-30 by title only
3) City Clerk reads Resolution No. 2013-30 by title only (if approved above)
4) Adopt Resolution No. 2013-30

 

B.   Public Hearing, Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2013-24:  An ordinance
amending the Flagstaff Zoning Map designation of approximately 4.02 acres of real property
located at 600 West University Heights Drive from "SC", Suburban Commercial, to " HR",
High Density Residential (Amending Zoning Map for Trailside Apartments).

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  At the December 3, 2013 Council Meeting:

1) Hold Public Hearing
2) Read Ordinance No. 2013-24 by title only for the first time
3) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2013-24 by title only for the first time (if approved
above)
At the December 17, 2013 Council Meeting:
4) Read Ordinance No. 2013-24 by title only for the final time
5) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2013-24 by title only for the final time (if approved
above)
6) Adopt Ordinance No. 2013-24

 

C.   Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030: Place Matters – Public Hearing #2

This Public Hearing will not begin before 6:00 p.m.
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Conduct Public Hearing Number 2 on the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030: Place Matters
 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting December 3, 2013                           5 



             

15. REGULAR AGENDA
 

A.   Consideration of Resolution No. 2013-32:  A resolution adopting a Major Amendment to
the Flagstaff Regional Plan for Little America Hotels and Resorts, Inc.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Read Resolution No. 2013-32 by title only.

2) City Clerk reads Resolution No. 2013-32 (if approved above) 
3) Adopt Resolution 2013-32 (adopting a major amendment to the Flagstaff Area
Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan by changing the plan designations of
approximately 495 acres of real property generally located south of East Butler Avenue
and East of Interstate 40.)

 

16. DISCUSSION ITEMS

None
 

17. POSSIBLE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Verbal comments from the public on any item under this section must be given during Public
Participation (#5) near the beginning of the meeting. Written comments may be submitted to
the City Clerk. After discussion and upon agreement of three members of the Council, an
item will be moved to a regularly-scheduled Council meeting.

None
 

18. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS FROM COUNCIL AND STAFF, REQUESTS
FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

 

19. ADJOURNMENT
 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF NOTICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Flagstaff City Hall
on ______________________ , at _________ a.m./p.m. in accordance with the statement filed by the City Council with the
City Clerk.

Dated this _____ day of _________________, 2013.

____________________________________
Elizabeth A. Burke, MMC, City Clerk                                 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting December 3, 2013                           6 



  4. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Elizabeth A. Burke, City Clerk

Date: 11/27/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE
Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Joint Work Session with the Hopi Tribal Council
of October 24, 2013; the Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013; the Combined Special Meeting/Work
Session of November 12, 2013; the Joint City/County Work Session of November 18, 2013; and the
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Amend/approve the minutes of the City Council Joint Work Session with the Hopi Tribal Council of
October 24, 2013; the Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013; the Combined Special Meeting/Work
Session of November 12, 2013; the Joint City/County Work Session of November 18, 2013;
and the Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013.

INFORMATION
Attached are copies of the minutes of the City Council Joint Work Session with the Hopi Tribal Council of
October 24, 2013; the Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013; the Combined Special Meeting/Work
Session of November 12, 2013; the Joint City/County Work Session of November 18, 2013; and the
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013.

Attachments:  10.24.2013.CCJWS.Minutes
11.05.2013.CCRM.Minutes
11.12.2013.CCSMWS.Minutes
11.18.2013.CCJWS.Minutes
11.19.2013.CCRM.Minutes



 

 

MINUTES 
 

JOINT CITY COUNCIL/HOPI TRIBAL COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2013 

HOPI TRIBAL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
KYTKOTSMOVI, ARIZONA 

 
 
1. Welcome /Mix & Mingle 

 
A brief Mix & Mingle began at 4:00 p.m. 
 

 Councilmembers present: Councilmembers absent: 
 
MAYOR NABOURS COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ 
VICE MAYOR EVANS COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS 
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER 
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON 
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 
 
Others present: Members of the Hopi Tribal Council; City Manager Kevin Burke, Deputy 
City Managers Jerene Watson and Josh Copley. 
  

2. Call to Order (Chairman Singoitewa) 
 Introductions of Hopi and City councilmembers 
 Purpose of Meeting (Building Relationships) and Statement 
 
 The meeting was called to order and introductions were made. General discussion was 

held on the forms of government to better understand respective governing roles. 
 
3. Mayor Nabours 
 Statement 
 
4. Joint discussion on form of governments to help better understand respective 

governing roles 
 Closing comments (Chairman Singoitewa and Mayor Nabours) 
 End of Program 
 
5.  Adjournment 
 
 The Flagstaff Joint City Council / Hopi Tribal Work Session of October 24, 2013, 

adjourned at 6:33 p.m. 
 
 
      _______________________________________  
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 



MINUTES 
                  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

            TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2013 
            COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

            211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE 
4:00 P.M. AND 6:00 P.M. 

 
1.       CALL TO ORDER 
  
 Mayor Nabours called the meeting of November 5, 2013, to order at 4:02 p.m. 
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
  

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City 
Council and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote 
to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and 
discussion with the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following 
agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3). 

 
2.     ROLL CALL 
 

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other 
technological means. 

 
Present: 
 
MAYOR NABOURS 
VICE MAYOR EVANS 
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ 
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER  
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS 
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON 
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 

Absent: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Others present: City Manager Kevin Burke; City Attorney Michelle D’Andrea. 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MISSION STATEMENT 

 
MISSION STATEMENT 

 
 The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life of its 
citizens. 

4.       APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
 

A.    Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Special Work Session of 
September 19, 2013; the Regular Meeting of October 1, 2013; the Work Session 
of October 8, 2013; the Regular Meeting of October 15, 2013; and the Combined 
Special Meeting/Special Work Session of October 22, 2013.  

      



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 2 
 

 Councilmember Overton moved to approve [the minutes of the City Council 
Special Work Session of September 19, 2013; the Regular Meeting of 
October 1, 2013; the Work Session of October 8, 2013; the Regular Meeting 
of October 15, 2013; and the Combined Special Meeting/Special Work 
Session of October 22, 2013]; seconded; passed unanimously. 

5.       PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about an item that is not 
on the agenda (or is listed under Possible Future Agenda Items). Comments relating to 
items that are on the agenda will be taken at the time that the item is discussed. If you 
wish to address the Council at tonight's meeting, please complete a comment card and 
submit it to the recording clerk as soon as possible. Your name will be called when it is 
your turn to speak. You may address the Council up to three times throughout the 
meeting, including comments made during Public Participation. Please limit your 
remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone an opportunity to speak. At the 
discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting and wishing to speak 
may appoint a representative who may have no more than fifteen minutes to speak.   

 Terrie Craig, Board Chairman for the Happy Hour Group, said that she spoke with the 
ADA offices and was told it was the City’s choice whether to comply with their 
regulations. She asked that this item be placed on a future Council agenda. 

6.      PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 

 None 

7.       APPOINTMENTS 

 Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City 
Council and to the general public that the City Council may vote to go into executive 
session, which will not be open to the public, for the purpose of discussing or 
considering employment, assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, 
salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public officer, appointee, or employee of any 
public body...., pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1).   

A. Consideration of Appointments:  Transportation Commission. 

Councilmember Brewster moved to appoint Kevin Parkes as a Citizen 
member to the Transportation Commission, term to expire July 2016; 
seconded; passed unanimously. 

Councilmember Brewster moved to appoint Jeffrey Stevenson as a Citizen 
member to the Transportation Commission, term to expire July 2016; 
seconded; passed unanimously 

 
 Councilmember Brewster moved to appoint Bob Kuhn as a School member 

to the Transportation Commission, term to expire November 2016; 
seconded; passed unanimously. 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 3 
 

 Councilmember Brewster moved to appoint Jeff Meilback as a NAIPTA 
member to the Transportation Commission, term to expire November 2016; 
seconded; passed unanimously. 

8.       LIQUOR LICENSE PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. Consideration and Action on Liquor License Application:  Navayogasingam 
Thuraisingam, "Modern Grove", 1020 S. Milton Rd., Suite 102, Series 07 (beer 
and wine bar), Person Transfer and Location Transfer.  

  
 Councilmember Overton moved to open the public hearing; seconded; 

passed unanimously. 
  
 There being no public input, Mayor Nabours moved to close the Public 

Hearing; seconded; passed unanimously. 
  
 Councilmember Brewster moved to forward the application (for Modern 

Grove) to the State with a recommendation for approval; seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

 
9. CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 All matters under Consent Agenda are considered by the City Council to be routine and 

will be enacted by one motion approving the recommendations listed on the agenda. 
Unless otherwise indicated, expenditures approved by Council are budgeted items. 

 
A.      Consideration and Approval of the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 

Program:  Payment standards to exceed 110% of the Section 8 Fair Market 
Rents (FMR) and authorization to submit the request to HUD for final approval. 

 Mayor Nabours said that he sits on the Board of Flagstaff Housing Authority and 
this is for the Section 8 Housing Program received from HUD so they can rent 
private spaces. HUD sets what they think is the fair market rental, but in Flagstaff 
they often find that is too low and a person with a HUD voucher cannot find 
adequate housing. This action allows Flagstaff Housing to ask HUD to allow 
them to exceed the payment standards to 110%. 

 
 Councilmember Barotz moved to approve [an increase of the Section 8 

Housing Choice Voucher Program payment standards to exceed 110% of 
the Section 8 Fair Market Rents for the purpose of preventing financial 
hardship for families, to increase the number of voucher holders who 
become participants upon lease-up and to authorize the submission to 
HUD for final approval]; seconded; passed unanimously. 

 
B. Consideration and Approval of Cooperative Contract: Purchase of black 

cinders utilizing a Coconino County bid with Miller Mining Inc., bid number 2014-
01 for 10,000 tons in the amount of $129,250.  
 
Mayor Nabours asked what the process was for using a County bid and whether 
it would have made a difference if the vendor knew that their bid may be used by 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 4 
 

others. Mr. Compau said that the County let out a bid that includes verbiage to 
allow a cooperative agreement with other agencies to utilize the same bid. He 
said that the fact that the bid documents included that wording would give a 
vendor the indication that others may use the bid as well. 

 Mr. O’Connor said that within the bid they broke out the different areas and the 
amounts that may be needed. He noted that they have been purchasing these 
cinders this same way for some time and this is the same price they have paid in 
the past. 

 
 Councilmember Woodson moved to approve purchase of black cinders for 

ice control utilizing a Coconino County bid with Miller Mining, Inc., bid 
number 2014-01 for 10,000 tons in the amount of $129,250; seconded; 
passed unanimously. 

 
10.      ROUTINE ITEMS  

 A. ITEM MOVED TO 6:00 PM AGENDA 15-B.  
 

B.       Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2013-22:  An ordinance of the 
Council of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, Amending Title 10, Zoning Code, 
Division 10-50.100, Sign Standards, Section 10-50.100.080, Sign Districts of 
Special Designation, of the Flagstaff Zoning Code by adding Section 10-
50.100.080.E, Flagstaff Mall and Marketplace District.   

 
 Mayor Nabours noted that this was second reading of the ordinance. 
 
 Councilmember Woodson moved to read Ordinance No. 2013-22 for the 

final time by title only; seconded; passed unanimously.  
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA, 

AMENDING TITLE 10, ZONING CODE, DIVISION 10-50.100, SIGN 
STANDARDS, SECTION 10-50.100.080, SIGN DISTRICTS OF SPECIAL 
DESIGNATION, OF THE FLAGSTAFF ZONING CODE BY ADDING SECTION 
10-50.100.080.E, FLAGSTAFF MALL AND MARKETPLACE DISTRICT 

 Councilmember Woodson moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2013-22; 
seconded; passed unanimously. 

 
C.      Consideration of  the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)/Joint Project 

Agreement (JPA): 13-0002790-I between the City of Flagstaff (City) and the 
Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) for the FY 2014 Highway Safety 
Improvement Program (HSIP), Design and Installation of Signs.  

 
 Traffic Engineer Jeff Bauman reviewed the project, noting that they were 

receiving $300,000 from the Feds, through Arizona Department of Transportation 
(ADOT), to design and install approximately 2,600 signs in this phase of the 
project. He explained that they start with regulatory signs such as stop signs and 
speed limit signs. They completed an inventory two years ago based on size, 
age, etc. 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 5 
 

 
 Mr. Burke added that there was a federal requirement on some of the reflectivity 

standards and many of the signs put up in the past did not meet those 
requirements. He added that there will probably be two more of these coming. 
Mr. Bauman said that was correct; this was roughly one-third of the signs. 

 
 Mayor Nabours asked what would occur if there were overruns. Mr. Bauman said 

that with this particular project they would stop whenever they run out of money. 
 
 Mayor Nabours moved to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement 

between the City of Flagstaff and Arizona Department of Transportation for 
grant funds in the amount of $300,000; seconded; passed 6-1 with 
Councilmember Oravits casting the dissenting vote. 

 
RECESS  
 
The Regular Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held November 5, 2013, recessed at 
4:25 p.m. 

6:00 P.M. MEETING 

RECONVENE 

     Mayor Nabours reconvened the Regular Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held November 5, 
2013, at 6:02 p.m. 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

 Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City 
Council and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote 
to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and 
discussion with the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following 
agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3). 

 
11.     ROLL CALL 
 

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other 
technological means. 

 
Present: 
 
MAYOR NABOURS 
VICE MAYOR EVANS 
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ 
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER  
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS 
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON 
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 

Absent: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Others present: City Manager Kevin Burke; City Attorney Michelle D’Andrea. 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 6 
 
12.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 Rudy Preston, Flagstaff, reminded Council that Snowbowl has started spraying their 
wastewater on the peaks and had been relayed a story that they were unable to keep 
the kids from eating the snow. 

 Jan McRae, Flagstaff, addressed the Council regarding the private pocket park in 
Boulder Point. She was told at the last HOA meeting that the City staff had 
recommended they match the City hours for parks, 5 a.m. to 10 p.m. or midnight. She 
requested that someone from the City send a letter stating that they were not 
recommending that. 

  
 Carol Kendall, Flagstaff, reminded the Council of its Mission Statement, noting that the 

impacts of initiatives for tax increases must be considered first on the lowest-income 
citizens of the community. 

 
 Katie Nelson, Flagstaff, suggested that the Council be recording radiation in at least one 

point within the City. 
 
 April Smith, Flagstaff, asked for the same protections as Buffalo Park for McMillan Mesa.  
 
 Roxanna Days, Flagstaff, asked that the Council not support the displacement of 

families in the Arrowhead Village, and asked for a moratorium on developments in those 
areas where residents already exist. 

 
13.      CARRY OVER ITEMS FROM THE 4:00 P.M. AGENDA 

 None 

14.      PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

 None  

15.      REGULAR AGENDA  

A.      Consideration and Approval of Grant Agreement and Acceptance of Grant 
Funding:  Fiscal Year 2013 Arizona State Parks Growing Smarter Grant.  

 
 Sustainability Specialist McKenzie Jones reviewed the grant agreement 

regarding the purchase of Observatory Mesa. She said that the minimum bid the 
State would accept is $11.6 million, and with the surveys the overall cost would 
be at least $12.4 million. She said that the State is offering a grant in the amount 
of $6 million to be used for this purchase and in order to complete the acquisition 
the City would grant them a conservation easement across the property. 

 
 Councilmember Overton moved to approve the grant agreement with the 

Arizona State Parks Growing Smarter Grant Program and authorize the 
acceptance of grant funding in the amount of $6,000,000; seconded; 
passed unanimously. 

 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 7 
 

i.   Consideration and Possible Adoption of Ordinance No. 2013-
25:  Authorizing the purchase of approximately 2,251 acres known as 
Observatory Mesa. 

 
 Mr. Burke said that although the minimum bid price is $11.6, this 

ordinance would approve the purchase without a specified amount. 
 
 Councilmember Overton moved to read Ordinance No. 2013-25 by 

title only for the first time; seconded. 
  
 Councilmember Barotz said that this project was an example of the 

community expressing its values and the importance of open space. 
Councilmember Oravits echoed that and recognized that over the past six 
months to a year, between Picture Canyon and Observatory Mesa the 
City has designated around 3,000 acres as Open Space.  

 
 Motion passed unanimously. 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FLAGSTAFF AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION AND PURCHASE 
APPROXIMATELY 2,251 ACRES MOST COMMONLY REFERRED TO 
AS OBSERVATORY MESA 

  
 Mayor Nabours noted that second reading and adoption would occur at 

the November 12, 2013, Special Meeting. 
 
ii.        Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2013-27:  A resolution 

of the Mayor and Council of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona declaring for 
purposes of section 1.150.2 of the Federal Treasury Regulations, official 
intent to be reimbursed in connection with certain capital expenditures 
related to Regional Open Space - Observatory Mesa Land Acquisition. 

 
 Management Services Director Barbara Goodrich stated that this 

resolution would allow the City to use current funds to fulfill the auction 
requirements and then reimburse itself from the bond funds. 

 
 Councilmember Overton moved to read Resolution No. 2013-27 by 

title only; seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA DECLARING FOR PURPOSES OF SECTION 
1.150.2 OF THE FEDERAL TREASURY REGULATIONS, OFFICIAL 
INTENT TO BE REIMBURSED IN CONNECTION WITH CERTAIN 
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES RELATED TO REGIONAL OPEN SPACE - 
OBSERVATORY MESA LAND ACQUISITION. 

 
 
 Councilmember Barotz moved to adopt Resolution No. 2013-27; 

seconded; passed unanimously. 
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 8 
 

B.      *Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2013-21 and Resolution No. 
2013-22 (Zoning Map Amendment):  An Ordinance Adopting That Certain 
Document Entitled “2013 Amendments to Chapter 10-20, Administration, 
Procedures and Enforcement,” By Reference; and Thereby Amending Division 
10-20.50, Amendments to the Zoning Code Text and the Zoning Map, and 
Division 10-80.20, Definition of Specialized Terms, Phrases and Building 
Functions; and a Resolution of the Council of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, 
Declaring as a Public Record That Certain Document Filed with the City Clerk 
and Entitled “2013 Amendments To Chapter 10-20, Administration, Procedures 
And Enforcement.”  

 
 Zoning Code Administrator Roger Eastman stated that they did not have a 

detailed presentation this week, but did want to provide some clarification. He 
said that the action taken last week did not change the zoning requirements, but 
rather the submittal requirement. He said that the other two recommendations of 
the Planning and Zoning Commission were not accepted. 

  
 He said that he wanted everyone to understand that the requirement for impact 

analysis for traffic and utilities has no change to it. Through the concept zoning 
there is sufficient information to be submitted so they know how big it will be. 
Additionally, they are not taking away any opportunities for public participation. 

 
 Mr. Eastman then illustrated the opportunities to comment for the public through 

the process. Councilmember Barotz said that she agreed that the number of 
opportunities to comment do not change, but she would argue that they do not 
have any value. Without meaningful information there is not anything to talk 
about. After question by Mayor Nabours, Mr. Eastman responded that the public 
would be advised of the extent possible within the development. 

 
 Mayor Nabours said that if a property owner requested a change to highway 

commercial (for example) and they said they would not know if it was to be an 
office building or hotel, or retail, etc., the public could object to any of those uses. 
Mr. Eastman said that was correct; however, the City would still need to know 
what the use of the property is. If not, staff is going to make the developer 
provide an impact analysis on the highest use in the zone. That may end up 
costing them more money if they cannot be more specific. 

 
 Mr. Burke said that the developer will be required to identify the most intense use 

of the property and in the absence staff would identify the highest use possible. 
 
 The following individuals then addressed the Council in support of the proposed 

changes: 
 
 Rob Wilson 
 Maury Herman  
 David Monihan 
 Julie Pastrick, representing the Flagstaff Chamber of Commerce 
 Jeff Knorr  
 Bill McCullough 
  



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 9 
 

 The following comments were received: 
 
 The upfront costs required of developers at this time are unnecessary and lead 

to additional costs being passed on to the buyer 
 These changes will still allow for public input but make it easier for local 

investors to develop their property 
 Supported this change at the first meeting and after hearing public comments, 

still supports it 
 These changes won’t affect the large developers, but could help smaller 

developers 
 Public comment is still clearly available 
 Allows developers opportunity to not have to spend as much money up front 
 
 The following individuals addressed the Council in opposition to the proposed 

changes: 
 
 Evin Deschamps 
 Peggy Sheldon-Seurlock 
 Anamaria Ortiz 
 Vance Peterson 
 Karen Pedersen 
 John Gearhart 
 Carol Kendall 
 John Viktora 
 Kathleen Nelson 
 Rudy Preston 
 Sallie Kladnik 
 Norm Wallen 
 Alicyn Gitlin 
 Moran Henn 
 Nat White 
 
 The following comments were received: 
 
 They chose to live here because it is a small town; need to continue providing 

opportunity for public input 
 Anything that has to do with speculative rezoning should be considered 

carefully 
 Need moratorium on development; need protections for Flagstaff residents 
 Imperative that Council continues to provide citizens with opportunity to speak 

on issues 
 Council needs to carefully consider the issue—what if it was next to their 

house? 
 Council is doing an excellent job of providing information, but feels the changes 

being proposed reduce the amount of information available 
 Biggest concern is the rights of citizens who live or own businesses must be 

weighted in zoning decisions 
 Needs to remain a democratic process 
 Need to notify property owners more than 300’ from development 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 10 
 

 Nearly all of the members of the “stakeholders group” were associated with 
development 

 Developers need to have some sense of what they are going to do with their 
property 

 Not in the best interests of Flagstaff 
 Amendments were not unanimously approved at the roundtable 
 There is nothing to demonstrate that the current zoning code is not working 
 Makes it hard to know what questions to ask 
 Weakens the ability of Planning and Zoning Commission to do their job 
 Directly contradicts what previous Council voted for unanimously 
 Compromise – keep the current code for the larger developments, where the 

developer does not know what they want to do, with a trigger mechanism 
 
 A break was taken from 7:15 p.m. to 7:28 p.m. 
 
 A few members of the public attempted to discuss the Arrowhead Trailer Park 

issue, but were unable to since that item was not on the agenda. 
 
 The following individuals addressed the Council in support of the changes: 
 
 Judy Louks 
 Keri Silvyn, representing several landowners 
 Rich Bowen 
 
 The following comments were received: 
 
 How many are familiar with existing Land Use & Transportation Plan? The 

citizens have already voted on land use through the Regional Plan 
 Congratulate Council on an incredible job in adopting design criteria, etc. to 

make sure that any developer or landowner must develop their property 
appropriately, whether or not it has to be rezoned. 

 Was part of the roundtable discussions; there was a thorough review with major 
community groups and it was a good process 

 
 The following individuals addressed the Council in opposition to the proposed 

changes: 
 
 Jeremy Young 
 Jason Bull 
 Sat Best 
 Tish Bogan-Ozmun 
 Brittain Davis 
 Eduardo Tapia 
 Michelle Thomas 
 Connie Kim 
 Pete Traylor 
 Kara Kelty 
 
 The following comments were received: 
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 11 
 

 Is it the Council’s role to reduce public input on issues? 
 Public will not know anything about it until after it is approved 
 Council did not support all recommendations of Planning and Zoning 

Commission, such as the boundary for protecting natural resources 
 Support’s compromise position 
 Natural resources should be considered at the beginning of the property 
 Is an attack on democracy 
 Growth for growth’s sake—ideology of the cancer cell 
 Lack of understanding on both sides—postpone decision—bring community 

members into the conversations 
 This is a way to silence the public input   
 Knowledge is power 
 
 Vice Mayor Evans said that they have referenced the legacy pieces of property 

several times and asked why they could not address them individually rather than 
changing the entire process. 

 
 Councilmember Barotz asked what the value was in having another meeting 

between the developer and surrounding residents after the rezoning occurred. 
 
 A break was held from 8:12 p.m. to 8:27 p.m. 
 
 Mayor Nabours asked Council, due to the time, if they wanted to address the 

Regional Plan later in the evening or reschedule (so they could let those present 
for that discussion to leave if they were not going to discuss). Consensus of 
Council was to move forward and discuss later in the evening. 

 
 Councilmember Brewster said that there have been a lot of comments voiced 

regarding the term “speculative” and she asked staff for a definition. Community 
Development Director Mark Landsiedel said that he was not sure there was one 
sole definition. He believed that many were referenced from one used in the 
planning industry when a Council would give a rezoning with no strings attached 
to the landowner. In this case the amendments show that the landowner will have 
to declare what their land use is and that forms the basis of their impact 
analyses. Additionally, another aspect would be the development agreement, 
signed by the City and developer, which would memorialize and tie down 
conditions that run with the land. 

 
 Vice Mayor Evans asked why they were proposing to change the zoning code to 

address the specific legacy properties. Mr. Landsiedel said that the Council 
convened the roundtables and there were many options explored. The direction 
given to staff is what they have presented to Council. 

  
 Vice Mayor Evans asked why it was a good thing for developers and economic 

development to make these changes. Mr. Burke said that was a value judgment; 
not a staff judgment. 

  
 Mayor Nabours asked if they could make different zoning procedural rules for 

different parcels of property. Ms. D’Andrea responded that if the properties were 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 12 
 

similarly situated they could not have different rules that apply. Vice Mayor Evans 
asked how that related to special districts or overlay districts.  

 
 Vice Mayor Evans asked, if they knew there was a total of 28 properties, if they 

could extend an offer to those individuals to fix their problem. Ms. D’Andrea said 
that she could not give them a yes or no answer without specifics.  

 
 Councilmember Barotz said that she recalled at the stakeholders meetings that 

Nat (White) put forward the idea of corrective rezoning. Ms. D’Andrea said that 
they did discuss addressing all of those consistent with the Regional Plan to 
follow one path, and those not consistent another path, but then there could be 
issues with the Regional Plan being vague enough. 

 
 Councilmember Woodson said that there have been circumstances that put fear 

in people of where they were going with this. He asked Mr. Eastman if what is 
being proposed had an impact on how they deal with open space. Mr. Eastman 
said there would be no major change. They are asking for a concept plan. 

 
 Councilmember Woodson asked if the proposed changes would impact how they 

deal with natural resources. Mr. Eastman said that the natural resources would 
still be indicated, but more in a conceptual way. When they get to the final design 
plan it would still have to be dealt with. 

 
 Councilmember Woodson asked if it impacted dark sky or recycling. Mr. Eastman 

replied that it did not impact either of those issues. With regard to staff time, the 
amount of time would not change, however the allocation of time would. 

  
 Vice Mayor Evans said that there is a lot of confusion about this, especially since 

people have stated things that may or may not be correct. The majority of the 
community does not know. 

 
 Vice Mayor Evans asked how they would deal with someone coming forward with 

a design, but did not know between a hotel or student dorm. Mr. Eastman said 
there is a big difference between zoning for a hotel and student dorm. They 
would require the applicant to make that decision. If it was a hotel there would be 
different impacts than a student dorm. Once that is established the applicant 
would know how many units and then the City would know how big the footprint 
would be and determine how big the building would be. 

 
 Vice Mayor Evans asked what would happen if they went through the process 

and then changed the project. Mr. Eastman said that if it was a similar project, 
such as a hotel but a different hotel, they could move forward, but if they decided 
to go with a student dorm, it would be a different project and would have to go 
back through staff, Planning and Zoning Commission and Council. 

 
 Councilmember Barotz asked, if they went with the most intense usage for a 

development because the developer was not sure, how it would impact the 
adjacent property owners regarding water. Mr. Eastman said that goes back to 
the policy discussions with Brad Hill. When they have property entitled to water 
allocation, it is based on that current zoning. 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 13 
 

 
 Mr. Burke replied that if the adjacent parcel was RR (for example) the water 

allocation would be based on the RR zoning. If they wanted to rezone to a higher 
use, it may impact, but in the terms of their current zoning it would not. 

 
 Councilmember Brewster said that she heard a lot of comments about outside 

developers coming into the area and this process making it easier for them, but it 
would also make the process easier for the local developers. 

  
 Mayor Nabours moved to adopt Resolution No. 2013-22; seconded; passed 

5-2 with Vice Mayor Evans and Councilmember Barotz casting the 
dissenting votes. (Note: Resolution No. 2013-22 was read by title only at the 
October 15, 2013, Council Meeting) 

 
 Mayor Nabours moved to read Ordinance No. 2013-21 for the final time by 

title only; seconded; passed 5-2 with Vice Mayor Evans and 
Councilmember Barotz casting the dissenting votes. 

 
 AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT ENTITLED “2013 

AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 10-20, ADMINISTRATION, PROCEDURES AND 
ENFORCEMENT,” BY REFERENCE; AND THEREBY AMENDING DIVISION 
10-20.50, AMENDMENTS TO THE ZONING CODE TEXT AND THE ZONING 
MAP, AND DIVISION 10-80.20, DEFINITION OF SPECIALIZED TERMS, 
PHRASES AND BUILDING FUNCTION 

 
 Councilmember Barotz said that she would not be voting for the ordinance as 

she still believes it is not in the community’s best interest. She is open to hoping 
that as the process unfolds that some of the problems will not materialize. She 
does believe that the ability of the public to meaningfully weigh in is being 
diminished on a zoning matter, and a rezoning is not an entitlement. She 
believes the entire community has an investment in ensuring that they know what 
happened on a piece of property. 

  
 Vice Mayor Evans said that she would still be voting no. She said that there are 

pieces of property that have major issues, but she believes there are other ways 
to address them. She has a great deal of respect for past Councils, the current 
Council and staff, but historically citizens have had issues with decisions made 
by Council and/or staff. She thinks that a good development that comes forward 
will be as specific as it can be and it will be up to the community to be vigilant to 
make sure they get the development they want. 

 
 Councilmember Brewster said that she believed that the Public Participation, as 

outlined in the amendment, will allow no less participation. 
  
 Mayor Nabours moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2013-21; seconded; passed 

5-2 with Vice Mayor Evans and Councilmember Barotz casting the 
dissenting votes. 

 
 
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 14 
 

 
16.     DISCUSSION ITEMS  

 A. Regional Plan Discussion #10 – Economic Development 
 

 Comprehensive Planning Manager Kimberly Sharp gave a PowerPoint 
presentation that reviewed this section on Economic Development. She noted 
that this was the last section in the Regional Plan, but is what all the other 
elements feed into. She said that the Economic Development Working Group 
met for nine months and they had the most heated discussions. 

 
 Vice Mayor Evans asked that this item be placed on the Parking Lot. She said 

that on page 3, talking about image, she did not see one specific goal that 
addresses tourism, and she believed that should be a separate category in this 
Chapter. Additionally, she did not see anything speaking to economic trades 
between the City and the many sovereign nations that surround them, and she 
believes that needs to be a section. 

 
 She also said there needs to be more information under Flagstaff Unified School 

District and, in reference to Section 12, she would like a list of all goals and 
policies that are linked to the preservation of the resources being leveraged. 

 
 Councilmember Brewster noted that the red-line version submitted by the 

Chamber also addressed the need to have a separate section on tourism. 
 
 Mayor Nabours asked what the purpose was of pages 14.8 and 14.9. Ms. Sharp 

said that a lot of people do look at the Regional Plan and the committee thought 
it was good to celebrate all of the work force development in the community. 

 
  The following individuals spoke on this section of the Regional Plan: 
 
  Michelle Thomas, representing North Country Health Care 
  Angela Horvath, representing the Coconino County Health District 
  Richard Miller 
  Bill McCullough 
  Rob Wilson 
  Mike Sistak, representing the Flagstaff Chamber of Commerce 
  Gaylord Staveley 
  Carol Kendall 
  Rudy Preston 
  Joy Staveley 
 
  The following comments were received: 
 
  Supports this section of the Regional Plan 
  Consider health in any development 

 Chamber has given their list of items 
 Chapter should emphasize that economic development has to be more on the 

private sector 
 Need to encourage private funding 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 15 
 

 One of the City’s strengths is the regional airport 
 Emphasize STEM efforts and other school systems, e.g. charter schools 
 Part of the intended use of this is to introduce those not familiar with Flagstaff; 

would suggest removing verbiage such as “low-impact,” “green jobs” as it could 
turn off people before they get involved 

 Important to include sections about ecotourism and its impact, and that of 
outdoor activities, play in tourism 

. Distinguish between economic activity and economic development, and 
activities that expand and diversify the revenue streams. Have blurred the two 
and missed its mark 

 NAU students linked to economic development is misplaced; eliminate or 
rewrite 

 Keep taxes down; economic development is not a role of government 
 More important to maintain infrastructure 
 Promotion of things like STEM is exactly what is causing the problem of having 

poor people more and more having trouble making ends meet 
 Not enough time spent looking at the way economic development works 
 Common core standards do not require calculus 
 Chapter seems to focus on inventory 
 Less government involvement could better impact economic development 

 
 Councilmember Oravits agreed with adding this discussion to the Parking Lot. He 

agrees with Chamber’s position; tourism needs to be focused on. They need to 
do more with business attraction and retention, but in the private sector as well. 
Also on the Parking Lot he would like to discuss the election date. 

 
 Mayor Nabours agreed that pages 8-9 included too many acronyms. Would also 

like to add to the Parking Lot further discussion of charter schools in area. 
 
 Councilmember Brewster stated that under Higher Education there should be a 

direct reference as to the students’ economic impact on the community. 
 
 Vice Mayor Evans suggested that they also include the private colleges, and 

perhaps get information from Flagstaff Culture Partners on the arts/culture 
tourism impact. 

 
 As permitted at the discretion of the Mayor, Mayor Nabours included a Public 

Participation at the end of the meeting for those requesting to speak. 
 
 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
 Michelle Thomas, Flagstaff, addressed her concerns with the public participation 

process overall on agenda items and questioned how they could vote in favor of 
something when the vast majority of those speaking were against it. 

 
 Angela Horvath, Flagstaff, asked if the City could provide a translator as they are having 

more and more people speak in Spanish and others are unable to understand them. 
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 16 
 
 Karen Pedersen, Flagstaff, said after sitting through the meeting that the public has a 

hard time understanding where and when they need to attend meetings in order to voice 
their concerns on issues. 

 
17.     POSSIBLE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
  
 Verbal comments from the public on any item under this section must be given during 

Public Participation (#5) near the beginning of the meeting. Written comments may be 
submitted to the City Clerk. After discussion and upon agreement of three members of 
the Council, an item will be moved to a regularly-scheduled Council meeting.  

  
 None 

18.    INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS FROM COUNCIL AND STAFF, 
REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

 Councilmember Barotz asked that agenda wording be made clearer and easier for 
citizens to understand. 

 
 Councilmember Barotz asked if staff could ensure that the call-in system would be 

working for the 11/26 meeting as she will be out of town but would like to participate in 
the meeting. 

 
 Councilmember Brewster suggested that the Council have a quick session on how it is 

that they make decisions when it appears the majority of the public is feeling differently. 
Brief discussion ensued, and concern was voiced on how that could occur. 

 
 Vice Mayor Evans said that the City has a major issue with graffiti and it’s clean up, with 

no policy re graffiti on private property. She asked that this item be added to the list for 
Possible Future Agenda Items. Mayor Nabours said that perhaps they could start with a 
CCR from staff, with input from legal as well. 

 
 Vice Mayor Evans said that she would like to see the Happy House issue on a future 

agenda. She asked if they have looked at the option of using the ground floor room for 
meetings. Mr. Burke said that he would reply in an e-mail. 

 
 Vice Mayor Evans requested that they receive a list of proposed developments moving 

forward with potential student housing, and where they are being proposed. 
 
 Vice Mayor Evans asked for clarification on the Boulder Pointe issue and whether staff 

had made a statement to them as the individual had stated. 
 
 Vice Mayor Evans asked for a memo re Sinagua Heights. This was the first time she had 

heard about it and asked where they are at in the process, and where residents can 
make their comments. 

 
 Vice Mayor Evans told Mr. Burke that she knows they have big agendas but she 

believed that if he would add the requested items to the Possible Future Agenda Items 
category and let the Council decide whether to move forward with future discussion, it 
may help him eliminate some of the issues. 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 5, 2013  Page 17 
 
 
 Councilmember Oravits said that the Property Maintenance Ordinance is still listed on 

the City’s website as something being worked on, but he thought that had been put to 
rest. 

 
 Regarding the Budget Parking Lot, Councilmember Oravits requested for the 12/4 

meeting, discussion of possible money for the Fourth Street area, as he thinks they need 
to address pedestrian issues. 

  
 Councilmember Oravits said that he had a citizen report to him that their sales tax check 

sometimes takes six to seven days to process through the bank. 
 
 Councilmember Oravits requested a quick e-mail on the status of the Arrowhead project. 
 
 Mayor Nabours asked that three items be added to the Possible Future Agenda Items 

list: 1) Charter Review Committee; 2) Establishment of an ad hoc committee to address 
overhead power lines in viewsheds; and 3) sale of property at Lonetree and Butler to 
provide funds for affordable housing. 

19.     ADJOURNMENT  

 The Regular Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held November 5, 2013, adjourned at 
10:10 p.m. 

             
      _______________________________________ 
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________  
CITY CLERK 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA)  
                              ss.) 
County of Coconino   ) 
 
I, ELIZABETH A. BURKE, do hereby certify that I am the City Clerk of the City of Flagstaff, 
County of Coconino, State of Arizona, and that the above Minutes are a true and correct 
summary of the meeting of the Council of the City of Flagstaff held November 5, 2013. I further 
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this 3rd day of December, 2013. 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________  
      CITY CLERK 



MINUTES 
 

COMBINED SPECIAL MEETING/ WORK SESSION 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2013 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE 

6:00 P.M. 
 
 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 
 
1. Call to Order. 

 
Mayor Nabours called the Flagstaff Combined Special Meeting/Work Session of 
November 12, 2013, to order at 6:05 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call 
 
Councilmembers present: Councilmembers absent: 

MAYOR NABOURS COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 
VICE MAYOR EVANS 
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ 
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER 
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS 
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON 
 
Others present:  Deputy City Manager Josh Copley; City Attorney Michelle D’Andrea. 

 
3. Consideration and Possible Adoption of Ordinance No. 2013-25: Authorizing the 

purchase of approximately 2,251 acres known as Observatory Mesa. 
 
Councilmember Overton moved to read Ordinance No. 2013-25 for the final time 
by title only; seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION AND PURCHASE OF APPROXIMATELY 2,251 
ACRES MOST COMMONLY REFERRED TO AS OBSERVATORY MESA. 

Councilmember Brewster moved to approve Ordinance No. 2013-25; seconded; 
passed unanimously. 

 
4. Adjournment 
 

The Special Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held on November 12, 2013, adjourned 
at 6:09 p.m.  
 
 



Flagstaff City Council – Combined Special  
Meeting/Work Session of November 12, 2013  Page 2 
 

 
WORK SESSION 

 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Nabours called the Flagstaff Work Session of November 12, 2013, to order at 
6:09 p.m. 
 

2. Public Participation (Non-Agenda Items Only): 
 

Public Participation enables the public to address the council about items that are not on 
the prepared agenda. Anyone wishing to comment at the meeting is asked to fill out a 
speaker card and submit it to the recording clerk. When the item comes up on the 
agenda, your name will be called. You may address the Council up to three times 
throughout the meeting, including comments made during Public Participation. Please 
limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone to have an opportunity to 
speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting and 
wishing to speak may appoint a representative who may have no more than fifteen 
minutes to speak.  
 
Grace Thompson, resident, addressed Council about concerns of discrimination in the 
work place. 

 
3. Preliminary Review of Draft Agenda for the November 19, 2013, City Council 

Meeting*  
 

*Public comment on draft agenda items may be taken under “Review of Draft Agenda 
Items” later in the meeting, at the discretion of the Mayor. Citizens wishing to speak on 
agenda items not specifically called out by the City Council for discussion under the 
second Review section may submit a speaker card for their items of interest to the 
recording clerk. 
 
Mayor Nabours noted that in Section 17 of the agenda, all four items will be removed 
from the agenda and postponed to a later date. Item 14A and 14B will be moved to the 
December 3, 2013 Council meeting. 
 

4. Presentation on the City’s Investments by the PFM Group 
 
Revenue Director Andy Wagemaker introduced Lauren Brant and Paulina Woo from the 
PFM Group who has handled the City’s investment accounts since 2011. Ms. Brant 
provided a PowerPoint presentation of an update on the City’s investments. 
 

 INVESTMENT PROGRAM UPDATE 
 CITY’S INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 
 OVERVIEW OF PFM ASSET MANAGEMENT LLC 
 HOW PFM SUPPORTS THE CITY 
 PFM’S SERVICES TO THE CITY 
 OVERVIEW OF CITY’S CURRENT MANAGED PORTFOLIO 
 SECTOR DIVERSIFICATION 
 VALUE OF PROACTIVE MANAGEMENT 



Flagstaff City Council – Combined Special  
Meeting/Work Session of November 12, 2013  Page 3 
 

 PORTFOLIO MATINTAINS ATTRACTIVE YIELD 
 LOW INTEREST RATE ENVIRONMENT 
 CURRENT INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

Councilmember Barotz asked for the cost of the services PFM provides. Ms. Brant 
stated that the City pays an Assets Under Management fee which equates to less than 
.1% annually. Over the last two years the City has paid $78,000 and PFM has generated 
over $280,000 in earnings. 
 
Mayor Nabours noted that as of December 2011 PFM has eliminated nearly all money 
market accounts. Ms. Brant agreed and clarified that it is just in the managed portfolio; 
the City still retains a liquidity portion of $7-8 million that is managed internally in addition 
to the $56 million PFM manages. 
 
Councilmember Oravits asked if the strategy is to continue short term because it is a 
rising rate environment. Ms. Brant stated that there were securities in the portfolio from 
2011 that were gaining higher rates. When interests trended higher there was an 
advantage to buying US Treasury Security. It is a strategy to stay short to capture the 
higher levels of return as soon as possible. 
 
Mayor Nabours noted that if the City had simply put all its money into treasury bonds it 
would have yielded .43% but with the help of PFM the City has yielded an average .63%. 
 

5. Update on a List of Reported Distressed Properties and/or Buildings 
 
Zoning Code Administrator Roger Eastman provided a PowerPoint presentation on 
distressed properties. The only properties listed in the presentation are those in which 
the City has had contact with the property owners.  
 

 LIST OF REPORTED DISTRESSED PROPERTIES 
 MEETING PURPOSE 
 LIST OF REPORTED DISTRESSED PROPERTIES 

o 39 PROPERTIES ON THE INVENTORY 
 DISTRESSED PROPERTY INVENTORY 
 LOCATIONS OF DISTRESSED PROPERTIES 
 INTERACTIVE DISTRESSED PROPERTY MAP 
 SAMPLE PHOTOGRAPHS 
 1726 N. KUTCH 

o Never been able to make contact with the property owner. 
o  Next step is to hire a landscaper to clear the property, make it safe, and 

eliminate the rat vermin harborage with a lien back to the homeowner for the 
cost. 

 523 S. ERNST STREET 
 1809/1811 N. ARROWHEAD AVENUE 
 23 S AGASSIZ STREET 

o Cultural Resources Phase One study completed as this is a structure of 
historic significance. Currently in the process of completing a Phase Two 
Cultural Resources Study. 
 
 



Flagstaff City Council – Combined Special  
Meeting/Work Session of November 12, 2013  Page 4 
 

 46 S. SAN FRANCISCO 
o Cultural Resources Phase One study just submitted to Heritage Preservation 

Commission for review. 
 251 E. BRANNEN AVENUE 

o A demolition permit has been pulled for the property. 
 EXISTING CITY CODE PROVISIONS 
 1997 ABATEMENT OF DANGEROUS BUILDING CODE 
 TITLE 4 – BUILDING REGULATIONS 
 1997 HOUSING CODE 
 CONCLUSION 

 
Mayor Nabours stated that there are 20 cases where staff action is still needed. 
Mr. Eastman stated that staff is working as hard as they can with the resources 
available. There is just not a whole lot of time in the work program to accommodate them 
all; staff has been dealing with the most extreme first. 
 
Councilmember Oravits stated that he has concerns about the vagueness of the 
definitions in Chapter Three. It is a matter of interpretation and it needs to go through a 
process of clearing up the vagueness. Mr. Eastman responded that the Building Official 
and his staff make the determinations based on experience. The language can be 
clarified when the code comes back for changes and updates. 
 
Councilmember Brewster asked if properties such as the Tourist Home are dealt with 
differently due to the fact they are historical in nature. Mr. Eastman responded that there 
is not a different process but staff includes Karl Eberhard and the Historic Preservation 
Commission for the examination of the Cultural Resources Study. The primary concern 
is the health, safety and welfare of the public; it is an attempt to balance historic 
preservation and historic values with public safety. 
 
Vice Mayor Evans stated that the use of the 1997 codes are good as they are more 
comprehensive than the proposed Property Maintenance Ordinance the community was 
asking for and she is not interested in revisiting the codes because they are allowing 
staff to do the job. The current graffiti codes do not address the cleanup of graffiti on 
private property and it will be important to address this as soon as possible. 
 
Vice Mayor Evans requested an update on the roof collapse at 621 W. Clay. 
 
Code Enforcement Officer Tom Boughner stated that staff is limited on graffiti 
enforcement on private property as there is nothing that states graffiti must be covered 
within a particular time. There are several properties that refuse to let the City cover the 
graffiti damage; there is a need for a tool that allows the City to step in. Dilapidation 
brings more dilapidation so it is important to have a reasonable and encompassing 
ordinance in place. 
 
Councilmember Oravits asked what the tool would be to address graffiti and what 
exactly is needed from Council. Mr. Eastman explained that staff would need to work 
with Mr. Burke on that to identify the resources that will help. 
 
The following individuals addressed Council in regards to distressed properties: 
 



Flagstaff City Council – Combined Special  
Meeting/Work Session of November 12, 2013  Page 5 
 

• David Monihan 
• Derik Spice 

 
Annie Loots, Author of the Cultural Resource Study with SWCA, stated that what started 
out as a job has now become a labor of love. The study is a new regulatory requirement 
and it has been a positive element in that it uncovers a lot of historical information about 
the property and the community. There are truly treasures in town. The City of Flagstaff 
is unable to do an overlay zone; it is those types of local zoning tools that cities have to 
protect properties. Proposition 207 precludes the ability for the City to protect these 
areas with an overlay zone. 
 
A break was held from 7:13 p.m. to 7:27 p.m. 
 
Mayor Nabours asked Council if there is a consensus to ask Mr. Burke to look at adding 
a position to address distressed properties. A majority of Council would like to have 
Mr. Burke look into the possibility of adding a position for this purpose. 
 
Mayor Nabours asked if there was a consensus for staff to look into a graffiti ordinance 
that would allow the City to go onto private property on an emergency basis to remove 
graffiti, understanding that Zoning and Legal will need to weigh in on what is possible. A 
majority of Council requested a CCR on the possibility of private property graffiti 
removal. 
 

6. Regional Plan Discussion #11 – Implementation and Annual Report 
 
Comprehensive Planning Manager Kimberly Sharp provided a PowerPoint presentation 
on the Implementation and Annual Report. 
 

 REGIONAL PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 
 CHAPTER III: DECISION MAKING 
 CHAPTER III: DEVELOPMENT PROCESS 
 PROPOSED REGIONAL PLAN AMENDMENT PROCESSES 

 
Councilmember Oravits asked if the major plan amendments have to be done in 
December or just once per year. Ms. Sharp stated that state statute offers a clear 
process of submittal and it must be approved by December. 
 
Councilmember Barotz inquired about the difference between a major and minor plan 
amendment in the Open Space category and why one column includes purchase but the 
other does not. Ms. Sharp explained that purchase means land that is purchased, 
deeded, or restricted as open space. Councilmember Barotz stated that the language 
should be clearer because it is confusing. It was requested that this item be placed on 
the parking lot for further examination. 
 
Mayor Nabours stated that a major amendment would be to change the category of 
zoning. He asked how the categories came to be decided. Ms. Sharp stated that 
depending on one’s location, map 20 or 19 would be used to determine current zoning. 
The public indicated that they did not want another zoning map but instead something 
more broad and flexible. What was really important to the community was to maintain 
the character. The result was a more broad designation of areas. The community wants 



Flagstaff City Council – Combined Special  
Meeting/Work Session of November 12, 2013  Page 6 
 

to compromise and they want choices. There are very strategic places for different areas 
to grow. 
 
Ms. Sharp went on to explain that Appendix D is a list of ideas of metrics that can be 
used for updates and measurements. Many of these items came out of the public input 
sessions. Councilmember Oravits requested that a more in depth appendix discussion 
be added to the parking lot. 
 
Mayor Nabours stated that he could see a possible annual report that is drafted each 
year that brings forward issues and progress; it may not need to be as detailed as 
Appendix D is suggesting. Councilmember Overton noted that the appendix seems 
somewhat bureaucratic and does not believe that some of the things belong in the 
report. The annual reports from the Water and Sustainability Divisions are very 
informative and address many of the items in the appendix; a Regional Plan report 
would be redundant. 
 
Vice Mayor Evans stated that it is important to know how the Regional Plan is doing. If 
the information is already contained in other reports, a summary can be put together that 
would be accessible online to the public. The community would benefit from an annual 
update. 
 
The following individuals addressed Council in regards to the Regional Plan: 
 

• Angela Horvath 
• Michelle Thomas 
• Tish Bogan-Osmun 
• Bill McCullough 

 
Comments received include: 
 

• Add a requirement of questions about Flagstaff’s health in the metrics. 
• If at the time of the annual report there is new credible information about natural 

resources, they should be added to the significant resources map. 
• The Regional Plan should not be a policy document. 
• The amendment process requires close evaluation. 

 
7. Review of Draft Agenda Items for the November 19, 2013, City Council Meeting.* 
 

* Public comment on draft agenda items will be taken at this time, at the discretion of the 
Mayor. 
 
Mr. Copley indicated that there is a robust agenda for December 3rd; in managing the 
time it is requested to open the public hearing at a 5:00 special meeting.  
 
Mayor Nabours stated that public input will be taken on November 19th for the Trailside 
development with the official public hearing and Council action being held on 
December 3rd. Vice Mayor Evans noted that according to the Rules of Procedure, public 
hearings are to be held at 6:00 p.m. She expressed concern about moving the public 
hearing to 5:00 p.m. that it may not allow for some of the public to attend. 
 



Flagstaff City Council – Combined Special  
Meeting/Work Session of November 12, 2013  Page 7 
 
8. Public Participation 

 
Angela Horvath asked Council if decisions will be made and public comments taken at 
the meeting on December 10th. Mayor Nabours stated that the Board of Supervisors will 
be giving the City Council their recommendations of the Regional Plan and the public will 
have the opportunity to address the Council. 
 
 

9. Informational Items To/From Mayor, Council, and City Manager. 
 
Councilmember Brewster noted that there was a meeting today with the Board of 
Supervisors and State Legislators to discuss concerns and priorities for the coming year. 
 
Councilmember Overton announced that it is Red Ribbon Week and his oldest child, 
Madison, was selected to appear on this year’s poster. This weekend, anyone with a red 
ribbon will receive free entrance at the game at NAU. 
 
Vice Mayor Evans reported that she also attended the meeting today with the Board of 
Supervisors and State Representatives. 
 
Vice Mayor Evans requested information on the total cost the City incurred with regards 
to the Regional Plan over the last four years. 
 

10. Adjournment 
 

The Flagstaff City Council Work Session of November 12, 2013, adjourned at 8:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
             

     ________________________________________  
      MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________  
CITY CLERK 



MINUTES 
 

JOINT CITY/COUNTY WORK SESSION 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2013 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE 

4:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Mayor Nabours called the Joint City/County Work Session of November 18, 2013, to 
order at 4:02 p.m. 
 

Notice of Option to Recess Into Executive Session 
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City 
Council and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote 
to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and 
discussion with the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following 
agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3). 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present: Councilmembers absent: 
 
Flagstaff City Council 
MAYOR NABOURS 
VICE MAYOR EVANS 
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ 
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER 
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS 
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON 
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 
 
Coconino County Board of Supervisors 
CHAIRMAN RYAN SUPERVISOR FOWLER 
SUPERVISOR ARCHULETA 
SUPERVISOR BABBOTT 
SUPERVISOR METZGER 
 
Others present: City Manager Kevin Burke, County Manager Cynthia Seelhammer, City 
Attorney Michelle D’Andrea, County Attorney Bill Ring. 
 

3. Public Participation (Non-Agenda Items Only): 
 
Public Participation enables the public to address the council about items that are not on 
the prepared agenda. Public Participation appears on the agenda twice, at the beginning 
and at the end of the work session. You may speak at one or the other, but not both.  
Anyone wishing to comment at the meeting is asked to fill out a speaker card and submit 
it to the recording clerk. When the item comes up on the agenda, your name will be 



Flagstaff Joint City Council / County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session of November 18, 2013 Page 2 
 

called. You may address the Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including 
comments made during Public Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes 
per item to allow everyone to have an opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the 
Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting and wishing to speak may appoint a 
representative who may have no more than fifteen minutes to speak. 
 
None. 
 

4. Project Updates. 
 
Ft. Tuthill Entrance 
 
Coconino County Parks Construction Manager Jeff Stein offered a PowerPoint 
Presentation on the Ft. Tuthill Entrance. 
 

 OVERVIEW 
 PROPOSED ALIGNMENTS 
 COUNTY, CITY, AND ADOT MAINTENANCE AREAS 
 TREE REMOVAL 
 COCONINO COUNTY COMMUNITY SERVICES-FUEL WOOD PROGRAM 
 FLOOD MITIGATION PROJECTS 
 SHADE STRUCTURES AT ROGERS LAKE COUNTY NATURAL AREA 
 GRUBBING & ROUGH GRADING 
 UNISOURCE GAS LINE RELOCATION 
 APS POWER LINE RELOCATION 
 PROJECT STATUS 

 
Mr. Stein explained that there are two roundabouts on the east and west alignments. The 
preliminary phasing is going out to bid in early December. The northbound configuration 
off of I-17 remains the same. Supervisor Metzger asked how many lanes there will be in 
each of the roundabouts and what is in the center. Mr. Stein offered that each 
roundabout will be one lane and a hydro seeded interior. Supervisor Metzger asked how 
pedestrians and bicyclists will be accommodated. Mr. Stein stated that there are 
sidewalks and pedestrian lighting available at each of the roundabouts. 
 
Councilmember Oravits asked when the estimated completion date is. Mr. Stein stated 
that the project was estimated at 21 months but most of the major construction work will 
be done in 2014. 
 
Chairman Ryan noted that the original Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) 
design was a diamond shape; the roundabouts have reduced the land requirement which 
is a good thing.  

 
89A Closure 

 
Coconino County Public Works Manager Andy Bertelsen stated that design is underway 
for the project and ADOT is hopeful to begin construction by next summer and they 
predict a year-long construction period. BIA route N-20 has been paved and is useable 
and currently being used as an alternate route to Page from Flagstaff. 
 
 



Flagstaff Joint City Council / County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session of November 18, 2013 Page 3 
 

Mr. Bertelsen also reported that ADOT is looking at a hard closure of 89A for a pavement 
preservation and rock scaling project. The closure will be from the overlook of Oak Creek 
Canyon to approximately the pump house wash (or the bottom of the switchbacks) from 
the day after Memorial Day weekend through July 2, 2014. 
 
Transportation District/Sales Tax Question Update 
 
Coconino County Manager Cynthia Seelhammer reported that the County is facing a 
significant shortfall in revenue. There has not been an increase in the gas tax for over 20 
years and the State has shifted the gas tax away from the counties and cities over the 
last five years. Road maintenance issues have had to be funded at a lower level. Over 
the past five years, the County has reduced costs in a number of areas in an attempt to 
set aside funds for road maintenance. It is estimated that if road maintenance were 
performed now there would have to be cuts of 35-40 percent and there would be no 
more capital improvements or paving maintenance. A Citizen Advisory Committee was 
formed for transportation; it consists of approximately 33 different individuals. The 
committee is very engaged and they are asking great questions; it is hoped that this 
group will generate some possible options for solving the transportation issues. One 
option that is being looked at is a possible sales tax increase that would help fund the 
transportation improvements that are needed. 
 
Mayor Nabours asked if the proposed sales tax would apply across Coconino County 
and include the City of Flagstaff and if the City would get a portion of the sales tax based 
on population for road maintenance. Ms. Seelhammer indicated that no determinations 
have been made as of yet. All of that information would be well discussed and decided 
by the Board of Supervisors. 
 
Councilmember Brewster asked if the sales tax proceeds would assist with County 
snowplowing. Ms. Seelhammer responded that snowplowing is a separate issue and 
would not likely be included. 
 
Mayor Nabours asked if this tax would be for structural issues as opposed to 
maintenance issues. Coconino County Deputy Public Works Director Lucinda Andreani 
offered that the revenue would be available to cover operations, maintenance, and some 
capital; however, the first priority is maintenance and operations. If there is funding 
beyond maintenance and operations that would go to capital projects. 
 
Councilmember Woodson stated that under state statute counties have the ability to 
impose a half cent tax. Ms. Andreani stated that the County does have that authority but 
it must be approved by the voters first. 
 
Mr. Burke stated that the City situation is almost identical to the County’s. A Council goal 
of maintaining the existing infrastructure was established some time ago. Staff has done 
an inventory of the roads and what the conditions currently are and what it would take to 
bring them up to standard. To get existing streets up to standard it would take $50 million 
and $4 million ongoing.  
 
The City was down to less than a million dollars for ongoing street maintenance. The City 
started looking at different ideas and the option of a possible sales tax is being 
discussed. It has not been settled on and the City Council has directed the Manager to 
host a Citizen Advisory Committee for transportation which would be in addition to the 



Flagstaff Joint City Council / County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session of November 18, 2013 Page 4 
 

Transportation Commission. The City has a little more time because a sales tax election 
for the City can only be held at a general election which would be November of even 
years. 
 
Additional expenses are being researched as staff is analyzing utility infrastructure to 
identify water, sewer and stormwater lines that may need to be replaced under those 
streets that are in need of improvement. The idea is not to improve the street only to tear 
them out to do utility improvements. Additionally, sidewalks are another issue. The City is 
supposed to repair curb and gutter as well as make them ADA compliant when doing 
street improvements. This is another additional expense. There have also been inquiries 
to improve the bicycle safety component.  
 
The City is in the process of conducting its Citizen survey and a question is included 
about a transportation sales tax. Staff anticipates having those results soon. 
 

5. Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030: Place Matters – Public Hearing #1. 
 
Mayor Nabours opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Planning Director Jim Cronk gave a brief history of the Regional Plan process beginning 
in 2008 with the appointment of a Citizen Advisory Committee made up of 2/3 City 
residents and 1/3 County residents. The committee met from 2009-2013 with many 
meetings and open houses, public meetings and study groups. The committee worked 
for about four years to develop a rough draft that was sent out to the public for input. 
There were over 700 comments received and what is before the Council is the public 
hearing draft which incorporated a lot of changes from the public. 
 
The following members of the Citizen Advisory Committee addressed the Council and 
Board of Supervisors: 
 

• Jerome Naleski 
• Nat White 
• Carol Bousquet 
• Ben Anderson 

 
Comments received included: 
 

• The CAC came to a lot of consensus on many of the items. 
• The last three to four chapters were rushed. 
• The Regional Plan is a great historic document. 
• The concepts, ideas and direction are good and are a representation of the 

community. 
• With regard to compact development, the group discussed the problem of 

spreading out quicker than filling in. The idea is that it costs all taxpayers to grow 
out; the economics is to be as compact as possible and utilize what is existing. 

• The compression of the last few chapters was in part, due to meeting fatigue and 
it was important to put pressure on the group to complete. The committee had 
initially started with the Land Use chapter at the beginning and it has gone full 
circle to revisit again at the end. Things changed over the years and it brought a 
different lens on how to look at land use. 



Flagstaff Joint City Council / County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session of November 18, 2013 Page 5 
 

• The Regional Plan process is probably one of the most democratic processes 
that Flagstaff has ever seen. 

 
Planning and Engineering Section Manager of the Arizona State Land Department Mark 
Edelman addressed the City Council and Board of Supervisors to comment on the 
Regional Plan. While overall in support of the plan, there is one small disparity in Section 
30 which is State land located between Continental Country Club and the Coconino 
National Forest. The Citizen Advisory Committee chose to designate Section 30 as-is 
and to leave it outside the City’s Urban Growth Boundary while designating Section 20 
as Suburban-Future. It is unknown if Section 20 can accommodate the planned densities 
and activity center. The State Land Department is requesting that Section 30 be 
assigned as Suburban-Future and the Urban Growth Boundary be extended to include 
the section. 
 
Mayor Nabours asked what would happen if the plan goes before the voters and fails 
and if there are any sanctions from the State for not updating the plan as required. 
Ms. D’Andrea explained that should the plan fail with the voters, the Regional Plan that 
is currently in place would continue to apply. Additionally, there is no specific remedy 
listed in the statutes should the plan go without update. 
 
Supervisor Metzger stated that if the plan fails the County Comprehensive Plan would 
cover the balance of the County. 
 
The following individuals addressed the Council and Board of Supervisors: 
 

• Tish Bogan-Ozman 
• Charlotte Welch 
• Richard Miller 
• Marilyn Weissman 
• Gabor Kovacs 
• Michelle Thomas 
• Sat Best 

 
Comments received included: 
 

• New and credible information on natural and cultural resources should be added 
to the maps online when they become available. 

• Land use and redevelopment versus historic preservation is a concern. 
• This is a well written and well documented plan. 
• This is a vision for the City, it is not a directive. It is a chance for Flagstaff to 

come together and talk about where the City wants to go in the future. 
• Supportive of compact development because of the affordability, the closeness to 

public transportation and commercial services, limiting the carbon footprint and 
preserving open space. 

• Do not expand the urban growth boundary as there is plenty of land to build on 
without further expansion. 

• More work is needed on the maps. 
• The plan should promote the maintaining of the quality of life and health of all 

residents. 
• Traffic volume will increase and it will need to be dealt with. 



Flagstaff Joint City Council / County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session of November 18, 2013 Page 6 
 

 
A break was held from 5:32 p.m. through 6:03 p.m. 
 
Mayor Nabours closed the Public Hearing. 
 

6. Public Participation 
 
Gabor Kofax, resident, addressed the City Council and Board of Supervisors with a 
request that all public meetings begin with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

7. Informational Items To/From Chairman, Supervisors and County Manager/Mayor, 
Council and City Manager. 
 
Supervisor Babbott stated that having a diverse group of people on the Citizen Advisory 
Committee is good; not everyone walked away 100% satisfied but the process of 
compromise was upheld. 
 
He said both agencies are suffering with the same challenges in transportation and 
maintenance. Partnerships for improvements are going to be necessary moving forward, 
there needs to be strong collaboration between the City and County.  
 
The City Council and the Board of Supervisors offered thanks to all who have put work in 
to the Regional Plan and all those who have given input. 
 
Supervisor Archuleta stated that the Board is looking forward to working with the City on 
the APS substation. The area is the gateway to the City and Fort Tuthill so it is important 
that the County and City work together to develop a design that is conducive to Flagstaff 
and the community. 
 
Councilmember Woodson stated that he and Supervisor Ryan belong to the Rural 
Transportation Advisory Council; their goal is to make sure that for rural Arizona funding 
is equitable to what Phoenix and Tucson get. The big goal is to restore funding, and 
possibly increase funding. 
 

8. Adjournment 
 
The Flagstaff Joint City Council/County Board of Supervisors Work Session of 
November 18, 2013, adjourned at 6:33 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
      _______________________________________  
      MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 



MINUTES 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 2013 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE 
6:00 P.M. 

 
 

*ALL ITEMS ON THE 4:00 P.M. PORTION OF THE MEETING HAVE BEEN MOVED TO THE 
6:00 P.M. PORTION. THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY COUNCIL OF 
NOVEMBER 19, 2013, WILL BEGIN AT 6:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Please see 6:00 p.m. minutes below. 
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City 
Council and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council 
may vote to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for 
legal advice and discussion with the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item 
listed on the following agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3). 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by 

other technological means. 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MISSION STATEMENT 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 

The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life of 
its citizens. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 A.  Consideration and Approval of Minutes 
 
 City Council Special Work Session of October 28, 2013; the Work Session of 

October 29, 2013; the Special Meeting (Executive Session) of October 29, 2013; 
the Special Meeting (Executive Session) of November 5, 2013; and the Special 
Meeting (Executive Session) of November 12, 2013 . * MOVED TO THE 
6:00 P.M. PORTION OF THE MEETING 

 
 
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013  Page 2 
 
5.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
 Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about an item that 

is not on the agenda (or is listed under Possible Future Agenda Items). Comments 
relating to items that are on the agenda will be taken at the time that the item is 
discussed. If you wish to address the Council at tonight's meeting, please 
complete a comment card and submit it to the recording clerk as soon as 
possible. Your name will be called when it is your turn to speak. You may address 
the Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments made 
during Public Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to 
allow everyone an opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more 
persons present at the meeting and wishing to speak may appoint a 
representative who may have no more than fifteen minutes to speak.   

 
6. PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
 None 
 
7. APPOINTMENTS 
 
 Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City 

Council and to the general public that the City Council may vote to go into 
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for the purpose of 
discussing or considering employment, assignment, appointment, promotion, 
demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public officer, 
appointee, or employee of any public body...., pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1). 

 
None. 
 

8. LIQUOR LICENSE PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
None. 
 

9. CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 All matters under Consent Agenda are considered by the City Council to be 

routine and will be enacted by one motion approving the recommendations listed 
on the agenda. Unless otherwise indicated, expenditures approved by Council are 
budgeted items. 
 
None. 
 

10. ROUTINE ITEMS  
  

A.  Consideration and Approval of (A) Settlement Agreement; (B) Authorization 
for Litigation: (A) Vedura Elevation, LLC (Elevation); (B) Campus Crest at 
Flagstaff II, LLC (The Grove Phase I) and  FSL St. Francis Villas, LP (Flagstaff 
Senior Meadows) *MOVED TO THE 6:00 P.M. PORTION OF THE MEETING 

 
RECESS 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013  Page 3 
 

 
6:00 P.M. MEETING 

 
RECONVENE 
 
The 4:00 p.m. portion of this meeting was cancelled, with items moving to the 6:00 p.m. portion. 
Mayor Nabours called the Regular Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council of November 19, 2013, 
to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 

             NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City 
Council and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council 
may vote to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for 
legal advice and discussion with the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item 
listed on the following agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3). 
 

11. ROLL CALL 
 
NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other 
technological means. 
 
Present: 
 
MAYOR NABOURS 
VICE MAYOR EVANS 
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ 
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER  
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS 
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON 
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 

Absent: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Others present: City Manager Kevin Burke; City Attorney Michelle D’Andrea. 
 

12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Jessie Dominguez, resident, addressed Council about concerns with the Arrowhead 
Mobile Home Park. 
 
Rudy Preston, resident, addressed Council about the new zone change process.  
 

13. CARRY OVER ITEMS FROM THE 4:00 P.M. AGENDA 
 
A. *Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Special Work Session of 

October 28, 2013; the Work Session of October 29, 2013; the Special Meeting 
(Executive Session) of October 29, 2013; the Special Meeting (Executive 
Session) of November 5, 2013; and the Special Meeting (Executive Session) of 
November 12, 2013.  *MOVED FROM THE 4:00 P.M. PORTION OF THE 
MEETING. 

 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013  Page 4 
 

Councilmember Oravits moved to approve [the minutes of the City Council 
Special Work Session of October 28, 2013; the Work Session of October 29, 
2013; the Special Meeting (Executive Session) of October 29, 2013; the 
Special Meeting (Executive Session) of November 5, 2013; and the Special 
Meeting (Executive Session) of November 12, 2013]; seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

 
B. *Consideration and Approval of (A) Settlement Agreement; (B) 

Authorization for Litigation: (A) Vedura Elevation, LLC (Elevation); (B) Campus 
Crest at Flagstaff II, LLC (The Grove Phase I) and FSL St. Francis Villas, LP 
(Flagstaff Senior Meadows) *MOVED FROM THE 4:00 P.M. PORTION OF THE 
MEETING 
 
Mayor Nabors explained that this item is in regards to two developments where 
there were discrepancies in impact fees. The fees required to be paid were not 
paid due to an error in the billing from the City which was later rectified. 
 
Councilmember Overton moved to approve the settlement agreement with 
Vedura Elevation, LLC and authorize litigation to collect outstanding 
balance of sewer capacity fees owed for the Grove Phase I and Flagstaff 
Senior Meadows; seconded; passed unanimously. 

 
14. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

 
A. Public Hearing: Consideration of a Major Amendment to the Flagstaff Regional 

Plan for Little America Hotels and Resorts, Inc. 
 
Zoning Code Administrator Roger Eastman provided a PowerPoint presentation. 
 

 LITTLE AMERICA HOTELS & RESORTS INC. MAJOR PLAN 
AMENDMENT APPLICATION 

 EXISTING PROPERTY MAPS 
 OVERVIEW OF THE PROJECT 
 CURRENT REGIONAL PLAN DESIGNATION 
 REGIONAL PLAN AMENDMENT REVIEW STEPS 
 REGIONAL PLAN AMENDMENT 
 ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION 
 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL RECOMMENDED BY THE P&Z 

COMMISSION 
 NEXT STEPS 

 
Mr. Eastman introduced Jeff Zimmerman with Design Workshops, who provided 
a PowerPoint presentation of the Little America design. 
 

 LITTLE AMERICA HOTELS & RESORTS 
 VISION 
 ANALYSIS MAPS 
 REGIONAL MAP 
 EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 SLOPE ANALYSIS 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013  Page 5 
 

 CONCEPT PLAN 
 OPEN SPACE FRAMEWORK 
 PARKS 
 TRAILS 
 WETLAND RESTORATION 
 RIO DE FLAG: RESTORATION 
 PROPOSED CHANNEL CROSS SECTION 
 GOLF 
 GOALS FOR LITTLE AMERICA GOLF 
 WINTER ACTIVITIES 
 COMMERCIAL 
 RESORT 
 NORTHERN RESIDENTIAL 
 RESORT RESIDENTIAL 
 SOUTHERN RESIDENTIAL 
 ACCESS: EXISTING ROADS 
 ACCESS: LITTLE AMERICA 
 ACCESS: LITTLE AMERICA AND CANYON DEL RIO 
 ACCESS: CONNECTIONS 
 IMPROVED ENTRANCE 
 UTILITIES: EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE 
 CONCEPT SUMMARY 
 COMMUNITY BENEFITS 

 
Councilmember Brewster asked when construction is planned to begin if 
approved and how long it will take for completed development. Mr. Zimmerman 
responded that there is currently a 12 year development cycle planned, the 
construction may not start for three to four years. If the amendment is approved 
they can begin the next steps and at that point be clearer in a start date and 
construction duration. 
 
Utilities Engineering Manager Ryan Roberts continued the presentation with 
Utility information. 
 

 GIS WATER MAP 
 
Mr. Roberts explained that the results of the utility analysis concluded that the 24 
inch line from Butler would need a secondary line into the development. This 
would actually help with demand in the area but also cause a challenge which is 
why the City is requiring the water line from the south as well. Having 
connectivity is important; there has been a good attempt to tie into the 
neighboring community of Canyon Del Rio. In addition to the loop there will be a 
well, pump house and an 800,000 gallon storage tank. 
 

 GIS SEWER MAP 
 GIS RECLAIMED WATER MAP 

 
The existing reclaimed line is adequate to serve the six parks and golf course. 
The issue is with the water resources. The issue is more of the constraints. There 
are some bottlenecks that keep the water from getting from Wildcat to the east 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013  Page 6 
 

side of the City. There is an 8-inch bottleneck at Sinagua High School that will 
need to be replaced, an upsized water line will need to be included and there will 
need to be a pump house to alleviate the high pressure. 
 

 RECLAIMED WATER: REQUIREMENTS & SUPPLY 
 
Little America has requested .61 million gallons per day and the City can offer .56 
million gallons per day. 
 
Councilmember Overton asked about the location of the pump house and if there 
are requirements on where it can be located. Mr. Roberts explained that it can be 
located anywhere but it is likely that it will be located on the Little America 
property as they already own that land. 
 
Councilmember Barotz noted that it is too early to talk about consumption or 
promise of supply because there are too many unknowns. Once Little America 
applies for reclaimed water the City can say what is available. Mr. Roberts stated 
that the City is not committing the reclaimed water at this time. The City will 
commit on the sewer side when they plat. Right now staff can tell them what is 
available at this time but that is subject to change over time. 
 
Councilmember Barotz asked what the City’s summertime situation has been 
historically with regard to supply. Mr. Roberts explained that during summertime 
usage there is more demand than supply. This summer potable water had to be 
used to subsidize the reclaimed water. Councilmember Barotz asked if the 
improvements will alleviate the problem based on current users. Utilities Director 
Brad Hill stated that the peak week for the last several summers have been 
problematic. The summer of 2013 was an anomaly as it lasted longer than a 
typical summer because of the problems with Wildcat. With capital improvements 
the City will be able to add additional supplies which will solve some of the peak 
week issues with existing customers. 
 
Mr. Burke offered that there are two issues, there are times with ample supply 
but the City is not able to distribute due to bottlenecks in the system. The other 
issue is limited supply. The issue is being resolved in that ADEQ is allowing class 
A water to be distributed and infrastructure is being put in place to return to A+ 
water. Mr. Hill added that until the infrastructure problems are solved the same 
issues will continue for summers to come. 
 
Vice Mayor Evans inquired about who would be covering the cost of the 
improvements to fix the distribution issues. Mr. Roberts explained that the City 
will be submitting the project through the Capital Improvement Project program; if 
Little America needs for it to be done on a faster track then they would need to 
do the improvements. The City has a plan to fix it over a period of time. 
 
Mayor Nabours opened the Public Hearing. 
 
The following individuals spoke in favor of the Little America development and 
plan amendment: 
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013  Page 7 
 

• Mike Loven 
• David Monihan 
• Mike Sistak 
• Kent Wick 
• Joy Staveley 
• Richard Bowen 

 
The following individuals spoke against the Little America development and plan 
amendment: 
 

• Kathleen Nelson 
• Rudy Preston 
• Moran Henn 
• Liz Baldwin 
• Wilma Ennenga 

 
A break was held from 7:17 p.m. through 7:28 p.m. 
 
Mayor Nabours closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilmember Barotz stated that if the golf course is considered public it needs 
to be priced accordingly so as not to price out most of the public. Mr. Zimmerman 
stated that as a resort operator there will be reserved tee times for conference 
goers but that will not be all the tee times. In terms of cost, a price has not yet 
been set. 
 
Councilmember Barotz also asked for the Council to consider a condition to keep 
the golf course open should the resort close. The golf course is being identified 
as open space so it should remain that way should the resort close. 
 
Vice Mayor Evans asked for additional information about the impact fees 
associated with the project. She would like to better understand how the impact 
fees can help offset some of the capital projects and assist with the treatment 
plant issues. She also requested additional information about the traffic access at 
the southern end of the development as well as flooding information and how it 
relates with Canyon Del Rio and Little America. Mr. Eastman explained that the 
information requested will be seen at the rezone level should the project be 
approved for the plan amendment. There are two different levels of impact 
analysis but they vary depending on the current state. At the plan amendment 
phase a general analysis is done and at the rezone there is a more detailed 
analysis. 
 
Vice Mayor Evans asked if it is possible for Little America to be denied reclaimed 
water if and when they apply. Mr. Hill stated that it is indeed possible for them to 
be denied reclaimed water. As of December 2012 Utilities has not approved any 
additional reclaimed water agreements until the infrastructure issues are 
resolved. 
 
Councilmember Barotz asked for Mr. Zimmerman to explain the makeup of the 
500 jobs that are anticipated to be created with the development. 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013  Page 8 
 

Mr. Zimmerman stated that the number is after the build out of the project, it 
would be hotel workers, clubhouse workers and retail workers, and it is not 
referring to the construction jobs that will be used in the development. 
Councilmember Barotz followed up with an inquiry on the anticipated number of 
jobs created outside of Little America. Terry Harrington with Design Workshop 
stated that there is an anticipated 774 secondary jobs outside of the Little 
America property that are being created. 
 
Councilmember Barotz asked how the uncertainty of the reclaimed water plays 
into the project should it not be available. Mr. Zimmerman explained that he is 
not sure. If the plan amendment is approved the next step would be to look at the 
design more in depth for the rezone request. There is not an answer to that now 
but it will be something that is definitely considered as the process moves 
forward. 
 
Councilmember Overton asked what the current zoning and land use designation 
is for the property and what the owner could do should they wish to no longer 
move forward with the amendment process and rezoning. Mr. Eastman stated 
that the current zoning is estate residential and highway commercial. It would be 
a subdivision plat for the residential area with one unit per acre and site plan 
review for the commercial portion. Councilmember Overton indicated that the 
proposal before them currently is preferable to the existing designations as it 
allows for better land use. 

 
15. REGULAR AGENDA 
 

A. Consideration and Approval of Agreement: Consideration of Amendment Two 
to the Fourth Amended and Restated Development Agreement and Waiver 
("Amendment") between the City of Flagstaff and Flagstaff Aspen Place, LLC, and 
Alliance Bank of Arizona, for Aspen Place at the Sawmill Commercial Parcels. 
 
Councilmember Woodson declared a conflict and left the dais at 8:13 p.m. 
 
Current Planning Manager Mark Sawyers provided a PowerPoint presentation on 
the Aspen Place at the Sawmill. 
 

 OVERALL PROCESS 
 AMENDMENT TWO TO THE FOURTH AMENDED DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT 
 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 THIRD AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

 
Mayor Nabours asked if the City is giving up anything that it is entitled to with this 
amendment. Mr. Burke offered that the City is getting an additional concession of 
$25,000 for affordable housing. The incentive agreement has been consistent 
and the City is adding some additional controls. 
 
Mayor Nabours moved to approve the proposed Amendment to the 
Development Agreement between the City of Flagstaff and Flagstaff Aspen 
Place, LLC, and Alliance Bank of Arizona as recommended by city staff and 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013  Page 9 
 

authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement; seconded; passed 6-0 with 
Councilmember Woodson abstaining (not present). 
 

B. Consideration and Approval of Contract: Third Amendment to Development 
Incentive Agreement between the City of Flagstaff, Aspen Place North, L.L.C. and 
Alliance Bank of Arizona. 
 
Mayor Nabours moved to approve the Third Amendment to Development 
Incentive Agreement between the City of Flagstaff, Aspen Place North, 
L.L.C. and Alliance Bank of Arizona; seconded; passed 6-0 with 
Councilmember Woodson abstaining (not present). 
 

C. Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2013-23: An ordinance 
amending the Flagstaff Zoning Map designation of approximately 3.15 acres of 
real property located at 601 East Piccadilly Drive from HC (Conditional), Highway 
Commercial Conditional, to HC (Conditional), Highway Commercial Conditional, 
by removing, modifying and replacing those conditions previously imposed 
(Aspen Place North). 
 
Mayor Nabours moved to read Ordinance No. 2013-23 by title only for the 
final time; seconded; passed 6-0 with Councilmember Woodson abstaining 
(not present). 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE 
FLAGSTAFF ZONING MAP DESIGNATION OF APPROXIMATELY 3.15 ACRES 
OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 601 EAST PICCADILLY DRIVE FROM HC 
(CONDITIONAL), HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL CONDITIONAL, TO HC 
(CONDITIONAL), HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL CONDITIONAL, BY REMOVING, 
MODIFYING AND REPLACING CONDITIONS PREVIOUSLY IMPOSED 
 
Mayor Nabours moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2013-23; seconded; passed 
6-0 with Councilmember Woodson abstaining (not present). 
 

D. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2013-29: A resolution 
approving a Pre-Annexation Agreement between the Grand Canyon Trust and 
the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, opening the opportunity for a connection to the City 
sewer system. 
 
Councilmember Woodson returned to the dais at 8:25 p.m. 
 
Planning Development Manager Brian Kulina offered a PowerPoint presentation 
on the Pre-Annexation Agreement with the Grand Canyon Trust. 
 

 CONSIDERATION & ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 2013-29 
 PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE GRAND CANYON 

TRUST AND CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
 
Councilmember Barotz asked if a property can be in the pre-annexation stage 
indefinitely. Mr. Kulina explained that this particular agreement does not have an 
expiration date. Due to their size the property owners have been actively working 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013  Page 10 
 

to get other adjacent property owners on board to fulfill the size requirements for 
an annexation, it is possible that they never annex. 
 
Councilmember Woodson moved to read Resolution No. 2013-29 by title 
only; seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA APPROVING A 
PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF AND 
THE GRAND CANYON TRUST 
 
Councilmember Woodson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2013-29; 
seconded; passed unanimously. 
 

16. DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 

A. Discussion of Resolution No. 2013-30:  A resolution amending the Flagstaff 
Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan to change the land use 
designation of approximately 4.02 acres of real property located at 600 West 
University Heights Drive from Parks and Recreation to High Density Residential 
(Changing Land Use Designation for Trailside Apartments). The Public Hearing 
for this item will be held on December 3, 2013. 
 
No public comment. 
 

B. Discussion of Ordinance No. 2013-24: An ordinance amending the Flagstaff 
Zoning Map designation of approximately 4.02 acres of real property located at 
600 West University Heights Drive from "SC", Suburban Commercial, to "HR", 
High Density Residential (Amending Zoning Map for Trailside Apartments). The 
Public Hearing for this item will be held on December 3, 2013. 
 
No public comment. 
 

 C. Regional Plan: Council Policy 'Parking Lot' Pending Discussion Items 
 
Planning Director Jim Cronk provided two handouts to the City Council. There 
are 135 items on the parking lot list plus the Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommendations. For a path forward staff suggests having Council prioritize the 
parking lot in terms of what should be discussed first. These recommendations 
should be submitted via email to staff by Monday, November 25 at 10 a.m. 
 
Mr. Burke noted that it is unlikely that Council will get through all 135 items. If 
through the prioritizing exercise there are three or more Councilmembers who 
would like to discuss an item further those items will be discussed first. 
 
Councilmember Oravits stated that there are a lot of items he would like to 
discuss however there are three main topics for him. He stated that he is willing 
to hold back on all other items if Land Use and compact development, 
Transportation, and overall complexity of the plan are discussed. 

 
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013  Page 11 
 
17. POSSIBLE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
  

Verbal comments from the public on any item under this section must be given 
during Public Participation (#5) near the beginning of the meeting. Written 
comments may be submitted to the City Clerk. After discussion and upon 
agreement of three members of the Council, an item will be moved to a regularly-
scheduled Council meeting.  
 

 None. 
 
18. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS FROM COUNCIL AND STAFF, 

REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 
Vice Mayor Evans stated that she had a meeting with residents on Lockett to discuss 
traffic concerns especially speeding and the difficulty they have with getting out of their 
properties on Lockett. She requested information on an alternate route such as 
Linda Vista where there are no issues with backing out of properties. 
 
Mr. Burke stated that he gave two presentations last week. The first was to the Western 
Region Strategy Committee on Wildland Fire Management. He talked about Flagstaff’s 
Watershed Protection Project and how Flagstaff is doing all the things that align with the 
national cohesive strategy of wildland fire management. There are 12 western states 
that participate and Flagstaff’s example got their attention and they are looking forward 
to showcasing Flagstaff on the national stage.  
 
The second presentation was on the Resiliency Study at the University of Arizona and 
the Resolution that Council passed. It was well received as a more practical approach to 
some of the climate and weather related disaster issues. 
 
Mayor Nabours stated that Good Earth Power is the company that took over the 4FRI 
contract and they are starting to move the project forward. 
 

19. ADJOURNMENT  
 
The Regular Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held November 19, 2013, adjourned at 
9:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
     _________________________________________ 
     MAYOR 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________  
CITY CLERK 
 

 



Flagstaff City Council 
Regular Meeting of November 19, 2013  Page 12 
 

 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

STATE OF ARIZONA)  
                              ss.) 
County of Coconino   ) 
 
I, ELIZABETH A. BURKE, do hereby certify that I am the City Clerk of the City of Flagstaff, 
County of Coconino, State of Arizona, and that the above Minutes are a true and correct 
summary of the meeting of the Council of the City of Flagstaff held November 19, 2013. I further 
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this 3rd day of December, 2013. 
 
 
  
 
      _________________________________________  
      CITY CLERK 
 

 
 



  7. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stacy Saltzburg, Deputy City Clerk

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration of Appointments:  Airport Commission. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Make two appointments to terms expiring October 2016.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
By making the above appointment, the Airport Commission will be at full membership.

There are four applications on file and they are as follows:

Mary Lou Hagan (new applicant)
William Hagan (new applicant)
Aaron Riley (new applicant)
Russ Yelton (new applicant)

Financial Impact:
These are voluntary positions and there is no budgetary impact to the City of Flagstaff.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
None.

Options and Alternatives:
1) Appoint two Commissioners: by appointing two members at this time, the Airport Commission be at full
membership, allowing the group to meet and provide recommendations to the City Council.

2) Table the action to allow for further discussion or expand the list of candidates.



Background/History:
The Airport Commission consists of seven citizens serving three-year terms. There are currently two
seats available.

Please note that Russ Yelton has applied for both the Airport Commission and the Planning and Zoning
Commission, he will only be able to serve on one.

The Airport Commission is responsible for reviewing and reporting to the Council on the development of
the Airpark and on matters affecting the operation and efficiency of the airport, using the Airport Master
Plan as a guide.

Key Considerations:
It is important to fill the vacancies so as to allow the Commission to continue meeting on a regular basis.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The City's boards, commissions, and committees were created to foster public participation and input
and to encourage Flagstaff citizens to take an active role in city government. 

Community Involvement:
INFORM: Board members and City staff have informed the community of these vacancies  though word
of mouth in addition to the vacancies being posted on the City's website. 

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
COUNCIL INTERVIEW TEAM:
Councilmember Overton
Councilmember Barotz

Attachments:  Airport Commission Roster
Airport Commission Authority
Airport Commission Applicant Roster
Airport Commission Applications



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

AIRPORT COMMISSION  MEMBERS

TRAINING 

COMPLETED

603 W. Beal Rd.

Brace, Roger

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Facility Electrical/W. L. Gore

06/07/2011 10/14 10/20/2011

Home Phone: 556-9123

Term: 1st

2138Tombaugh Way

Evans, Matthew

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Vice-President/Relationship Mgr./National Bank 
of America

11/17/2010 10/13 No

Cell Phone: 600-1387

Term: (1st 1/08 - 10/10; 2nd 10/10 - 10/13)

2520 E. Linda Vista

Gavin, April

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Executive Assistant/Flagstaff Chamber of 
Commerce

12/04/2012 10/15 02/16/2012

Work Phone: 928-774-4505

Term: (1st 2/12 - 10/12; 2nd 10/12-10/15)

3295 S. Tehama Circle

Keegan, Jack

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Retired

02/07/2012 10/14 10/08/2008

Home Phone: 928-266-0889

Term: (1st 10/08 - 10/11; 2nd 10/11 - 10/14)

Thursday, November 21, 2013 Page 1 of 2



City of Flagstaff, AZ

1520 W. Tolchaco Rd.

Marxen, Terry

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Owner/Terry Marxen Cheverolet

03/05/2013 10/13 No

Work Phone: 928-774-2794

Term: (1st 10/09-10/12; 2nd 03/13 - 10/13)

3217 West Lois Lane

Shankland, Paul

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Director and Installation Commander/U.S. 
Navel Observatory

02/07/2012 10/14 No

Home Phone: 336-508-6317

Term: (1st 2/12 - 10/14)

4443 E. Burning Tree Loop

Wallace, James

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

CEO/Greystoke Engineering

12/04/2012 10/15 No

Cell Phone: 928-380-0976

Term: (1st 12/12-10/15)

Staff Representative: Barney Helmick

As Of: November 21, 2013

Thursday, November 21, 2013 Page 2 of 2



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 23 

CHAPTER 2-11 

FLAGSTAFF AIRPORT COMMISSION 

 

 

SECTIONS: 

 

2-11-001-0001 COMMISSION CREATED: 

2-11-001-0002 COMPOSITION; TERMS: 

2-11-001-0003 ORGANIZATION: 

2-11-001-0004 COMPENSATION: 

2-11-001-0005 MEETINGS: 

2-11-001-0006 ACTIONS OF THE COMMISSION: 

 

SECTION 2-11-001-0001 COMMISSION CREATED: 

 

There is hereby established the Flagstaff Airport Commission to be 

composed of seven1 (7) members who shall meet as hereinafter provided to 

consider and deliberate upon matters of concern to the City Council and 

citizens that affect the operation and efficiency of the airport toward 

the end of providing an optimum level of services within available 

resources using the Airport Master Plan as a basic guide.  (Ord. 1897, 

11/21/95) 

 

(Ord. No. 1897, Amended, 11/21/95) 

 

SECTION 2-11-001-0002 COMPOSITION; TERMS: 

 

The composition of the membership of the Commission shall be as follows: 

 

A. A Councilmember, designated by the City Council, to serve as a non-

voting, ex-officio member. (Res. 1045, 9-20-77) 

 

B. Seven (7) members to be appointed by the City Council who shall 

serve for three (3) year terms, on a staggered basis. (Ord. 1897, 

11/21/95) 

 

C. Ex-Officio Members:  The following persons shall be ex-officio 

members of the Commission, but shall have no vote: 

 

 The Mayor 

 The City Manager 

 The Airport Manager 

 The FAA Tower Operator 

 

D. A quorum shall be one more than half the voting members. 

 

(Ord. No. 1897, Amended, 11/21/95); (Ord. No. 2007-03, Amended 

02/06/2007) 

                                                 
1
 Ordinance No. 1897, adopted 11/21/95, reduced the amount of membership from nine to seven; 

however, when the final ordinance was printed and signed, the numbers had inadvertently been 

reversed.  The City Code reflects the intent of the action taken by the City Council. 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 24 

 

SECTION 2-11-001-0003 ORGANIZATION: 

 

At the first meeting after appointment and at the first meeting held in 

any calendar year thereafter, the members of the Commission shall elect 

a Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.  (Ord. No. 2007-03, Amended 

02/06/2007) 

 

SECTION 2-11-001-0004 COMPENSATION: 

 

The members of the Commission may be reimbursed by the City for 

necessary travel and subsistence expenses, but shall not receive 

compensation for their services.  Any such travel must be approved in 

advance by the City Council or the City Manager with all budgetary 

considerations taken into account. 

 

SECTION 2-11-001-0005 MEETINGS: 

 

The Commission shall hold regular monthly meetings, which shall at all 

times be open to the public, the time and place of said meetings shall 

be posted in accordance with any currently applicable Arizona State 

Statutes regulating public meetings and proceedings (open meeting laws).  

Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson on twenty-four (24) 

hours' notice. 

 

SECTION 2-11-001-0006 ACTIONS OF THE COMMISSION: 

 

A. The Commission, with the consent of the City Manager, may call on 

all City divisions for assistance in the performance of its duties, and 

it shall be the duty of such divisions to render such assistance to the 

Commission as may be reasonably required. 

 

B. All discussions, deliberations, actions and recommendations of the 

Commission shall be advisory to the City Council, and such advisories as 

the Commission may from time to time make shall be forwarded to the City 

Council through the City Manager. (Res. 1045, 9-20-77) 

 

 



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

AIRPORT COMMISSION  APPLICANTS

TRAINING 

COMPLETED

4100 N. Fanning Dr. Apt. 4

Hagan, Mary Lou

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

No

Home Phone: 928-255-5621

Hagan, William

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Retired

No

Home Phone: 928-255-5621

5404 E. Cortland Blvd #249

Riley, Aaron

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Branch Manager/Enterprise Holdings

No

Cell Phone: 928-380-5224

2787 N. Fairview Drive

Yelton, Russ

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

President/CEO/NACET

No

Cell Phone: 828-582-6323

Staff Representative: Barney Helmick

As Of: November 21, 2013

Thursday, November 21, 2013 Page 1 of 1













  7. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stacy Saltzburg, Deputy City Clerk

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration of Appointments:  Water Commission.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Make three appointments to terms expiring December 2016.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
By making appointments to the vacancies, the Water Commission will be at full membership.

There are five applications on file and they are as follows:

Willis Jensen
George Kladnik
Jim McCarthy
John Nowakowski (current member)
Karin Wadsack (current member)

Financial Impact:
These are voluntary positions and there is no budgetary impact to the City of Flagstaff.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
None.

Options and Alternatives:
1) Appoint three Commissioners: by appointing members at this time, the Water Commission will be at
full membership, allowing the group to continue meeting to provide recommendations to the City Council.

2) Table the action to allow for further discussion or expand the list of candidates.



Background/History:
The Water Commission consists of nine citizens serving three year terms. Additionally, the Chair of the
Planning and Zoning Commission serves as a non-voting member during their term of office. There are
currently three citizen seats available.

As a note, applicant Jim McCarthy is currently serving on the Planning and Zoning Commission with a
term expiring December 2013 which makes him eligible to sit on the Water Commission if so selected.
Mr. McCarthy has also applied for reappointment to the Planning and Zoning Commission; he is not able
to serve on both commissions at the same time.

This Commission is charged to review matters such as extensions of the water and sewer collection
systems, treatment and use of water furnished by the City, treatment and disposal of the City's sewage
system effluent, and water/sewer rates.  

Key Considerations:
It is important to fill the vacancies so as to allow the Commission to continue meeting on a regular basis.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The City's boards, commissions, and committees were created to foster public participation and input
and to encourage Flagstaff citizens to take an active role in city government. 

Community Involvement:
INFORM: Board members and City staff have informed the community of these vacancies  through word
of mouth in addition to the vacancies posting on the City's website. 

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
COUNCIL INTERVIEW TEAM:
Mayor Nabours
Councilmember Oravits

Attachments:  Water Commission Roster
Water Commission Authority
Water Commission Applicant Roster
Water Commission Applications



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

WATER COMMISSION  MEMBERS

TRAINING 

COMPLETED

6064 E. Mountain Oaks Dr.

Cortner, Hanna

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Cortner and Associates

12/04/2012 12/15 10/20/2011

Home Phone: 928-526-1514

Term: (1st 2/10 - 12/12; 2nd 12/12 - 12/15)

3407 N. Patterson Blvd.

Garner, Bradley

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Hydrologist/US Geological Survey

04/03/2012 12/14 03/12/2013

Cell Phone: 443-841-6972

Term: (1st 4/12 - 12/14)

2600 E. Hemberg Drive

Kersey, Richard J.

Flagstaff, AZ  86004-6853

President/CEO/Orenda Management, Inc.

12/04/2012 12/14 10/20/2011

Home Phone: 928-527-6855

Term: (1st 3/07-12/09; 2nd 12/09-12/12; 3rd 
12/12-12/14)

822 W. Birch Avenue

Ketter, Brian

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Associate/WL Gore

12/04/2012 12/15 03/12/2013

Cell Phone: 928-853-5889

Term: (1st 11/10 - 12/12; 2nd 12/12 - 12/15)

Thursday, November 21, 2013 Page 1 of 3



City of Flagstaff, AZ

1040 N. Lakepoint Way

Malin, John

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Director of Golf Operations/In Celebration of 
Golf Management

12/04/2012 12/15 No

Cell Phone: 928-864-6158

Term: (1st 12/12-12/15)

2087 Fresh Aire Street

McCarthy, Jim

Flagstaff, AZ  86001-2898

Sr. Project Engineer/Retired from Honeywell

02/05/2008 Indefinite 04/24/2008

Home Phone: 928-779-3748

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REPRESENTATIVE / NON-VOTING

3798 N. Zurich St.

Nowakowski, John

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Retired

11/16/2010 12/13 10/20/2011

Cell Phone: 928-607-8371

Term: (1st 8/09 - 12/10; 2nd 12/10 - 12/13)

1544 West Daydream Drive

Shinham, C. Robert

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Civil Engineer/Retired

04/03/2009 12/14 04/18/2007

Home Phone: 928-214-6129

Term: (1st 3/09 - 12/11; 2nd 12/11 - 12/14)

525 S Oleary St.

Wadsack, Karin

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Renewable Energy Prog. Coord./NAU / EN3 
Professionals LLC

10/18/2011 12/13 03/12/2013

Cell Phone: 928-669-0112

Term: (1st 10/11 - 12/13)

Z-VACANT, 12/13 No

Thursday, November 21, 2013 Page 2 of 3



City of Flagstaff, AZ

Staff Representative: Hill / Alter

As Of: November 21, 2013

Thursday, November 21, 2013 Page 3 of 3



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 10 

CHAPTER 2-04 

WATER COMMISSION 

 

 

SECTIONS: 

 

2-04-001-0001 PURPOSE AND EFFECT: 

2-04-001-0002 DEFINITIONS 

2-04-001-0003 DECLARATION OF POLICY 

2-04-001-0004 WATER COMMISSION 

2-04-001-0005 OFFICERS OF THE COMMISSION 

2-04-001-0006 MEETINGS 

2-04-001-0007 APPLICATION; PROCEDURE FOR 

2-04-001-0008 ACTION ON APPLICATION 

2-04-001-0009 EXTENSION OF URBAN SERVICE BOUNDARY 

2-04-001-0010 CHANGES IN WATER, SEWER, RECLAMATION SYSTEM 

2-04-001-0011 INVESTIGATIONS 

 

 

SECTION 2-04-001-0001 PURPOSE AND EFFECT: 

 

The provisions of this Chapter shall be deemed to be the minimum 

requirements for the promotion of public health, safety, convenience and 

public welfare.  These provisions shall govern whenever they are more 

stringent than any other statute, provision of this Code, legal 

covenant, agreement or contract, but shall not abrogate any other 

requirement which is more stringent or restrictive than the provisions 

of this Chapter. 

 

SECTION 2-04-001-0002 DEFINITIONS: 

 

Whenever any of the following words are used in this Chapter, they shall 

have the meaning herein ascribed to them: 

 

BUSINESS USE:  The use of water which is primarily for business or 

commercial purposes, including the occasional furnishing of water to 

travelers or tourists by hotels, motels or other owners of places of 

public convenience. 

 

COMMISSION:  The Commission as designated and established by this 

Chapter. 

 

COUNCIL:  The Council of the City of Flagstaff. 

 

RECLAIMED WASTEWATER:  The treated effluent which is the product of the 

municipal wastewater system, which although not suitable for human 

consumption, may be used for certain industrial or commercial purposes.  

(Ord. 1789, 01/05/93) 

 

RESIDENTIAL USE:  The use of water which is primarily for the persons 

and property residing in a building or a portion thereof designed to be 

occupied as an abode.  (Ord. 447, 8-26-58) 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 11 

 

STORMWATER RUNOFF:  The direct response of a watershed or drainage area 

to precipitation from a storm event and/or snowmelt and includes surface 

and subsurface runoff or drainage that enters a watercourse, street, 

storm drain or other concentrated flow during and following 

precipitation. 

 

SEWER SYSTEM:  All the facilities within and without the City required 

or convenient for the collection and treatment of sewage including the 

disposal, recycling or utilization of the resulting effluent by the 

City, within or without the corporate limits. (Ord. 980, 12-7-76) 

 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT DESIGN MANUAL:  A manual of technical hydrologic 

and hydraulic calculations and computations by which all designs of 

stormwater facilities shall adhere. 

 

STORMWATER MASTER PLAN:  A comprehensive plan for all city watercourses 

that sets forth necessary plans and improvements to improve or mitigate 

the effects of flooding throughout the community. 

 

STORMWATER QUALITY PROGRAM:   A program that involves best management 

practices that result in an improvement to stormwater quality and that 

includes the National Pollutant Discharge Eliminations System (NPDES) as 

mandated United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and other 

improvements as may be necessary and approved by the Council. 

 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES:  All activities associated with the 

Stormwater Management Design Manual, the Stormwater Master Plan, the 

City’s Stormwater Quality Program, and the National Flood Insurance 

Program (NFIP). 

 

URBAN SERVICE BOUNDARY:  The boundary established by the City Council 

that surrounds vacant land areas bypassed by urban growth and 

immediately adjacent to urban growth that can be most efficiently and 

effectively provided facilities and services by the City.  (Ord. 1789, 

01/05/93) 

 

WATER SYSTEM:  All the facilities within and without the City required 

or convenient for the production and distribution of water by the City 

within or without the corporate limits.  (Ord. 447, 8-26-58) 

 

(Ord. No. 1789, Amended, 01/05/93) 

 

SECTION 2-04-001-0003 DECLARATION OF POLICY: 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City declare that one of the most important 

duties of the City is to furnish its citizens with water, to collect, 

treat and dispose of sewage, to reclaim and distribute wastewater, and 

to develop and implement and effective stormwater management program.  

It is further declared that production and distribution of water, and 

collection, treatment, reclamation and disposal of sewage, and 

management of stormwater within and without its corporate limits 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 12 

requires special investigation and sound recommendations.  In order to 

insure these objectives, both from the standpoint of economy and 

convenience, a Commission is required to investigate extensions, and 

priority of extensions, of the water, sewer, and reclaimed wastewater 

systems; the use and priority of use of water furnished by the City; the 

treatment, reclamation, and ultimate disposal of the resultant effluent 

of the sewage system of the City; the management of stormwater; and make 

appropriate recommendations.  (Ord. 1789, 01/05/93) 

 

(Ord. No. 1789, Amended, 01/05/93; Ord. No. 2009-08, Amended, 03/03/09) 

 

SECTION 2-04-001-0004 WATER COMMISSION: 

 

There is hereby established a Water Commission.  There shall be seven 

9voting members of said Commission, who shall consist of: 

 

A. Nine (9) voting members to be appointed by the 

Council of the City, who shall serve for three (3) year terms on a 

staggered basis. 

 

B. The Chair of the Planning and Zoning Commission, 

or a member of the Planning and Zoning Commission, to serve as a non-

voting member during his or her term of office. 

 

C. The City Council may designate a Councilmember 

representative as a non-voting, ex-officio member of the Commission. 

 

D. Membership on the Commission shall terminate if 

any member has two (2) consecutive unexcused absences. The Chair shall 

determine, prior to any meeting, if a member's absence is excusable.  

(Ord. 1926, 12/17/96) 

 

(Ord. No. 1789, Amended, 01/05/93; Ord. No. 1926, Amended, 12/17/96; 

(Ord. No. 2007-12, Amended 02/06/2007) (; Ord. No. 2009-08, Amended, 

03/03/09) 

 

SECTION 2-04-001-0005 OFFICERS OF THE COMMISSION: 

 

A. Ex-Officio Members:  The following persons shall 

be ex- officio members of the Commission, but shall have no vote: 

 

The City Manager 

The City Attorney 

The City Engineer 

The City Utilities Director, and 

The Coconino County Manager or designated representative. 

 

B. At the first meeting held in any calendar year, 

the members of the Commission shall elect a Chair and a Vice Chair from 

among its voting members.  (Ord. 1789, 01/05/93) 

 

(Ord. No. 1789, Amended, 01/05/93; Ord. No. 2009-08, Amended, 03/03/09) 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 13 

 

SECTION 2-04-001-0006 MEETINGS: 

 

The meetings of the Commission shall be held at the time and place 

adopted for the regular monthly meetings of the Commission.   

Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Board and Commission 

Members’ Handbook adopted by resolution of the Flagstaff City council, 

and in compliance with all other local, state, and federal laws. 

 

A quorum shall be one more than half the voting membership of the 

Commission. 

 

Ord. 1789, 01/05/93; Ord. No. 2007-12, Amended 02/06/2007; Ord. No. 

1789, Amended, 01/05/93; Ord. No. 2009-08, Amended, 03/03/09 

 

SECTION 2-04-001-0007 APPLICATION; PROCEDURE FOR: 

 

Any person, corporation or association desiring a water connection or 

tap, reclaimed wastewater connection, or sewer connection outside the 

limits of the City shall first apply to the Commission for such 

connection or tap.  The application shall be in writing and shall be 

filed with the Clerk of the City, who shall forthwith submit it to the 

Commission or to a person designated by the Commission to receive the 

same.  The Commission shall thereupon, at the next regular or special 

meeting called for the purpose, consider the application and may, in its 

sole discretion, require a public hearing before granting said 

application.  In the event that a public hearing is thus required, 

notice thereof shall be given in writing to those persons designated by 

the Commission and notice containing the time, place and purpose of the 

meeting shall be published at least once in the official newspaper of 

the City, which publication shall be at least five (5) days prior to the 

time set for such hearing.  At such hearing, the Commission may hear 

such testimony as it may deem advisable and may, at its discretion, 

permit cross-examination of the applicant and other witnesses by any 

party interested; however, the scope of the cross-examination shall at 

all times be discretionary with the Chairman of the Commission. 

 

After any hearing provided by this Section, the Commission shall, within 

five (5) days thereafter, advise the Mayor and Council, in writing, of 

the nature of the application, whether a public hearing was held and the 

recommendations of the Commission on said application.   

 

With the consent of the Mayor and Council, the Commission may give the 

City Manager or his or her designee authority within a prescribed area 

and within prescribed limits to allow water connections, sewer 

connections, and reclaimed wastewater connections for business and 

residential uses; provided, however, that such uses are in accordance 

with the regulations theretofore adopted by the Commission or Council.  

(Ord. 1789, 01/05/93) 

 

(Ord. No. 1789, Amended, 01/05/93; Ord. No. 2009-08, Amended, 03/03/09) 

 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 14 

(See Title 7, Chapter 3 of this City Code for additional water 

regulations.) 

 

SECTION 2-04-001-0008 ACTION ON APPLICATION: 

 

After receipt of the application and the action thereon as provided in 

the preceding Section, the Council shall consider recommendations of the 

Commission at its next regular meeting, or at such meeting as may be 

determined by the Mayor and Council, whether regular or special, but in 

any event the application shall be acted upon not later than thirty (30) 

days after receipt of the recommendations of the Commission by the Mayor 

and Council.  The Council may thereupon grant or reject the application 

and may provide such hearing or hearings as the Mayor and Council may, 

in their sole discretion, determine and shall give such notice of such 

hearing as may be determined to be advisable or convenient.  (Ord. 244, 

Amended 8-26-58; Ord. 1541, Amended 1-5-88) 

 

SECTION 2-04-001-0009 EXTENSION OF URBAN SERVICE BOUNDARY: 

 

Any application for a water or sewer connection to serve a business, 

residence, or development in an area which would require an extension of 

the Urban Service Boundary, whether within or without the corporate 

limits of the City, shall be considered by the Water Commission and the 

recommendation of the Commission shall be forwarded to the Planning and 

Zoning Commission and the City Council.  Impact on adjacent areas shall 

also be considered when evaluating applications for extension of the 

Urban Service Boundary. (Ord. 1789, 01/05/93) 

 

(Ord. No. 1789, Amended, 01/05/93; Ord. No. 2009-08, Amended, 03/03/09) 

 

SECTION 2-04-001-0010 CHANGES IN WATER, SEWER, RECLAMATION SYSTEM: 

 

No extension, replacement, maintenance or repair of the production or 

distribution water system or collection of sewage, treatment thereof, 

reclamation or disposal of resulting effluent of the City, whether 

within or without its corporate limits, which requires a bond levy, 

shall be undertaken until the same has been submitted to the Commission 

for its recommendation in accordance with Section 2-04-001-0007 of this 

Chapter, and the Mayor and Council shall have approved the same in 

accordance with the procedure established in Section 2-04-001-0009 of 

this Chapter.  (Ord. 1789, 01/05/93) 

 

(Ord. No. 1789, Amended, 01/05/93; Ord. No. 2009-08, Amended, 03/03/09) 

 

SECTION 2-04-001-0011 INVESTIGATIONS: 

 

In addition to those other duties, as provided by this Chapter, the 

Commission shall study and be responsible for the evaluation of the long 

range water needs of the City as well as the review and evaluation of 

the City water conservation program. It shall, on request after 

investigation and upon consideration of an orderly, normal increase of 

the population of the City, make recommendations to the Council 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 15 

regarding exploration and development and new and additional water 

resources.  The Commission shall recommend to the City Council measures 

it deems necessary to protect existing and potential water resources. 

 

The Commission shall request or study, evaluate, and from time to time 

make recommendations to the Council on sewage disposal, the degree of 

purification treatment, and the ultimate disposition and utilization of 

the resultant effluent and reclaimed wastewater, within guidelines and 

mandates of Municipal, State and Federal regulations and laws governing 

such activities.  (Ord, 1789, 01/05/93) 

 

(Ord. No. 1789, Amended, 01/05/93) 

 

The Commission shall provide input to City staff; provide a forum for 

public comment and input; and study, evaluate, and make recommendations 

to the City Council regarding new initiatives and revisions, additions, 

and variance requests to Stormwater Management Activities.  (Ord. No. 

2009-08, Amended, 03/03/09) 

 



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

WATER COMMISSION  APPLICANTS

TRAINING 

COMPLETED

2780 N. Eddy Drive

Jensen, Willis

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Statistician/W.L. Gore & Associates

No

Home Phone: 928-226-6948

3530 N. Monte Vista Dr.

Kladnik, George

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

President Advanced Analytical/Self-employed

No

Home Phone: 928-213-5712

2087 Fresh Aire Street

McCarthy, Jim

Flagstaff, AZ  86001-2898

Sr. Project Engineer/Retired from Honeywell

02/05/2008 04/24/2008

Home Phone: 928-779-3748

3798 N. Zurich St.

Nowakowski, John

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Retired

11/16/2010 12/13 10/20/2011

Cell Phone: 928-607-8371

Term: (1st 8/09 - 12/10; 2nd 12/10 - 12/13)

1639 W. Stevanna Way

Odegaard, Charlie

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Owner/Odegaard's Sewing Center

No

Cell Phone: 928-853-2262

Tuesday, November 26, 2013 Page 1 of 2



City of Flagstaff, AZ

33 Trail of the Woods

Wadsack, Karin

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Project Director/NAU

10/18/2011 12/13 03/12/2013

Cell Phone: 928-669-0112

Term: (1st 10/11 - 12/13)

Staff Representative: Hill / Alter

As Of: November 26, 2013

Tuesday, November 26, 2013 Page 2 of 2































  7. C.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stacy Saltzburg, Deputy City Clerk

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration of Appointments:  Planning and Zoning Commission.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Make two appointments to terms expiring December 2016.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
By making the above appointments, the Planning and Zoning Commission will be at full membership and
will be able to continue meeting on a regular basis.  There are seven applications on file, they are as
follows:

Stephen Dorsett (current member)
Jim McCarthy (current member) (has also applied to Water Commission)
Mickey Mercer (new applicant)
Tad Riggs (new applicant)
Steve Thibault (new applicant)
Paul Turner (new applicant)
Russ Yelton (new applicant)

Financial Impact:
These are voluntary positions and there is no budgetary impact to the City of Flagstaff.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
None.

Options and Alternatives:
1) Appoint two Commissioners: By appointing members at this time, the Planning and Zoning
Commission will be at full membership, allowing the group to meet and provide recommendations to the
City Council.

2) Table the action to allow for further discussion or expand the list of candidates.



Background/History:
The Planning and Zoning Commission consists of seven citizens serving three-year terms. There are
currently two seats available.

Please note that Jim McCarthy has applied for both the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Water
Commission; he will only be able to serve on one.

Please note that Russ Yelton has applied for both the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Airport
Commission; he will only be able to serve on one.

This commission serves as an advisory board to the Council on matters relating to the growth and
physical development of the City. The commission also conducts hearings on amendments to the Zoning
Map, tentative subdivision plats, and Development Review Board appeals.

Key Considerations:
It is important to fill the vacancies so as to allow the Commission to continue meeting on a regular basis.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The City's boards, commissions, and committees were created to foster public participation and input
and to encourage Flagstaff citizens to take an active role in city government. 

Community Involvement:
INFORM: The vacancies are posted on the City's website and individual recruitment and mention of the
opening by Board members and City staff has occurred, informing others of these vacancies through
word of mouth. 

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
COUNCIL INTERVIEW TEAM:
Mayor Nabours
Councilmember Woodson

Attachments:  P&Z Roster
P&Z Authority
P&Z Applicant Roster
P&Z Applications



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  MEMBERS

TRAINING 

COMPLETED

538 S. Fountaine St. Unit 3

Carpenter, David

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Owner/Hope Construction

01/15/2013 12/15 03/18/2010

Cell Phone: 928-380-5808

Term: (1st 2/10-12/12; 2nd 12/12-12/15)

1823 W. Heavenly Court

Dorsett, Stephen

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

President/Architect/Shapes & Forms Architects

12/21/2010 12/13 10/20/2011

Work Phone: 213-9626

Term: (1st 6/09-12/10; 2nd 12/10-12/13)

4417 E. Burning Tree Loop

Jackson, Steve

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Owner/Broker/Coldwell Banker NARICO

01/15/2013 12/15 No

Work Phone: 928-226-3188

Term: (1st 1/13-12/15)

2087 W. Fresh Aire St.

McCarthy, Jim

Flagstaff, AZ  86001-2898

Sr. Project Engineer/Retired from Honeywell

12/22/2010 12/13 04/24/2008

Home Phone: 779-3748

Term: (1st 2/08-12/10; 2nd 12/10-12/13)

1665 N. Turquoise Dr.

Moore, Paul

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Architect/Self

09/21/2010 12/14 08/24/2008

Work Phone: 773-1624

Term: (1st 9/10-12/11; 2nd 12/11-12/14)

Thursday, November 21, 2013 Page 1 of 2



City of Flagstaff, AZ

4391 E. Savannah Cir.

Pfeiffer, Tina

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Mortgage Loan Officer/Prime Lending

01/15/2013 12/15 02/16/2012

Cell Phone: 928-600-3143

Term: (1st 9/11-12/12; 2nd 12/12-12/15)

950 N. Sinagua Hts. Drive

Ramsey, Justin

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Senior Project Manager/Westland Resources, 
Inc.

02/07/2012 12/14 11/04/2013

Home Phone: 928-606-3598

Term: (1st 2/12-12/14)

Staff Representative: Mark Sawyers

As Of: November 21, 2013

Thursday, November 21, 2013 Page 2 of 2



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 2 

CHAPTER 2-01 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 

 

SECTIONS: 

 

2-01-001-0001 CREATION OF COMMISSION 

2-01-001-0002 PERSONNEL OF THE COMMISSION 

2-01-001-0003 DIRECTOR OF PLANNING 

2-01-001-0004 ORGANIZATION AND RULES 

2-01-001-0005 DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS 

2-01-001-0006 MASTER PLAN 

2-01-001-0007 PURPOSES OF MASTER PLAN 

2-01-001-0008 ADOPTION OF MASTER PLAN 

2-01-001-0009 LEGAL STATUS OF MASTER PLAN 

2-01-001-0010 ACT AS ZONING COMMISSION 

2-01-001-0011 PREPARE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 

2-01-001-0012 ADDITIONAL DUTIES 

2-01-001-0013 PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0001 CREATION OF COMMISSION 

 

There is hereby established a City Planning and Zoning Commission for 

the City under the provisions of the Arizona Revised Statutes as 

applicable.1 (Ord. 339, 10-8-45) 

 
1A.R.S., sec. 9-461.02. 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0002 PERSONNEL OF THE COMMISSION 

 

A. The City Planning and Zoning Commission shall consist of seven (7) 

members appointed by the Mayor and Council.  The City Engineer shall 

be a technical advisor to the Commission but shall have no vote in 

the proceedings of the Commission.  The Development Services 

Director shall also be an ex-officio member of the City Planning and 

Zoning Commission but shall have no vote in any of the meetings or 

proceedings of such Commission.  In addition, the City Council may 

designate a Councilmember representative as a non-voting, ex-officio 

member of the Commission.  All members of the Commission shall serve 

as such without compensation, and the citizen members shall hold no 

other City office, except that they may serve as members of another 

city board or commission.  The terms of ex-officio members shall 

correspond to their respective official tenures.  The term of each 

citizen member shall be three (3) years or until his successor takes 

office.  Vacancies occurring otherwise than through the expiration 

of term shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term.  The 

citizen members may be removed by the Mayor and Council for 

inefficiency, neglect of duty or malfeasance in office or in 

accordance with the Board and Commission Members’ Handbook adopted 

by resolution of the City Council.  (Ord. 1826, 12/21/93) 

 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 3 

B. In addition to the causes for removal set out in the Board and 

Commission Members’ Handbook, a member accumulating any combination 

totaling eight (8) absences from regularly scheduled meetings in any 

given calendar year will be automatically removed from the 

Commission and a replacement appointed by the City Council.  An 

unexcused absence is defined as the failure of the member to notify 

the Planning and Development Section of his or her inability to 

attend at least by ten o'clock (10:00) A.M. the day prior to the 

regularly scheduled meeting.  (Ord. 1427, 3-4-86) 

 

(Ord. No. 1826, Amended, 12/21/93); (Ord. No. 2007-09, Amended 

02/06/2007) 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0003 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR: 

 

The Development Services Director may be appointed by the City Manager 

and shall be qualified by special training and experience in the field 

of city planning.  The Director shall be a regular technical advisor of 

the City Planning and Zoning Commission and may also be designated its 

Executive Secretary.  The Development Services Director shall also be an 

ex-officio member of the Planning and Zoning Commission but shall have 

no vote in any of the meetings or proceedings of such Commission.  (Ord. 

859, 10-24-72); (Ord. No. 2007-09, Amended 02/06/2007) 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0004 ORGANIZATION AND RULES: 

 

The Commission shall elect a Chairman from among the citizen members and 

shall elect such other officers as it may determine.  The term of 

Chairman shall be one year with eligibility for re-election.  The 

Commission shall hold at least one regular meeting each month.  It shall 

adopt rules for the transaction of business and keep a record of its 

resolutions, transactions, findings and determinations, which shall be a 

public record.  (Ord. 339, 10-8-45) 

 

A quorum shall be one more than half of the voting membership of the 

Commission. 

 

(Ord. No. 2007-09, Amended 02/06/2007) 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0005 DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS: 

 

The Mayor and Council may, by resolution or otherwise, request from the 

Commission a report or recommendation in connection with any matter 

relating to the physical development of the City.  The Commission shall 

have authority to make such investigations, maps and reports and 

recommendations in connection therewith as seem desirable. 

 

In every case where the Commission disapproves a matter which, under the 

terms of this Chapter the Mayor and Council are required officially to 

submit to the Commission for approval, disapproval or recommendation, 

the Commission shall communicate its reasons to the Mayor and Council 

which shall have the power to overrule the disapproval.  Failure of the 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 4 

Commission to act within thirty (30) days from the date of official 

submission to it, or such longer period as may be designated by the 

Mayor and Council, shall be deemed to be approval. 

 

In every case, all decisions of the Planning and Zoning Commission may 

be appealed to the City Council by any interested party, a taxpayer, or 

a City official, and such appeal will be heard within thirty (30) days 

of the taking of the action appealed from.  (Ord. 859, 10-24-72) 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0006 MASTER PLAN: 

 

The Commission shall formulate and adopt a comprehensive and long-term 

Master Plan for the development of the City and of any land outside the 

City which, in the opinion of the Commission, bears a relation to the 

planning of the City, and to make changes in, additions to or extensions 

of such Plan.  The Master Plan with the accompanying maps, plats, charts 

and descriptive matter shall show the Commission's recommendations for 

the development of said territory including, among other things: 

 

A. The general location, character and extent of streets, parks, 

playgrounds, squares, waterways, aviation fields and other public ways, 

grounds and open spaces. 

 

B. The general location of public buildings and other public property. 

 

C. The general location and extent of public utilities for water, 

light, sanitation, transportation, communication, power and other 

purposes. 

 

 The removal, relocation, widening, narrowing, vacating, abandonment, 

change of use or extension of any of the foregoing ways, grounds, open 

spaces, buildings, property, utilities or terminals. 

 

E. The general character, location and extent of community centers or 

housing developments. 

 

F. A zoning plan and regulations as hereinafter provided. 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0007 PURPOSES OF MASTER PLAN: 

 

In the preparation of the Master Plan, the Commission shall make careful 

and comprehensive surveys and studies of present conditions and 

prospective future growth of the territory under its jurisdiction.  The 

Master Plan shall be made with the general purpose of guiding and 

accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development of the 

City which will, in accordance with present and future needs and 

resources, best promote health, safety, morals, order, convenience, 

prosperity and general welfare. 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0008 ADOPTION OF MASTER PLAN: 

 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 5 

The Commission may adopt the Master Plan as a whole by a single 

resolution, or it may, by successive resolutions, adopt separate parts 

of the Plan corresponding with functional divisions of the subject 

matter of the Plan.  Before the adoption of the Plan or any part, 

amendment, extension or addition, the Commission shall hold at least one 

public hearing thereon.  The adoption of the Plan or any part thereof 

shall be by resolution carried by the affirmative vote of not less than 

five (5) members of the Commission.  The resolution shall refer 

expressly to the maps and descriptive and other matter intended by the 

Commission to form the whole or part of the Master Plan, and the action 

taken shall be entered upon the map, Plan and descriptive matter over 

the signature of the Chairman or Secretary of the Commission.  The map, 

Plan and descriptive matter shall be a public record. 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0009 LEGAL STATUS OF MASTER PLAN: 

 

The legal status of the adopted Master Plan or any part thereof shall be 

that of an official guide for the Commission in the performance of its 

duties and functions under this Chapter.  Whenever the Commission shall 

have adopted and the Mayor and Council approved the Master Plan or part 

thereof, thereafter, before any street, park or other public way, ground 

or space, public building or structure, public utility facility or any 

other public work shall be authorized or constructed in the City, the 

location, character and extent thereof shall be submitted for approval, 

disapproval or recommendation to the Commission.  The Commission shall 

be guided by the provisions of the Master Plan in making its 

recommendation.  The acceptance, widening, removal, extension, 

relocation, narrowing, vacation, abandonment, change of use, acquisition 

of land for, or sale or lease of any public street, park or other public 

way, ground or space, any public building or structure, any public 

utility facility or any other public work shall be subject to similar 

submission. 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0010 ACT AS ZONING COMMISSION: 

 

The City Planning and Zoning Commission created in this Chapter shall be 

and act as the Zoning Commission of the City, and all duties and powers 

granted to zoning commissions under State law shall be exercised by the 

City Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 

Before any change in or departure from the text of the zoning 

regulations or map shall be made by the Mayor and Council, it shall 

first submit such changes to the Commission for its approval, 

disapproval or suggestion. 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0011 PREPARE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS: 

 

The City Planning and Zoning Commission shall prepare regulations 

governing the subdivision of land in accordance with sections 9-463 to 

9-463.04 of the Arizona Revised Statutes.  Such regulations may provide 

for the following: 

 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 6 

A. The harmonious development of the City and such territory outside of 

the corporate limits of the City over which the Mayor and Council have 

platting jurisdiction under sections 9-474 to 9-479, inclusive, and 

section 9-1141 of the Arizona Revised Statutes. 

 

B. The coordination of streets within subdivisions with other existing 

or planned streets or with other features of the adopted Master Plan. 

 

C. Adequate open spaces for traffic, recreation, light and air. 

 

D. The conservation of or production of adequate transportation, water 

drainage and sanitary facilities. 

 

E. The avoidance of population congestion. 

 

The regulations shall be published as provided by law for the 

publication of ordinances and before adoption a public hearing shall be 

held thereon. 

 

A copy thereof shall be certified by the Commission to the Mayor, 

Council and the Board of Supervisors. 

 

After the Commission has adopted and the Mayor and Council approved said 

subdivision regulations, the Mayor and Council shall not approve any 

plat of a subdivision presented to it before first submitting the same 

for approval or disapproval to the Commission. 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0012 ADDITIONAL DUTIES: 

 

The Commission shall, from time to time, recommend to the Mayor and 

Council programs for public works and improvements and for the financing 

thereof.  The Commission shall have authority to promote public interest 

in, and understanding of the plans prepared by it and to that end may 

publish and distribute copies of the Master Plan or of any report 

relative thereto, and may employ such other means of publicity and 

education as it may determine. 

 

It shall consult and advise with public officials and agencies, public 

utility companies, civic, educational, professional and other 

organizations, and with citizens in relation to the protecting or 

carrying out of the plans prepared by it.  The Commission shall have the 

right to accept and use gifts for the exercise of its functions.  All 

public officials shall, upon request, furnish to the Commission, within 

a reasonable time, such available information as it may require for its 

work.  The Commission, its members, officers and employees in the 

performance of their functions may enter upon any land and make 

examinations and surveys and place and maintain necessary monuments and 

marks thereon.  In general, the Commission shall have such authority as 

may be necessary to enable it to fulfill its functions, promote planning 

and carry out the purposes of this Chapter. 

 

SECTION 2-01-001-0013 PUBLIC HEARINGS: 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 7 

 

Public notice of any hearing for which provision is made in this Chapter 

shall be deemed to have been given when a notice setting forth the 

general purpose of the hearing, together with the time and place, has 

been published one time in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

City not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the date of the hearing. 

 

Public notice of one or more hearings may be included within the same 

note and a copy thereof posted on a bulletin board in front of the 

regular meeting place of the Mayor and Council.  (Ord. 339, 10-8-45) 

 



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  APPLICANTS

TRAINING 

COMPLETED

1823 W. Heavenly Court

Dorsett, Stephen

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

President/Architect/Shapes & Forms Architects

12/21/2010 12/13 10/20/2011

Work Phone: 928-213-9626

Term: (1st 6/09-12/10; 2nd 12/10-12/13)

2087 Fresh Aire Street

McCarthy, Jim

Flagstaff, AZ  86001-2898

Sr. Project Engineer/Retired from Honeywell

02/05/2008 04/24/2008

Home Phone: 928-779-3748

2315 N. Lantern Ln.

Mercer, Mickey

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Retired School Teacher

No

Cell Phone: 928-853-4064

4053 Gannet Way

Riggs, Tad

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

President/Riggs Homes, Inc.

No

Cell Phone: 928-814-6901

315 S. O'Leary St.

Thibault, Steve

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Realtor, Agent/Century 21 Flagstaff

No

Cell Phone: 928-863-2946

Wednesday, November 27, 2013 Page 1 of 2



City of Flagstaff, AZ

4825 E. Hightimber Lane

Turner, Paul

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Principal/President/Turner Engineering, Inc.

No

Work Phone: 928.779.1814

2787 N. Fairview Dr.

Yelton, Russ

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

President/CEO/NACET

No

Cell Phone: 928-582-6323

Staff Representative: Mark Sawyers

As Of: November 27, 2013

Wednesday, November 27, 2013 Page 2 of 2







1

Stacy Saltzburg

From: noreply@civicplus.com
Sent: Wednesday, November 27, 2013 8:14 AM
To: Elizabeth Burke; Stacy Saltzburg
Subject: Online Form Submittal: Board/Commission Application

If you are having problems viewing this HTML email, click to view a Text version. 

 

 

Board/Commission Application  

 
Important Notice:  

The City Council may consider appointments to boards and commissions in executive sessions which are closed to the 

public, and then make the appointments in a public meeting. You have the right, however, to have your application 

considered in a public meeting by providing a written request to the City Clerk.  

Application to Serve on a Board/Commission  

Please note that this information is public information.  

Date:*  11/27/2013  

Board/Commission you wish to serve on:*  Planning and Zoning  

If applicable, type of seat for which you are qualified:   

Your Information  
 

Name:*  Jim McCarthy  Home Phone:*  928-779-3748  
 

Home Address:*  2087 W. Fresh Aire St.  Zip:*  86001-2898  
 

Mailing Address (If different from above):  same  

Employer:*  Retired from Honeywell  Job Title:*  Engineering Manager  
 

Business Phone:  n.a.  Cell:   
 

E-mail:*  jm436mc@gmail.com  

Indicate preferred telephone:*  (X) Home 

( ) Work 
 

( ) Cell 
 

 

Background Information  
 

Please explain how your community activities and other relevant experience/interests are applicable to this board or 

commission.*  

I served one full- and one-partial term on P&Z. I have a Master of Environmental Planning from ASU, which is similar 

to a city planning degree but with study on both the built and unbuilt environments. I have studied land use planning 

here and similar study in Europe. My BS is in mechanical engineering – the profession where I gained technical and 

business experience. I own four properties, three in Flagstaff, which gives me another type of experience.  

 

Why do you want to serve on the board or commission you listed?*  

For our form of government to function fairly and efficiently, citizens must be involved. My goal is to protect our 

Flagstaff character while never compromising private property rights. I have been a productive P&Z member and 

bring balance to the commission. A few weeks ago, I applied for a position on the Water Commission. I thought that I 

could not reapply for P&Z because I had served two terms. I now understand that since my first term was a partial 

term, I may apply for a second full term. I would be pleased to serve on either commission.  

 

By submitting this electronic form, I acknowledge that any information provided above is public information, and I 

certify that I meet the City Charter requirement of living within the Flagstaff City limits and have read and understand 

the right to have my application considered in a public meeting.  
 

  
 

* indicates required fields.  
 

 

 

 

The following form was submitted via your website: Board/Commission Application 

 

Date:: 11/27/2013 

 

Board/Commission you wish to serve on:: Planning and Zoning 

 



2

If applicable, type of seat for which you are qualified::  

 

Name:: Jim McCarthy 

 

Home Phone:: 928-779-3748 

 

Home Address:: 2087 W. Fresh Aire St. 

 

Zip:: 86001-2898 

 

Mailing Address (If different from above):: same 

 

Employer:: Retired from Honeywell 

 

Job Title:: Engineering Manager 

 

Business Phone:: n.a. 

 

Cell::  

 

E-mail:: jm436mc@gmail.com 

 

Indicate preferred telephone:: Home 

 

Please explain how your community activities and other relevant experience/interests are applicable to this 

board or commission.: I served one full- and one-partial term on P&Z. I have a Master of Environmental 

Planning from ASU, which is similar to a city planning degree but with study on both the built and unbuilt 

environments. I have studied land use planning here and similar study in Europe. My BS is in mechanical 

engineering – the profession where I gained technical and business experience. I own four properties, three in 

Flagstaff, which gives me another type of experience. 

 

Why do you want to serve on the board or commission you listed?: For our form of government to function 

fairly and efficiently, citizens must be involved. My goal is to protect our Flagstaff character while never 

compromising private property rights. I have been a productive P&Z member and bring balance to the 

commission.  

A few weeks ago, I applied for a position on the Water Commission. I thought that I could not reapply for P&Z 

because I had served two terms. I now understand that since my first term was a partial term, I may apply for a 

second full term. I would be pleased to serve on either commission. 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information: 
Form submitted on: 11/27/2013 8:13:50 AM 
Submitted from IP Address: 184.98.129.90 
Referrer Page: http://www.flagstaff.az.gov/index.aspx?NID=1886 
Form Address: http://az-flagstaff3.civicplus.com/Forms.aspx?FID=166  



















  7. D.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stacy Saltzburg, Deputy City Clerk

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration of Appointments:  Sustainability Commission. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Make three appointments to terms expiring October 2016.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
By making the above appointments, the Sustainability Commission will be at full membership and will be
able to continue meeting on a regular basis. There are eight new applications on file, they are as follows:

Dominique Bain (new applicant)
Todd Barnell (new applicant)
Molly Groyer (new applicant)
Branden Jordan (new applicant)
Ted Martinez (new applicant)
Kevin Ordean (new applicant)
Jeffrey Stevenson (new applicant)
Ellen Vaughn (new applicant)

Financial Impact:
These are voluntary positions and there is no budgetary impact to the City of Flagstaff.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
None.

Options and Alternatives:
1) Appoint three Commissioners: By appointing members at this time, the Sustainability Commission will
be at full membership, allowing the group to meet and provide recommendations to the City Council.

2) Table the action to allow for further discussion or expand the list of candidates.



Background/History:
The Sustainability Commission consists of seven citizens serving three-year terms. There are
currently three seats available.

The commission is responsible for recommending and coordinating activities in concert with the Flagstaff
sustainability program, the U.S. Mayors’ Climate Protection Agreement, and other sustainability
initiatives. To accomplish these objectives, the commission will address issues including, but not limited
to: climate and air quality; transportation; energy; solid waste and toxic substances; water, wastewater,
and stormwater; sustainable building and purchasing practices; and sustainable economic development.
Among the commission’s directives are promotion of sustainable practices in all spheres of life and
educating the public.

Key Considerations:
It is important to fill the vacancies so as to allow the Commission to continue meeting on a regular basis.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The City's boards, commissions, and committees were created to foster public participation and input
and to encourage Flagstaff citizens to take an active role in city government. 

Community Involvement:
INFORM: The vacancies are posted on the City's website and individual recruitment and mention of the
openings by Board members and City staff has occurred, informing others of these vacancies through
word of mouth. 

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
COUNCIL INTERVIEW TEAM:
Councilmember Woodson
Councilmember Overton

Attachments:  Sustainability Roster
Sustainability Authority
Sustainability Applicant Roster
Sustainability Applications



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION  MEMBERS

TRAINING 

COMPLETED

4858 E. Merriam Dr.

Dorfsmith, Elisha

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Owner of dorfsmith.com/Self Employed

01/15/2013 10/15 03/12/2013

Cell Phone: 928-864-6310

Term: (1st 1/13-10/15)

4045 Lake Mary Road #32

Farretta, Kathy

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Education Program Manager/Museum of No. 
Arizona

11/01/2011 10/14 02/16/2012

Cell Phone: 380-1308

Term: (1st 9/10 - 10/11; 2nd 10/11-10/14)

6235 N Dodge Ave

Lucy, Kimberly

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Grand Canyon Program Coordinator/Arizona 
Raft Adventures

02/15/2011 10/13 02/16/2012

Cell Phone: 928-221-1994

Term: (1st 2/11-10/13)

1916 N. Marion

Norris, Jodi

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Quantitative Ecologist/National Park Service

05/07/2013 10/14 No

Cell Phone: 928-310-6495

Term: (1st 5/13-10/14)

Thursday, November 21, 2013 Page 1 of 2



City of Flagstaff, AZ

3222 S. Mehrhoff Place

Tecle, Aregai

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Professor/Northern Arizona University - School 
of Forestry

03/06/2012 10/13 No

Home Phone: 928-214-9720

Term: (1st 3/12-10/13)

2600 East 7th #18

Welch, Jack

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Retired

12/18/2012 10/15 04/24/2008

Home Phone: (928) 714-0504

Term: (1st 4/09-10/09; 2nd 10/09-10/12; 3rd 
10/12-10/15)

Z-VACANT, 10/16 No

Staff Representative: Nicole Woodman

As Of: November 21, 2013

Thursday, November 21, 2013 Page 2 of 2



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 35 

CHAPTER 2-17 

SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION 

 

 

SECTIONS 

 

2-17-001-0001 COMMISSION ESTABLISHED; ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

2-17-001-0002 PURPOSE; POWERS AND DUTIES 

 

 

SECTION 2-17-001-0001 COMMISSION ESTABLISHED; ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

 

A. ESTABLISHMENT OF THE COMMISSION. 

 

1. There is hereby created the Sustainability Commission (the 

“Commission”), which shall replace the Clean and Green 

Committee; 

 

2. The membership of the Commission shall consist of seven (7) 

members.  Members of the Commission shall be appointed by the 

City Council and shall represent the diverse interests and 

views of the community.  The Commission shall be a working 

Commission, in which each member takes an active role in 

accomplishing the goals and objectives of the Commission.  

Members shall serve a term of three (3) years with no member 

appointed for more than two (2) full consecutive terms. 

 

3. The Commission shall be responsible for electing a Chair and a 

Vice-Chair.  The Chair shall act as public spokesperson for the 

Commission at public functions, shall serve as an ex-officio 

member of all standing committees, shall appoint the chair of 

all standing committees upon the advice and consent of the 

Commission, and shall perform other duties as required.  The 

Vice-Chair shall act in the absence of the Chair.  

 

4. The City Council may appoint a non-voting Councilmember Liaison 

who shall not count toward a quorum.   

 

SECTION 2-17-001-0002 PURPOSE; POWERS AND DUTIES 

 

The purpose of this Commission shall be to continue the work initiated 

by the Clean and Green Committee and to further work with the City 

Council and the City Staff by recommending and coordinating activities 

as part of the Flagstaff Sustainability Program, the U.S. Mayors Climate 

Protection Agreement, and any future sustainability initiatives pursued 

by the City.   

 

Subject to state law and the procedures prescribed herein, the 

Sustainability Commission shall have and may exercise the following 

powers, duties, and responsibilities: 

 



 

TITLE 2 - PAGE 36 

A. The Commission shall work with City staff toward the 

development and implementation of the Flagstaff Sustainability 

Program.  The issues addressed by this program may include, but 

not be limited to, the following: 

 

1. Climate and air quality 

2. Transportation 

3. Energy 

4. Solid waste and toxic substances 

5. Water, wastewater, and stormwater 

6. Sustainable building and purchasing practices 

7. Sustainable economic development 

 

B. The Commission shall work with the City staff toward the 

development and implementation of the U.S. Mayors Climate 

Protection Agreement and any future sustainability initiatives 

passed by the City Council. 

 

C. The Commission shall work with the City Council in the 

development of initiatives linking the concepts of 

sustainability with economic development and affordability for 

the benefit of all community members. 

 

D. The Commission shall promote the benefits of sustainable 

practices in all spheres of life and shall educate the public 

concerning such practices. 

 

E. The Commission shall promote compliance with City ordinances 

concerning sustainability and environmental management. 

 

F. The Commission shall encourage sustainable practices by 

individuals, groups, organizations, industrial and commercial 

enterprises, educational institutions, and government agencies. 

 

(Ord. 2007-27, Amended 04/17/2007) 



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION  APPLICANTS

TRAINING 

COMPLETED

2627 N. Rose #3

Bain, Dominique

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

GK-12 Fellow/National Science Foundation

No

601 W. Whipple

Barnell, Todd

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Program Manager/Institute for Tribal 
Environmental Professionals

No

Home Phone: 928-774-7098

813 W. University Ave. #613

Groyer, Molly

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Student Worker Supervisor/NAU Financial Aid

No

Cell Phone: 602-373-4255

PO Box 544

Jordan, Branden

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Fire Science Student/Arizona 
Snowbowl/Student

No

Home Phone: 928-237-3757

2620 N. Center St.

Martinez, Ted

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Honors Lecturer/NAU

No

Work Phone: 928-523-3383

Monday, November 25, 2013 Page 1 of 2



City of Flagstaff, AZ

813 W. Clay Ave, B

Ordean, Kevin

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

NAU

No

Cell Phone: 928-600-0654

1741 N. Fairway Dr.

Stevenson, Jeffrey

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Assistant to the CEO/Good Pay Low Rates, Inc.

No

Cell Phone: 928-522-4133

1988 N. Southern Hills Dr.

Vaughan, Ellen

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Manager, Office of Sustainability/Northern 
Arizona University

No

Cell Phone: 315-472-7959

Staff Representative: Nicole Woodman

As Of: November 25, 2013

Monday, November 25, 2013 Page 2 of 2









































  8. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stacy Saltzburg, Deputy City Clerk

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Action on Liquor License Application:  Sucheewa Buschmann, "Ewa's Thai
Cuisine", 110 S. San Francisco St., Series 12 (restaurant), New License.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Hold Public Hearing
The City Council has the option to:
2) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval;
3) Forward the application to the State with no recommendation; or
4) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial based on the testimony
received at the public hearing and/or other factors.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Sucheewa Buschmann is the agent for a new Series 12 (restaurant) liquor license for Ewa's Thai
Cuisine.  

Financial Impact:
There is no budgetary impact to the City of Flagstaff as this is a recommendation to the State.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance (Regulatory action)

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Not applicable.

Options and Alternatives:
1) Table the item if additional information or time is needed.
2) Make no recommendation.
3) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval.
4) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial, stating the reasons for such
recommendation. 



Background/History:
An application for a new Series 12 liquor license was received from Sucheewa Buschmann for Ewa's
Thai Cuisine.

A background investigation performed by Sgt. Matt Wright of the Flagstaff Police Department resulted in
a recommendation for approval.

A background investigation performed by Gregory Brooks, Code Compliance Officer resulted in no active
code violations being reported.

Sales tax and licensing information was reviewed by Ranbir Cheema, Tax, Licensing & Revenue
Manager, who stated that the business is in compliance with the tax and licensing requirements of the
City.

Key Considerations:
Because the application is for a new license, consideration may be given to both the location and the
applicant's personal qualifications.

A Series 12 license allows the holder of a restaurant license to sell and serve spirituous liquor solely for
consumption on the premises of an establishment which derives at least forty percent (40%) of its gross
revenue from the sale of food.

The deadline for issuing a recommendation on this application is December 5, 2013.

The applicant is not required to provide the distance between the applicant’s business and the nearest
church or school for government; and the State does not require a geological map or list of licenses in
the vicinity for any license series.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
This business will contribute to the tax base of the community.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The application was properly posted on November 5, 2013.

No written protests have been received to date.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
1) Table the item if additional information or time is needed.
2) Make no recommendation.
3) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval.
4) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial, stating the reasons for such
recommendation. 

Attachments:  Ewa's - Letter to Applicant
Hearing Procedures
Series 12 Description
Ewa's - PD Memo
Ewa's - Code Memo
Ewa's - Tax Memo





OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK

November 21, 2013

Ewa’s Thai Cuisine
Attn: Sucheewa Buschmann
677 N. Foxhill Rd.
Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Dear Sucheewa:

Your application for a new Series 12 liquor license for Ewa’s Thai Cuisine at 110 S. San 
Francisco St. was posted on November 5, 2013. The City Council will consider the application at 
a public hearing during their regularly scheduled City Council Meeting on Tuesday, December 
3, 2013 which begins at 4:00 p.m.

It is important that you or your representative attend this Council Meeting and be prepared to 
answer any questions that the City Council may have.  Failure to be available for questions could 
result in a recommendation for denial of your application.  We suggest that you contact your legal 
counsel or the Department of Liquor Licenses and Control at 602-542-5141 to determine the 
criteria for your license.  To help you understand how the public hearing process will be 
conducted, we are enclosing a copy of the City’s liquor license application hearing procedures.

The twenty-day posting period for your liquor license application will expire on November 25, 
2013 and the application may be removed from the premises at that time.

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 928-213-2077.

Sincerely,

Stacy Saltzburg
Deputy City Clerk

Enclosure



GA02 2005-350/060321 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Flagstaff 
 
 

Liquor License Application 
Hearing Procedures 

 
 

1. When the matter is reached at the Council meeting, the presiding officer will accept a 
motion to open the public hearing on the item.   

 
2. The presiding officer will request that the Applicant come forward to address the Council 

regarding the application in a presentation not exceeding ten (10) minutes.  Council may 
question the Applicant regarding the testimony or other evidence provided by the 
Applicant. 

 
3. The presiding officer will then ask whether City staff have information to present to the 

Council regarding the application.  Staff should come forward at this point and present 
information to the Council in a presentation not exceeding ten (10) minutes.  Council may 
question City staff regarding the testimony or other evidence provided by City staff. 

 
4. Other parties, if any, may then testify, limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Council may 

question these parties regarding the testimony they present to the Council. 
 
5. The Applicant may make a concise closing statement to the Council, limited to five (5) 

minutes.  During this statement, Council may ask additional questions of the Applicant. 
 
6. City staff may make a concise closing statement to the Council, limited to five (5) minutes.  

During this statement, Council may ask additional questions of City Staff. 
 
7. By motion, Council will then close the public hearing. 
 
8. By motion, the Council will then vote to forward the application to the State with a 

recommendation of approval, disapproval, or shall vote to forward with no 
recommendation. 

 
 





License Types: Series 12 Restaurant License

Non-transferable
On-sale retail privileges 
Note: Terms in BOLD CAPITALS are defined in the glossary. 

PURPOSE: 
Allows the holder of a restaurant license to sell and serve spirituous liquor solely for 
consumption on the premises of an establishment which derives at least forty percent (40%) 
of its gross revenue from the sale of food. 

ADDITIONAL RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
An applicant for a restaurant license must file a copy of its restaurant menu and Restaurant 
Operation Plan with the application. The Plan must include listings of all restaurant equipment 
and service items, the restaurant seating capacity, and other information requested by the
department to substantiate that the restaurant will operate in compliance with Title 4. 

The licensee must notify the Department, in advance, of any proposed changes in the seating 
capacity of the restaurant or dimensions of a restaurant facility. 

A restaurant licensee must maintain complete restaurant services continually during the hours 
of selling and serving of spirituous liquor, until at least 10:00 p.m. daily, if any spirituous liquor 
is to be sold and served up to 2:00 a.m. 

On any original applications, new managers and/or the person responsible for the day-to-day 
operations must attend a basic and management training class. 

A licensee acting as a RETAIL AGENT, authorized to purchase and accept DELIVERY of 
spirituous liquor by other licensees, must receive a certificate of registration from the 
Department. 

A PREGNANCY WARNING SIGN for pregnant women consuming spirituous liquor must be 
posted within twenty (20) feet of the cash register or behind the bar. 

A log must be kept by the licensee of all persons employed at the premises including each 
employee's name, date and place of birth, address and responsibilities. 

Bar, beer and wine bar, and restaurant licensees must pay an annual surcharge of $20.00. 
The money collected from these licensees will be used by the Department for an auditor to 
review compliance by restaurants with the restaurant licensing provisions of ARS 4-205.02. 

http://www.azliquor.gov/licensing/glossary.asp


 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Memo # 13-109-01 

 
TO:  Chief Kevin Treadway 
 
FROM: Sgt. Matt Wright    
 
DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
RE: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION – SERIES 12- FOR “Ewa’s Thai 

Cuisine” 
 
 
 
On August 9, 2013, I initiated an investigation into an application for a series 12 (restaurant) 
liquor license filed by Sucheewa Buschmann (Agent/Controlling Person). Sucheewa Buschmann 
(also known as “Ewa”) is the sole owner of Ewa’s Thai Cuisine located at 110 S. San Francisco 
in Flagstaff. Sucheewa will also run the day to day operations. Ewa’s Thai Cuisine is currently 
open for business after extensive renovations were completed. This application is for a series 12 
license #12033350.  
 
I conducted a query through local systems and public access on Sucheewa Buschmann and I 
found no derogatory records. I learned Sucheewa was a part owner of Pato Thai Cuisine located 
at 104 N. San Francisco but has recently sold her share of the restaurant to start her own. When I 
spoke with Sucheewa she denied having any past or present violations from the Department of 
Liquor. I spoke with Sucheewa who advised she herself has never received any liquor law 
violations and has never been arrested. I asked Sucheewa about the mandatory liquor law 
training course. Sucheewa stated she had completed the mandatory classes and provided proof.  
 
As a result of this investigation the recommendation to Council is for approval of the series 12 
license.  
 
 
 
 
 





� Page 1 

      Memo 
To: Stacy Saltzberg, Deputy City Clerk 

From: Ranbir Cheema - Tax, Licensing & Revenue Manager 

Date: November 13, 2013 

Re: Series 12 Liquor License – New License – Ewa’s Thai Cuisine 

Ewa’s Thai Cuisine LLC DBA Ewa’s Thai Cuisine is properly licensed with the City for 
Transaction Privilege Tax purposes. They are current in their tax returns filing and 
payment of sales tax to the City. At this time, they are in full compliance of the City 
sales tax code requirements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

/liquor licenses/Ewa’s Thai Cuisine.doc 



  8. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stacy Saltzburg, Deputy City Clerk

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Action on Liquor License Application:  Cecily Slift-Maniaci, "The Toasted Owl
Cafe", 121 E. Birch Ave., Series 12 (restaurant), New License.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Hold the Public Hearing
The City Council has the option to:
2) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval;
3) Forward the application to the State with no recommendation; or
4) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial based on the testimony
received at the public hearing and/or other factors.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Cecily Clift-Maniaci is the agent for a new Series 12 (restaurant) liquor license for The Toasted Owl
Cafe.  

Financial Impact:
There is no budgetary impact to the City of Flagstaff as this is a recommendation to the State.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance (Regulatory action)

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Not applicable.

Options and Alternatives:
1) Table the item if additional information or time is needed.
2) Make no recommendation.
3) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval.
4) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial, stating the reasons for such
recommendation. 



Background/History:
An application for a new Series 12 liquor license was received from Cecily Clft-Maniaci for The Toasted
Owl Cafe.

A background investigation performed by Sgt. Matt Wright of the Flagstaff Police Department resulted in
a recommendation for approval.

A background investigation performed by Gregory Brooks, Code Compliance Officer resulted in no active
code violations being reported.

Sales tax and licensing information was reviewed by Ranbir Cheema, Tax, Licensing & Revenue
Manager, who stated that the business is in compliance with the tax and licensing requirements of the
City.

Key Considerations:
Because the application is for a new license, consideration may be given to both the location and the
applicant's personal qualifications.

A Series 12 license allows the holder of a restaurant license to sell and serve spirituous liquor solely for
consumption on the premises of an establishment which derives at least forty percent (40%) of its gross
revenue from the sale of food.

The deadline for issuing a recommendation on this application is December 5, 2013.

The applicant is not required to provide the distance between the applicant’s business and the nearest
church or school for government; and the State does not require a geological map or list of licenses in
the vicinity for any license series.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
This business will contribute to the tax base of the community.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The application was properly posted on November 1, 2013.

No written protests have been received to date.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
1) Table the item if additional information or time is needed.
2) Make no recommendation.
3) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for approval.
4) Forward the application to the State with a recommendation for denial, stating the reasons for such
recommendation. 

Attachments:  Toasted Owl - Letter to Applicant
Hearing Procedures
Series 12 Description
Toasted Owl - PD Memo
Toasted Owl - Code Memo
Toasted Owl - Tax Memo





OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK

November 21, 2013

The Toasted Owl Cafe
Attn: Cecily Clift-Maniaci
PO Box 1808
Grand Canyon, AZ  86023

Dear Ms. Clift-Maniaci:

Your application for a new Series 12 liquor license for The Toasted Owl Cafe at 121 E. Birch 
Ave. was posted on November 1, 2013. The City Council will consider the application at a public 
hearing during their regularly scheduled City Council Meeting on Tuesday, December 3, 2013 
which begins at 4:00 p.m.

It is important that you or your representative attend this Council Meeting and be prepared to 
answer any questions that the City Council may have.  Failure to be available for questions could 
result in a recommendation for denial of your application.  We suggest that you contact your legal 
counsel or the Department of Liquor Licenses and Control at 602-542-5141 to determine the 
criteria for your license.  To help you understand how the public hearing process will be 
conducted, we are enclosing a copy of the City’s liquor license application hearing procedures.

The twenty-day posting period for your liquor license application expired on November 21, 2013 
and the application may be removed from the premises at this time.

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 928-213-2077.

Sincerely,

Stacy Saltzburg
Deputy City Clerk

Enclosure



GA02 2005-350/060321 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Flagstaff 
 
 

Liquor License Application 
Hearing Procedures 

 
 

1. When the matter is reached at the Council meeting, the presiding officer will accept a 
motion to open the public hearing on the item.   

 
2. The presiding officer will request that the Applicant come forward to address the Council 

regarding the application in a presentation not exceeding ten (10) minutes.  Council may 
question the Applicant regarding the testimony or other evidence provided by the 
Applicant. 

 
3. The presiding officer will then ask whether City staff have information to present to the 

Council regarding the application.  Staff should come forward at this point and present 
information to the Council in a presentation not exceeding ten (10) minutes.  Council may 
question City staff regarding the testimony or other evidence provided by City staff. 

 
4. Other parties, if any, may then testify, limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Council may 

question these parties regarding the testimony they present to the Council. 
 
5. The Applicant may make a concise closing statement to the Council, limited to five (5) 

minutes.  During this statement, Council may ask additional questions of the Applicant. 
 
6. City staff may make a concise closing statement to the Council, limited to five (5) minutes.  

During this statement, Council may ask additional questions of City Staff. 
 
7. By motion, Council will then close the public hearing. 
 
8. By motion, the Council will then vote to forward the application to the State with a 

recommendation of approval, disapproval, or shall vote to forward with no 
recommendation. 

 
 





License Types: Series 12 Restaurant License

Non-transferable
On-sale retail privileges 
Note: Terms in BOLD CAPITALS are defined in the glossary. 

PURPOSE: 
Allows the holder of a restaurant license to sell and serve spirituous liquor solely for 
consumption on the premises of an establishment which derives at least forty percent (40%) 
of its gross revenue from the sale of food. 

ADDITIONAL RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
An applicant for a restaurant license must file a copy of its restaurant menu and Restaurant 
Operation Plan with the application. The Plan must include listings of all restaurant equipment 
and service items, the restaurant seating capacity, and other information requested by the
department to substantiate that the restaurant will operate in compliance with Title 4. 

The licensee must notify the Department, in advance, of any proposed changes in the seating 
capacity of the restaurant or dimensions of a restaurant facility. 

A restaurant licensee must maintain complete restaurant services continually during the hours 
of selling and serving of spirituous liquor, until at least 10:00 p.m. daily, if any spirituous liquor 
is to be sold and served up to 2:00 a.m. 

On any original applications, new managers and/or the person responsible for the day-to-day 
operations must attend a basic and management training class. 

A licensee acting as a RETAIL AGENT, authorized to purchase and accept DELIVERY of 
spirituous liquor by other licensees, must receive a certificate of registration from the 
Department. 

A PREGNANCY WARNING SIGN for pregnant women consuming spirituous liquor must be 
posted within twenty (20) feet of the cash register or behind the bar. 

A log must be kept by the licensee of all persons employed at the premises including each 
employee's name, date and place of birth, address and responsibilities. 

Bar, beer and wine bar, and restaurant licensees must pay an annual surcharge of $20.00. 
The money collected from these licensees will be used by the Department for an auditor to 
review compliance by restaurants with the restaurant licensing provisions of ARS 4-205.02. 

http://www.azliquor.gov/licensing/glossary.asp


 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

13-104-01 

 

TO:  Chief Kevin Treadway 

 

FROM: Sgt. Matt Wright    

 

DATE: November 1, 2013 

 

RE: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION – SERIES 12- FOR “The Toasted 

Owl” 

 

 

 

On November 1, 2013 I initiated an investigation into an application for a series 12 (restaurant) 

liquor license filed by Cecily Maniaci the owner of The Toasted Owl. Cecily Maniaci is the only 

listed owner and operator on the license. Cecily will run the day to day operations.  The 

restaurant is located at 121 E. Birch Avenue in downtown Flagstaff.  This application is for a 

series 12 license #12033351.  

 

I conducted a query through local systems and public access on Cecily Maniaci. No derogatory 

records were found. Cecily has attended the mandatory liquor law training course and provided 

proof.  I spoke with Cecily who stated she had never been arrested, and has ownership of three 

other liquor licenses. Cecily said she has never received any liquor law violations. The Toasted 

Owl is currently open for business and operating without a liquor license until the approval of 

this application.   

 

As a result of this investigation the recommendation to Council is for approval of the series 12 

license.  

 

 

 

 

 





� Page 1 

      Memo 
To: Stacy Saltzberg, Deputy City Clerk 

From: Ranbir Cheema - Tax, Licensing & Revenue Manager 

Date: November 13, 2013 

Re: Series 12 Liquor License – New License – The Toasted Owl Cafe 

Crimson Partners LLC DBA The Toasted Owl Café is properly licensed with the City 
for Transaction Privilege Tax purposes. They are current in their tax returns filing and 
payment of sales tax to the City. At this time, they are in full compliance of the City 
sales tax code requirements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

/liquor licenses/Toasted Owl.doc 



  9. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: James Duval, Sr. Project Manager 

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Third Amendment to Transit Service Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) to provide City Project Management Services to the Northern Arizona
Intergovernmental Public Transportation  Authority (NAIPTA) for the Bus Facility Expansion Project. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Third Amendment to the Transportation Service Intergovernmental Agreement with the
Northern Arizona Intergovernmental Public Transit Authority (NAIPTA).

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Approving the Third Amendment to the Transit Service  Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) will allow the
City and NAIPTA to move forward with Project Management and contract administration for the NAIPTA 
Bus Facility Expansion Project.

Financial Impact:
NAIPTA will reimburse the City for Project Management Services in an amount not to exceed $70,000.00.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Yes - the original IGA was approved by Council on July 1, 2006, and this was the first IGA between
NAIPTA and the City to establish Transit Services. The first amendment to the IGA was approved by
Council on June 18, 2008 and established an agreement in the construction and development of a
Parking Lot and Transfer Center on Phoenix Avenue between Mike’s Pike and Beaver St.  The second
amendment to the IGA was approved by Council and authorized the construction of the NAIPTA Comfort
Station on December 12, 2011 at the Downtown Transfer Station.

Options and Alternatives:
Approve the IGA as presented
Provide direction for revisions and further Council consideration
Reject the IGA and inform NAIPTA that Project Management and Federal grant compliance during
construction will not be provided by the City



Background/History:
NAIPTA's recent approval of the Flagstaff Regional 5-year and Long Range Transit Plan, along with the
2008 voter approved ballot measures 402 and 403, call for an increased frequency and route expansion,
which are planned for FY 2015. Ballot measures 402 and 403 as approved by Voters, and currently in
place, are the extension and increase of a dedicated transit tax, expanded services and frequency, the
development and operations of Mountain Link, and the purchase of hybrid-electric buses.  Based on
these factors, NAIPTA’s growth is necessitating the construction of a dedicated bus storage facility, wash
bay, and fuel island. 
 
This proposed construction is the final phase of NAIPTA's Transit Operations Center which is jointly
funded by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), the State of Arizona, Coconino County, and the City. 
The Phase 1 buildings were constructed and completed almost six years ago as part of a full
rehabilitation of an existing car dealership. The rehabilitation and construction served as Phase 1 of a
two-phase build-out.  Unfortunately, at that time, adequate funds were not available to complete the bus
storage facility.  Current maintenance facilities serve as covered parking for a maximum of 13 buses. 
Until the Mountain Link route expansion, this existing facility provided reasonable accommodations for
approximately 70% of the fleet.  Through the addition of Mountain Link in 2011, roughly half of NAIPTA's
fleet is now left uncovered nightly.   The proposed facility expansion will satisfy NAIPTA’s current needs
and it will provide adequate fleet storage for planned route expansions in FY 2015. FTA has provided
direction to transit systems across the county to maintain fleets in a “State of Good Repair”.  
 
With the inclusion of a bus wash facility on site, NAIPTA understands the importance of daily
preventative maintenance.  This facility will reduce current washing labor by 50% and water usage by
about 40%, as well as staff resources. The addition of the fuel island will yield approximately $50,000
annual savings in off-site fuel costs and operator expenses, as the fixed-route drivers’ travel about a mile
off-route to re-fuel before bringing the bus back to the Transit Operations Center. 
 
NAIPTA has started the process for the design and construction of the Bus Facility Expansion Project.  
This project is funded in part by FTA grant monies.  NAIPTA has completed the qualifications based
selection process for the selection of a Design Build Contractor.  On September 20, 2013, NAIPTA
signed a contract with Kinney Construction Services of Flagstaff, Arizona to provide the design and
construction services for the Bus Facility Expansion Project.   

Key Considerations:
It is NAIPTA’s desire to have the City provide Project Management and contract administration services
for the Design Build contract for the Bus Facility Expansion Project.   NAIPTA will reimburse the City for
this service.  It is anticipated that Project Management services will take approximately 570 man-hours
for the project spanning the period between design, construction and issuance of the Certificate of
Occupancy.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
The recommended agreement will require NAIPTA to reimburse the City for Project Management
services not to exceed $70,000.  It is anticipated that 570 man-hours will be required to complete the
Project Management services.  The full burden rate for a Senior Project Manager is $122.56/hour. 
NAIPTA will only be billed for hours actually required to complete the City provided services.



Community Benefits and Considerations:
The bus facility expansion project is consistent with the ballot propositions as approved, the overall
objective of the FTA to ensure bus fleets around the county are kept in a state of good repair, the
objectives of the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan, the FMPO Regional
Transportation Plan, and NAIPTA’s 5-year and Long Range Transit Plan.  The expansion facility is
necessary to maintain bus operations in support of the transit route operations.

Community Involvement:
There has been no community involvement specific to this amendment of the IGA.  However, there has
been community involvement in the site planning and Conditional Use Permits issued by the City for the
NAIPTA project.
 
NAIPTA brought this plan expansion forward for discussion and direction with their Board of Directors
(BOD) early in the process.  The BOD approved the pursuit of Federal funds for this project on February
13, 2012.  NAIPTA’s Technical Advisory Committee and BODs has received quarterly updates on the
project’s design and financing progress. 

Site Plan and Conditional Use Permit approvals required a Public Hearing, which was held on April 25,
2012.  Prior to that, NAIPTA held a “Good Neighbor Meeting and Open House” on March 20, 2012 and
staff attended the adjacent neighborhood’s Homeowner’s Association Meeting on April 18, 2012 to
address questions from the public. The neighborhood expressed appreciation in the proposed project,
especially with the internal storage of the fleet. There was also a positive response to having the Vehicle
Pre-trip Inspections occur undercover and not out in the open. 

Attachments:  Vicinity Map
3rd Amendment IGA



NAIPTA Bus Expansion Facility Project

Title:  NAIPTA Bus Expansion Facility

COF Proj. No. 00000

COF File No. 03-13010
November 18, 2013

N

N
A
IP

TA
 O

ffi
ce

s

Project Location

0 80 160 240 32040
Feet

R
t.
 6

6

K
as

p
ar

 D
r.
 

U
.S

. 8
9N



THIRD AMENDMENT TO TRANSIT SERVICE  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 

 AND  

NORTHERN ARIZONA INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC 

 TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (this 
“Third Amendment”) is made and entered into effective as of the ___ day of _____, 
2013 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the City of Flagstaff, an Arizona municipal 
corporation (“City”), and the Northern Arizona Intergovernmental Public Transportation 
Authority (“NAIPTA”)  an corporate body and political subdivision of the State of Arizona  
(“NAIPTA”).  City and NAIPTA are sometimes referred to in this Second Amendment 
collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party.” 

 

RECITALS: 

A. The Parties entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement for transit 
services dated July 1, 2006, (the “Original IGA”) which was amended the agreement on 
June 18, 2008 (the “First Amendment”) and on December 12th 2011 (the “Second 
Amendment”).  The term “Original IGA” as used herein shall mean the Original IGA as 
amended in the First and Second Amendments.  All capitalized terms used without 
definition in this Third Amendment shall have the definitions ascribed to them in the 
Original IGA,  

B. The Parties now desire to amend the Original IGA to provide for the City to 
provide project management services for the construction and development of an 
expanded bus storage and maintenance facility (Bus Facility Expansion) at NAIPTA 
headquarters on property owned by NAIPTA and located at 3773 N Kaspar Avenue, 
Flagstaff, AZ 86004, as described in the Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A,” pursuant to  the terms and conditions contained in this Third Amendment. 

C. Construction of the Bus Facility Expansion will be funded in part through a 
grant from the Federal Transit Authority (“FTA” and the “FTA Grant”), with matching 
funds provided through the dedicated transit tax funds.  The FTA Grant and the 
dedicated transit tax funds are referred to in this Third Amendment as the Federal 
Funds.  Federal law requires that the bus facility be used for transit purposes (as 
defined by the FTA) for a useful life as defined by NAIPTA and approved by FTA in 
federal grant award.   

1 
 



AGREEMENTS: 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties hereby amend the Original IGA as follows: 

1. Section 1, “Obligations of NAIPTA”   is amended by adding new 
Section 1.5 to read: 

1. 5  Bus Facility Expansion Obligations   

1.5.1 NAIPTA will be responsible for planning and 
development of the Property for the Bus Facility Expansion.  
NAIPTA or its Contractor will provide plans and specifications 
of site development to the City. 

1.5.2 NAIPTA shall pay for 100% of cost to design, permit, 
and construct the Bus Facility Expansion.   

1.5.3 NAIPTA shall retain responsibility as the FTA grant 
recipient for grant reporting, closure, repayment, or any other 
fiscal or administrative duties as related to such grant.  

1.5.4 NAIPTA shall be responsible for procurement and 
purchasing of all services, including professional services, and 
all materials, necessary for the development of the Bus Facility 
Expansion, in compliance with FTA procurement regulations. 

2. Section 2, “City’s Obligations” is amended by adding new Section 2.8 to 
read: 

 2.8 Bus Facility Expansion Obligations   

2.8.1 City shall be responsible for providing project management as 
follows: 

2.8.1.1 Act on behalf of the NAIPTA for all day-to-day construction 
related items. 

2.8.1.2 Responsible for overall on-site contract management, 
administration, project controls, and coordination. 

2.8.1.3 On-site management and construction phase 
communication procedures. 

2.8.1.4 Construction Administration procedures. 

2 
 



2.8.1.5 Coordinate with NAIPTA and provide weekly updates on 
progress, quantity calculations, and Federal reporting. 

2.8.1.6 Review Contractor construction schedule(s) and verify 
project tracking.  

2.8.1.7 Interface with the Design-Build Construction Firm on all 
facets of the project 

2.8.1.8 Monitor and enforce contractor compliance with plans, 
specifications 

2.8.1.9 Assist in the timely review and response to requests-for-
information, clarifications, and interpretations of the contract 
documents. 

2.8.1.10 Develop and maintain a professional working relationship 
with the client, contractor, and (as needed) regulatory agencies. 

2.8.1.11 Attend weekly progress / coordination meetings and 
review Contractor meeting minutes. 

2.8.1.12 Review and recommend for approval requests for 
payment. 

2.8.1.13 Present recommendations to Owner on impact of 
construction changes (time and budget). 

2.8.1.14 Verify safety programs and provide report as needed to 
Owner. 

2.8.1.15 Report, track, review and evaluate change orders (time 
and price). 

2.8.1.16 Prepare monthly project progress reports. 

2.8.1.17 Coordinate and oversee Project Close out. 

2.8.1.18 Review record drawings, operations, and maintenance 
materials. 

2.8.1.19 Insure redline As-builts are current and correct. 

2.8.1.20 Assist NAIPTA with procurement and review of Third Party 
independent review of final construction Guaranteed Maximum 
Price. 

2.8.2 City shall be responsible for submitting invoice to NAIPTA for 
service rendered under the terms of this IGA amendment.   

3 
 



3.   Section 3 “Compensation” is amended by adding section 3.5 to read: 

 3.5 NAIPTA shall pay the City of Flagstaff $122.56 per hour for Project 
Management services at a total price not to exceed $70,000 for services rendered 
under the terms of this agreement. 

 4. Incorporation of Recitals and Attachments.  The Recitals are 
acknowledged to be true and correct and are hereby incorporated as agreements 
of the Parties, and the Attachments are incorporated herein as if fully set forth in 
this Third Amendment. 

5. Reaffirmation of Original IGA and Subsequent Amendments.  
Except as amended by this Third Amendment, the Original IGA, the First 
Amendment and the Second Amendment shall remain in full force and effect.  In 
the event of any conflict between this Third Amendment and the Original IGA, the 
First Amendment and the Second Amendment, the terms of this Third 
Amendment shall prevail. 

6. Counterparts.  This Third Amendment may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument, binding on all of the Parties.  The Parties agree 
that this Amendment may be transmitted between them via facsimile.  The Parties 
intend that the faxes signatures constitute original signatures and that a faxed 
agreement containing the signatures (original or faxed) of all the Parties is binding upon 
the Parties. 

 

[Signature page follows]

4 
 



5 
 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Third Amendment 
effective as of the Effective Date set forth above. 

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF    NAIPTA 
 
____________       _____________ 
Jerry Nabours,      Celia Barotz, 
Mayor      Board Chair 
 
Attest:      Attest: 
 
 
___________________    __________________ 
City Clerk      Clerk of the Board 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
___________________    ___________________ 
City Attorney     General Counsel 

 
 

       
 
 
 
 
Attachments: Scope of Services 
 



  9. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: David Wessel, Metro Planning Org Manager

Co-Submitter: Amy Hagin, Senior Procurement Specialist

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Flagstaff Metropolitan Planning Organization
(FMPO) Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) technical update 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Award the contract to Kimley Horn Associates in the amount of $110,000 for consulting services. 

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
The FMPO's Regional Transportation Plan is a federally mandated document that must be updated every
4-5 years.  FMPO works closely with the City and County to coordinate land use and transportation
policy.  The RTP combines policy and funding expectations to create a 20-year plan and program that
serves to direct the expenditure of federal transportation dollars in the region. 

This contract will deliver the data and technical and policy analysis tools required to engage the public in
an informed and meaningful way after the regional plan election tentatively scheduled for May 2014.

Subsidiary Decisions Points: 
The City of Flagstaff serves as fiscal agent for the FMPO.  This task and budget is in the FMPO FY 2014
Unified Plan and Work Program. 

Financial Impact:
$110,000 in federal transportation dollars will pay for this contract.

Throughout the course of this study many city and county staff will be called upon to provide their
expertise on transportation policy, plans, projects and funding.  Their time will be tracked and used as
match against the grant funds.  

Connection to Council Goal:
  1  . Repair Replace maintain infrastructure (streets & utilities)
  5.   Retain, expand, and diversify economic base
  11. Effective governance.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
No.  The Council has approved contracts for past updates to the RTP.



Options and Alternatives:
Remand the contract and scope to FMPO staff or Executive Board for further consideration.  This will
delay the initiation of the project.
Disapprove award of the contract. This will require a new procurement process.

Background/History:
The Flagstaff Metropolitan Planning Organization was established in 1996 when the City reached a
population of 50,000.  Federal law requires formation of an MPO if federal transportation funds are to be
spent in the region.  A regional transportation plan (RTP) is a mandated document for an MPO.  In
addition to the RTP the MPO produces a transportation improvement program listing projects and
planned expenditures and an annual work program.  Both documents must advance the policies and
plans within the RTP.

The Purchasing Section conducted a Request For Proposal (RFP), which was advertised on September
15, 2013.  We received two (2) proposal responses, which were evaluated and scored by an evaluation
committee comprised of five (5) City staff members. The proposal submitted by Kimley Horn Associates
was scored the highest and determined to be the most advantageous for the City.

Key Considerations:
An RTP is mandated
The City and County often use the RTP to inform transportation planning decisions
The RTP and the process to produce it are an excellent means of coordinating efforts between member
agencies.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
The FMPO - through the Executive Board comprised of local elected officials - budgeted $110,000 in
federal funds for this effort.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The RTP helps to set and explain project priorities.  It supplies critical details on policy implementation.  

Community Involvement:
Inform
This project will have limited public involvement and be geared primarily toward data and analytical
preparation in advance of a public outreach and involvement effort in May 2014

Attachments:  Scoring tabulation
Agreement



CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
PURCHASING DIVISION
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN STUDY CONSULTING SERVICES RFP NO. 2014-10

SCORING TABULATION
Evaluation Criterion #1-- (40% value) Experience and Qualifications

Evaluator #1 200 160
Evaluator #2 200 160
Evaluator #3 200 160
Evaluator #4 180 160
Evaluator #5 200 170
  
Subtotal: 980 810
Criteria Ranking: 1 2

Evaluation Criterion #2-- (30% value) Presented Approach and Scheduling

Evaluator #1 90 120
Evaluator #2 90 150
Evaluator #3 150 120
Evaluator #4 120 105
Evaluator #5 120 117
  
Subtotal: 570 612
Criteria Ranking: 2 1

Evaluation Criterion #3-- (20% value) Pricing Fee/Budget

Evaluator #1 80 80
Evaluator #2 80 70
Evaluator #3 80 80
Evaluator #4 95 100
Evaluator #5 80 70
 1 2
Subtotal: 416 402
Criteria Ranking:

Evaluation Criterion #4-- (10% value) References

Evaluator #1 30 30
Evaluator #2 40 40
Evaluator #3 40 30
Evaluator #4 40 30
Evaluator #5 40 30
  
Subtotal: 190 160
Criteria Ranking: 1 2

TOTAL SCORE: 2156 1984
Total Criteria Ranking: 1 2

Kimley-Horn CivTech

Kimley-Horn CivTech

Kimley-Horn CivTech

Kimley-Horn CivTech



AGREEMENT FOR 
 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN STUDY CONSULTING SERVICES 

  
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 

and 
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 
 This Agreement for a City of Flagstaff Regional Transportation Plan Study Consulting Services 
(“Agreement”) is made by and between the City of Flagstaff (“City”), a municipal corporation with offices 
at 211 W. Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona, and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., 
with an office at 7740 N. 16th Street, Suite 300, Phoenix, AZ 85020 (“Provider"), effective as of the date 
written below. 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. The City desires to enter into this Agreement for Regional Transportation Plan Study Consulting 
Services; and 

B. Provider has available and offers to provide the personnel necessary to organize and provide 
said services in accordance with the Scope of Work, attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A; 

 For the reasons recited above, and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this 
Agreement, the City and Provider agree as follows: 

 
1. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY PROVIDER 
Provider agrees to provide the services, as set forth in detail in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and hereby 
incorporated as part of this Agreement and adopted by reference.    

2. COMPENSATION OF PROVIDER 
The City agrees to make payment, in the amount of $109,992.00 to Provider to render the services set 
forth in Exhibit “A”.  

3. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PROVIDER 
 
3.1 Independent Contractor.  The parties agree that Provider performs specialized services and that 
Provider enters into this Agreement with the City as an independent contractor.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed to constitute Provider or any of Provider’s agents or employees as an 
agent, employee or representative of the City.  As an independent contractor, Provider is solely 
responsible for all labor and expenses in connection with this Agreement and for any and all damages 
arising out of Provider’s performance under this Agreement.   Provider is not obligated to accept all 
requests for services, depending on circumstances with other work being performed for other clients.   

3.2  Provider’s Control of Work.  All services to be provided by Provider shall be performed as 
determined by the City in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit “A.”  Provider shall 
furnish the qualified personnel, materials, equipment and other items necessary to carry out the terms of 
this Agreement.  Provider shall be responsible for and in full control of the work of all such personnel. 

3.3 Reports to the City.  Although Provider is responsible for control and supervision of work 
performed under this Agreement, the services provided shall be acceptable to the City and shall be 
subject to a general right of inspection and supervision to ensure satisfactory completion.  This right of 
inspection and supervision shall include, but not be limited to, all reports if requested by the City to be 
provided by Provider to the City and the right of the City, and the right of the City to audit Provider’s 
records. 

3.4 Compliance with All Laws.  Provider shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations and executive orders of the federal, state and local government, which may affect the 



performance of this Agreement.  Any provision required by law, ordinances, rules, regulations, or 
executive orders to be inserted in this Agreement shall be deemed inserted, whether or not such 
provisions appear in this Agreement. 

4. NOTICE PROVISIONS 
 
Notice.  Any notice concerning this Agreement shall be in writing and sent by certified or registered mail 
as follows: 
 

To the City’s Authorized Representative: 
 

To Provider: 

David Wessel 
FMPO Manager 
City of Flagstaff 
211 W. Aspen 
Flagstaff, Arizona  86001 

  
  
  
  
  
 
 

5.  INDEMNIFICATION  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Provider shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the 
City of Flagstaff and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as 
“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses 
(including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation) 
(hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or 
damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the 
negligent or willful acts or omissions of Provider or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, 
employees or subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or 
recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Provider to 
conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the 
specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising 
solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Provider 
from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that Provider shall be responsible for primary loss 
investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable.  Provider shall 
waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses 
arising from the work performed by Provider for the City. 
 
6.  INSURANCE    
 
Provider and subcontractors, if any, shall procure and maintain until all of their obligations have been 
discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement are satisfied, insurance against 
claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by Provider, its agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Agreement and in no way limit 
the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement.  The City in no way warrants that the minimum 
limits contained herein are sufficient to protect Provider from liabilities that may arise out of the 
performance of the work under this Agreement by Provider, its agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors and Provider is free to purchase additional insurance as may be determined 
necessary.  
 
 
A.  Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance. Provider shall provide coverage at least as broad and 

with limits of liability not less than those stated below.    
 
1. Automobile Liability - Any Auto or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles 



 (Form CA 0001, ed. 12/93 or any replacement thereof.) 
 Combined Single Limit Per Accident    $1,000,000 
 for Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
 
2. Professional Liability     $2,000,000 
 
 
B. SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS/DEDUCTIBLES: Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must 

be noted to the City. However, the Proposer shall be solely responsible for any self-insured and/or 
deductibles associated with the Proposer’s insurance coverage. 

 
C. OTHER INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, 

the following provisions: 
 

1. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages: 
 

a. The City of Flagstaff, its officers, officials, and employees are additional insureds 
with respect to liability arising out of: activities performed by, or on behalf of, the 
Provider; including the City's general supervision of the Provider; products and 
completed operations of the Provider: and automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the Provider. 

 
b.   The Provider's insurance shall contain broad form contractual liability coverage. 

 
c. The Provider's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the 

City, its, officers, officials, and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be in 
excess to the coverage of the Provider's insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

 
d. The Provider's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim 

is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 
 
e. Coverage provided by the Provider shall not be limited to the liability assumed 

under the indemnification provisions of this contract. 
 

f. The policies shall contain a waiver of subrogation (not including auto) against the City, its 
officers, officials, and employees for losses arising from work performed by the Provider 
for the City. 

 
2. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Coverage: The insurer shall agree to waive 

all rights of subrogation against the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers for 
losses arising from work performed by the Provider for the City. 

 

6.1 Notice of Cancellation.  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this 
Agreement shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided or 
canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the City, except 
when cancellation is for non-payment of premium, then at least ten (10) days prior notice shall 
be given to the City.  Such notice shall be sent directly to:  

 

    Rick Compau, C.P.M., CPPO, CPPB 

    Purchasing Director 

    City of Flagstaff, Purchasing Division  

    211 W. Aspen Ave. 

    Flagstaff, Arizona  86001 



 
6.2 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance shall be placed with insurers duly licensed or authorized to 

do business in the State of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than A- VII, or 
receiving prior approval by the City.  The City in no way warrants that the above-required 
minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect Provider from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
6.3  Verification of Coverage.  Prior to commencing work or services, Provider shall furnish the City 

with certificates of insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the City) as required by 
this Agreement.  The certificates for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and any required endorsements shall be received and approved by the City 

before work commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be in effect 
at or prior to commencement of work under this Agreement and remain in effect for the 
duration of this Agreement.  Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this 
Agreement or to provide evidence of renewal shall constitute a material breach of contract. 

 
All certificates required by this Agreement shall be sent directly to Rick Compau, C.P.M., 
CPPO, CPPB, Purchasing Director, City of Flagstaff, Purchasing Division, 211 W. Aspen 
Ave., Flagstaff, AZ. 86001.  The City project/contract number and project description shall be 
noted on the certificate of insurance.  The City reserves the right to request and receive within 
ten (10) days, complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this Agreement at 
any time.  The City shall not be obligated, however, to review same or to advise Provider of 
any deficiencies in such policies and endorsements, and such receipt shall not relieve 
Provider from, or be deemed a waiver of the City’s right to insist on, strict fulfillment of 
Provider’s obligations under this Agreement.  

 
6.4  Subcontractors. Providers’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as 

additional insureds under its policies or Provider shall furnish to the City separate certificates 
and endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject 
to the minimum requirements identified above. 

 
6.5 Approval.  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Agreement 

shall be made by the City Attorney’s office, whose decision shall be final.  Such action shall 
not require a formal amendment to this Agreement, but may be made by administrative action. 

 
7. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 
 
7.1 Events of Default Defined.  The following shall be Events of Default under this Agreement:  

7.1.1 Any material misrepresentation made by Provider to the City; 
 
7.1.2  Any failure by Provider to perform its obligations under this Agreement including, but not 
limited to, the following: 

7.1.2.1 Failure to commence work at the time(s) specified in this Agreement due to a 
reason or circumstance within Provider’s reasonable control; 

7.1.2.2 Failure to perform the work with sufficient personnel and equipment or with 
sufficient equipment to ensure completion of the work within the specified time; 

7.1.2.3 Failure to perform the work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the City; 

7.1.2.4 Failure to promptly correct or re-perform within a reasonable time work that was 
rejected by the City as unsatisfactory or erroneous; 



7.1.2.5 Discontinuance of the work for reasons not beyond Provider’s reasonable 
control; 

7.1.2.6  Failure to comply with a material term of this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, the provision of insurance; and 

7.1.2.7 Any other acts specifically stated in this Agreement as constituting a default or a 
breach of this Agreement. 

7.2  Remedies.   
 

7.2.1  Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the City may declare Provider in default 
under this Agreement.  The City shall provide written notification of the Event of Default and any 
intention of the City to terminate this Agreement.  Upon the giving of notice, the City may invoke 
any or all of the following remedies: 
 

7.2.1.1 The right to cancel this Agreement as to any or all of the services yet to be 
performed; 

7.2.1.2 The right of specific performance, an injunction or any other appropriate equitable 
remedy; 

7.2.1.3 The right to monetary damages;  

7.2.1.4 The right to withhold all or any part of Provider’s compensation under this 
Agreement; 

7.2.1.5 The right to deem Provider non-responsive in future contracts to be awarded by 
the City; and 

7.2.1.6 The right to seek recoupment of public funds spent for impermissible purposes. 

7.2.2  The City may elect not to declare an Event of Default or default under this Agreement or to 
terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of an Event of Default.  The parties acknowledge 
that this provision is solely for the benefit of the City, and that if the City allows Provider to 
continue to provide the Services despite the occurrence of one or more Events of Default, 
Provider shall in no way be relieved of any of its responsibilities or obligations under this 
Agreement, nor shall the City be deemed to waive or relinquish any of its rights under this 
Agreement. 
 
7.2.3 Any excess costs incurred by the City in the event of termination of this Agreement for 
default, or in the event the City exercises any of the remedies available to it under this 
Agreement, may be offset by use of any payment due for services completed before termination 
of this Agreement for default or the exercise of any remedies.  If the offset amount is insufficient 
to cover excess costs, Provider shall be liable for and shall remit promptly to the City the balance 
upon written demand from the City. 

 
 
8. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
8.1  Headings.  The article and section headings contained herein are for convenience in reference and 
are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Agreement. 
 
8.2  Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the 
State of Arizona.  Provider hereby submits itself to the original jurisdiction of those courts located within 
Coconino County, Arizona. 
 



8.3  Attorney’s Fees.  If suit or action is initiated in connection with any controversy arising out of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover in addition to costs such sum as the court 
may adjudge reasonable as attorney fees, or in event of appeal as allowed by the appellate court. 
 
8.4  Severability.  If any part of this Agreement is determined by a court to be in conflict with any statute 
or constitution or to be unlawful for any reason, the parties intend that the remaining provisions of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless the stricken provision leaves the remaining 
Agreement unenforceable. 
 
8.5  Assignment.  This Agreement is binding on the heirs, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.  
This Agreement may not be assigned by either the City or Provider without prior written consent of the 
other. 
 
8.6  Conflict of Interest.  Provider covenants that Provider presently has no interest and shall not acquire 
any interest, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of 
services required to be performed under this Agreement.  Provider further covenants that in the 
performance of this Agreement, Provider shall not engage any employee or apprentice having any such 
interest.  The parties agree that this Agreement may be cancelled for conflict of interest in accordance 
with Arizona Revised Statutes § 38-511. 
 
8.7  Authority to Contract.  Each party represents and warrants that it has full power and authority to 
enter into this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and that it has taken all actions 
necessary to authorize entering into this Agreement. 
 
8.8  Integration.  This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Provider as to those 
matters contained in this Agreement, and no prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or 
effect with respect to those matters.  This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing 
signed by duly authorized representatives of the parties. 

8.9 Non-appropriation.  In the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted in 
any fiscal period of the City for payments to be made under this Agreement, the City shall notify Provider 
of such occurrence, and this Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of the last day of the fiscal period 
for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever the funds appropriated for payment under this 
Agreement are exhausted. No payments shall be made or due to Provider under this Agreement beyond 
these amounts appropriated and budgeted by the City to fund payments under this Agreement. 
 
8.10  Mediation.  If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, and if the dispute cannot be 
settled through negotiation, the parties agree first to try in good faith to resolve the dispute by 
mediation before resorting to litigation or some other dispute resolution procedure.  Mediation shall 
take place in Flagstaff, Arizona, shall be self-administered, and shall be conducted under the CPR 
Mediation Procedures established by the CPR Institute for Dispute Resolution, 366 Madison Avenue, 
New York, NY 10017, (212) 949-6490, www.cpradr.org, with the exception of the mediator selection 
provisions, unless other procedures are agreed upon by the parties. Unless the parties agree 
otherwise, the mediator(s) shall be selected from panels of mediators trained under the Alternative 
Dispute Resolution Program of the Coconino County Superior Court.  Each party agrees to bear its 
own costs in mediation.  The parties shall not be obligated to mediate if an indispensable party is 
unwilling to join the mediation. This mediation provision shall not constitute a waiver of the parties’ 
right to initiate legal action if a dispute is not resolved through good faith negotiation or mediation, or if 
a party seeks provisional relief under the Arizona Rules of Civil Procedure. 
 
8.11 Compliance with Federal Immigration Laws and Regulations. Provider hereby warrants to the 
City that the Provider and each of its subcontractors (“Subcontractors”) will comply with, and are 
contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to its 
employees and A.R.S. §23-214(A) (hereinafter “Provider Immigration Warranty”). 



 A breach of the Provider Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement 
and shall subject the Provider to penalties up to and including termination of this Agreement at the 
sole discretion of the City.  
 
The City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Provider or Subcontractor employee who 
works on this Agreement to ensure that the Provider or Subcontractor is complying with the Provider 
Immigration Warranty. Provider agrees to assist the City in regard to any such inspections.  
 
The City may, at its sole discretion, conduct random verification of the employment records of the 
Provider and any of subcontractors to ensure compliance with Provider’s Immigration Warranty. 
Provider agrees to assist the City in regard to any random verifications performed.  
 
The provisions of this Article must be included in any contract the Provider enters into with any and all 
of its subcontractors who provide services under this Agreement or any subcontract. “Services” are 
defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor. 
Services include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or transportation facility or 
improvement to real property. 
 
8.12  Subcontractors.   This Agreement or any portion thereof shall not be sub-contracted without the 
prior written approval of the City.  No Subcontractor shall, under any circumstances, relieve Provider 
of its liability and obligation under this Agreement.  The City shall deal through Provider and any 
Subcontractor shall be dealt with as a worker and representative of Provider.  Provider assumes 
responsibility to the City for the proper performance of the work of Subcontractors and any acts and 
omissions in connection with such performance.  Nothing in the Contract Documents is intended or 
deemed to create any legal or contractual relationship between the City and any Subcontractor or 
Sub-Subcontractor, including but not limited to any third-party beneficiary rights. 
 
8.13 Waiver.  No failure to enforce any condition or covenant of this Agreement by the City shall 
imply or constitute a waiver of the right of the City to insist upon performance of the condition or 
covenant, or of any other provision of this Agreement, nor shall any waiver by the City of any breach 
of any one or more conditions or covenants of this Agreement constitute a waiver of any succeeding 
or other breach under this Agreement. 
 
8.14  Business Operations in Sudan/Iran.  In accordance with A.R.S. § 35-397, the Provider certifies 
that the Provider and its affiliates and subsidiaries do not have scrutinized business operations in 
Sudan or Iran.  If the City determines that the Provider’s certification is false, the City may impose all 
legal and equitable remedies available to it, including but not limited to termination of this Agreement. 
 
9.  DURATION 
 
This Agreement shall become effective on and from the day and year executed by the parties, indicated 
below, and shall continue in force for an initial term of one (1) year, beginning November 20, 2013 
through November 20, 2014], unless sooner terminated as provided above.  Upon mutual agreement 
between the City and Provider, this Agreement may be renewed for a maximum of one (1) additional one 
(1) year term, upon mutual agreement from both parties.    
. 
 
City of Flagstaff  Provider 
   

Kevin Burke, City Manager   
    
   
Attest:   



   

City Clerk   
   
   
   
   
Approved as to form:   
   

City Attorney  Date of Execution:
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
The following terms and conditions are an explicit part of the solicitation and any 
offer received by a Proposer in response to this RFP. 

 
1. CERTIFICATION:  By signature on the Offer page, at the end of this RFP document, 

Proposer certifies that: 
a. The submission of the Offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
b. Proposer has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter any 

economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, 
or service to a public servant in connection with the Offer.  Failure to provide a valid 
signature affirming the stipulations required by this clause shall result in the rejection of 
the Offer.  Signing the Offer, on page 31 of this RFP document, with a false statement 
shall void the Offer and any resulting contract and may be subject to penalties provided 
by law. 

 
2. GRATUITIES:  The City may, by written notice to the Proposer, cancel any resulting 

contract if it is found by the City that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or 
otherwise, were offered or given by the Proposer or any agent or representative of the 
Proposer, to any officer or employee of the City with a view toward securing a contract, 
securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding, amending, or the making of any 
determinations with respect to the performing of such contract.  In the event any resulting 
contract is canceled by the City pursuant to this provision, the City shall be entitled, in 
addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold from the Proposer the 
amount of the gratuity.   

 
3. OFFER BY PROPOSER:  All responses to this RFP are offers to contract with the City and 

shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications and other requirements 
set forth within the text of the RFP Package, including the sample Agreement.  Offers do not 
become contracts unless and until they are formally accepted by the City.  Formal 
acceptance may occur when the City Manager accepts an Offer, or when the City Council 
accepts the Offer and enters into the Agreement, as allowed under the Flagstaff City 
Charter.  The City reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the concurrence of 
Proposer, however, any substantial non-conformity in the Offer shall be deemed non-
responsive and the Offer rejected.  A contract approved by the City Council may only be 
changed by written amendment signed by duly authorized representatives of the City and 
the Proposer.   

 
4.  EXCEPTION TO THE SOLICITATION:  Proposer shall identify and list all exceptions taken 

to all sections of this RFP Package and list these exceptions referencing the section 
(paragraph) where the exception exists, identifying the exceptions and the proposed 
wording for Proposer’s exception.  Proposer shall list these exceptions under the heading 
"Exception to the PROPOSAL Solicitation.”  Exceptions that surface elsewhere and that do 
not also appear under the heading "Exception to the Proposal Solicitation,” shall be 
considered invalid and void and of no contractual significance. The City reserves the right to 
reject, render the proposal non-responsive, enter into negotiation on any of the Proposer 
exceptions, or accept them. 



 
5. INTERPRETATION - PAROL EVIDENCE:  The Agreement is intended by the parties as a 

final expression of their agreement.  No course of prior dealings between the parties and no 
usage of the trade shall be relevant to supplement or explain any term used in the 
Agreement.  Acceptance or acquiescence in a course of performance rendered under the 
Agreement shall not be relevant to determine the meaning of the contract even though the 
accepting or acquiescing party has knowledge of the nature of the performance and 
opportunity to object.  Whenever a term defined by the City Charter or applicable Arizona 
State Statute is used in the Agreement, that definition shall control. 

 
6. RIGHTS AND REMEDIES:  No provision in this document or in the RFP Packet shall be 

construed, expressly or by implication, as a waiver by either party of any existing or future 
right and/or remedy available by law in the event of any claim of default or breach of 
contract.   

 
7. PROTESTS:  Protests shall be resolved, in accordance with the following:  A protest shall 

be in writing and shall be personally delivered or served upon the City Purchasing Director.  
A protest of a solicitation shall be received at the City Purchasing Department before the 
solicitation opening date.  A protest of a proposed award or of an award shall be personally 
delivered or served upon the City Purchasing Director within ten (10) days after the protester 
knows or should have known the basis of the protest.  A protest shall include: 

 a. The name, address and telephone number of the protester; 
 b. The signature of the protester or its representative; 
 c. Identification of the solicitation or contract number; 
 d. A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of the protest including copies of 

relevant documents; and 
 e. The form of relief requested. 
 
8. ADVERTISING:  Proposer shall not advertise or publish information concerning the 

solicitation or the Agreement, without the prior written consent of the City. 
 

9. RIGHT TO INSPECT PLANT:  The City may, at reasonable times and at its expense, 
inspect the plant or place of business of a Proposer or Sub-proposer which is related to the 
performance of any contract as awarded or to be awarded. 

 
10. INSPECTION:  All materials, services or construction are subject to final inspection and 

acceptance by the City.  Materials, services or construction failing to conform to the 
specifications of the contract shall be held at Proposer’s risk and may be returned to 
Proposer.  If so returned, all costs shall be the responsibility of Proposer. 

 
11. PURCHASE ORDERS:  The City shall issue a purchase order for the goods or services 

covered by the contract.  All such purchase orders will reference the contract number, as 
well as the City Council approval date and Council Agenda item number. 

 
12. PACKING AND SHIPPING:  If applicable, Proposer shall be responsible for industry 

standard packing which conforms to requirements of carrier’s tariff and ICC regulations.  
Containers shall be clearly marked as to lot number, destination, address and purchase 
order number.  All shipments shall be F.O.B.  Destination, City of Flagstaff, 211 West Aspen 
Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona 86001, unless otherwise specified by the City.  C.O.D.  
shipments will not be accepted. 

 



13. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS:  The title and risk of loss of material or service shall not pass 
to the City until the City actually receives the material or service at the point of delivery, and 
the City has completed inspection and has accepted the material, unless otherwise provided 
within the contract. 

 
14. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER:  Every tender of materials, or services, 

must fully comply with all provisions of the contract.  If a tender is made which does not fully 
conform, this shall constitute a breach and Proposer shall not have the right to substitute a 
conforming tender without prior approval from the City. 

 
15. DEFAULT IN ONE INSTALLMENT TO CONSTITUTE TOTAL BREACH:  Proposer shall 

deliver conforming materials, or services, in each installment or lot of the contract and may 
not substitute nonconforming materials, or services.  Delivery of nonconforming materials, 
and/or services, or a default of any nature, at the option of the City, shall constitute a breach 
of the contract as a whole. 

 
16. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED:  Proposer is not authorized to ship 

materials under reservation and no tender of a bill of lading shall operate as a tender of the 
materials. 

 
17. LIENS:  All goods, services and other deliverables supplied to the City under the Agreement 

shall be free of all liens other than the security interest held by Proposer until payment in full 
is made by the City.  Upon request of the City, Proposer shall provide a formal release of all 
liens. 

   
18. LICENSES:  Proposer shall maintain in current status all Federal, State, and local licenses 

and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by Proposer as applicable 
to the Agreement. 

 
19. COST OF PROPOSAL PREPARATION:  The City shall not reimburse the cost of 

developing, presenting or providing any response to this solicitation.  Proposals submitted 
for consideration by the City should be prepared simply and economically, providing 
adequate information in a straightforward and concise manner. 

 
20.  CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION:   
 

A. If a Proposer believes a specific section of its proposal to be confidential, the Proposer is 
to mark the page(s) “confidential” and isolate the pages marked confidential in a specific 
and clearly labeled section of its proposal response.  The Proposer is to include a written 
statement as to the basis for considering the marked pages confidential. 

 
B. The information identified by the person as confidential shall not be disclosed until the 

City makes a written determination. 
 
C. The City shall review the statement and information and shall determine in writing 

whether the information shall be treated as confidential. 
 
D. If the City determines to disclose the information, the City shall inform the Proposer in 

writing of such determination. 
 



E. After award of a contract, proposal responses shall be considered a matter of public 
record and subject to disclosure.  Materials submitted by Proposers shall become the 
property of the City unless otherwise requested at the time of submission.  Materials 
identified as confidential by the Proposer will be reviewed by the City Purchasing Office 
which shall make a determination as to whether the information is disclosable.  
Generally, information submitted in response to this RFP is considered a matter of public 
record and subject to disclosure pursuant to the Arizona Public Records Law. 

 
21. AUTHORIZED CHANGES:  The City reserves the right at any time to make changes in any 

one or more of the following:  a) methods of shipment or packing; b) place of delivery; and c) 
quantities.  If any change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of or the time required 
for performance, an equitable adjustment may be made in the price or delivery schedule, or 
both.   

 
 Any claim for adjustment shall be evidenced in writing and approved by the City Purchasing 

Director prior to the institution of the change. 
 
22. SAMPLES:  Upon request, Proposers may be required to furnish a sample of the goods 

and/or service to be provided.  Submission of a sample by a Proposer shall constitute an 
express warranty that the whole of the goods and/or service shall conform to the sample 
submitted.  All samples submitted by a Proposer shall become the property of the City for 
testing purposes and/or future comparison at no charge unless designated otherwise by the 
Proposer.  Samples not destroyed by testing or which are not retained for future comparison 
shall be returned upon request at Proposer’s expense. 

 
23. PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE:  A prospective Proposers’ conference may be held at 

the City’s sole discretion.  If scheduled, the date and time of this conference will be indicated 
on the cover page of this document.   

  
 The purpose of this conference shall be to clarify the contents of this RFP Package in order 

to prevent any misunderstanding of the City's position.  Any doubt as to the requirements of 
this RFP Package or any apparent omission or discrepancy should be presented to the City 
at this conference.  The City shall then determine the appropriate action necessary, if any, 
and issue a written amendment to the RFP.  Oral statements or instructions shall not 
constitute an amendment to this RFP. 

 
24. DISCUSSIONS AND REVISIONS TO PROPOSAL:  Discussions may be conducted with 

responsible Proposers who submit proposals determined to be reasonably susceptible of 
being selected for award.  Such discussions may facilitate the exchange of pertinent 
information to enable a more complete understanding of, and responsiveness to, the 
solicitation requirements.  Should the City elect to call for 'best and final' offers, Proposers 
shall be accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to any opportunity for discussion and 
revision of proposals, and such revisions may be permitted after submissions and prior to 
award for the purpose of obtaining best and final offers.  In conducting discussions, there 
shall be no disclosure of any information derived from proposals submitted by competing 
Proposers.  The purposes of such discussions shall be to:  

 
A. Determine in greater detail such Proposers’ qualifications, and 
 
B. Explore with the Proposers, the Scope of Services, the Proposers’ proposed method of 

performance, and the relative utility of alternate methods of approach; 



 
C. Determining whether the Proposers have the necessary personnel and facilities to 

perform within the required time; 
 

D. Agreeing upon compensation which is fair and reasonable, taking into account the 
estimated value of the required services, and the scope, complexity and nature of such 
services. 

 
25. COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENTS:  A contract resulting from this RFP may 

be extended for use by the members of the Flagstaff Alliance for the Second Century.  An 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) has been executed between the City, Coconino County 
Community College District, Northern Arizona University, Coconino County and Flagstaff 
Unified School District.  The contract may also be extended to other municipalities and 
government agencies of the state.  Any such usage by other municipalities and government 
agencies must be in accordance with the ordinance, charter and/or rules and regulations of 
the respective political entity.  Any public agencies not identified within this RFP who wish to 
cooperatively use the contract are subject to the approval of Proposer. 

 
The City is also a member of S.A.V.E. (Strategic Alliance for Volume Expenditures), which 
consists of numerous municipalities, counties, universities, colleges, schools and other 
Arizona State agencies.  These cooperatives are achieved through Intergovernmental 
Agreements (IGAs) in accordance with provisions allowed by A.R.S. §11-952 and §41-2632.  
The IGAs permit purchases of material, equipment and services from Proposers at the 
prices, terms and conditions contained in contracts originated between any and all of these 
agencies and the Proposer(s) contract, as awarded. 
 
Is your firm willing to offer the goods and services solicited under the terms and conditions of 
this solicitation to other members of the Flagstaff Alliance for the Second Century and 
S.A.V.E.  under the same pricing, terms and conditions? 

 
 ___ Yes   No 

 
26. FINANCIAL STATUS:  All Proposers shall make available upon request a current audited 

financial statement, a current audited financial report, or a copy of a current federal income 
tax return.  Failure or refusal to provide this information within five (5) business days after 
communication of the request by the City shall be sufficient grounds for the City to reject a 
proposal, and/or to declare a Proposer non-responsive or non-responsible. 

 
If a Proposer is currently involved in an ongoing bankruptcy as a debtor, or in a 
reorganization, liquidation, or dissolution proceeding, or if a trustee or receiver has been 
appointed over all or a substantial portion of the property of the Proposer under federal 
bankruptcy law or any state insolvency law, the Proposer must provide the City with that 
information as part of its proposal.  The City may consider that information during evaluation 
of the proposal.   

 
By submitting a proposal in response to this solicitation, Proposer agrees that, if, during the 
term of any contract it has with the City, it becomes involved as a debtor in a bankruptcy 
proceeding, or becomes involved in a reorganization, dissolution or liquidation proceeding, 
or if a trustee or receiver is appointed over all or a substantial portion of the property of 
Proposer under federal bankruptcy law or any state insolvency law, Proposer shall 
immediately provide the City with a written notice to that effect, and shall provide the City 



with any relevant information it requests to determine whether the Proposer will meet its 
obligations to the City. 

 
27. GOVERNING LAW and JURISDICTION:  This solicitation shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona. 
 
28. SUBSEQUENT PURCHASES:  The City, with the consent of the successful Proposer(s), 

reserves the right to purchase additional items as listed in this proposal, if Proposer is willing to 
offer the same terms and conditions as submitted in this proposal, for a period of twelve (12) 
months from the date of approval.    

 
29. POINT OF CONTACT:  The proposal must indicate the name of one individual who the City 

is to contact with any questions or clarifications in regards to the proposal. 
 
30. ON-SITE INVESTIGATION:  Proposers are strongly encouraged to view all of the City’s 

facilities that may be referenced in the Scope of Work prior to submitting their proposal.  The 
Proposer shall be responsible for examining the facility sites and comparing it with the 
descriptions and specifications, to have carefully examined all of the RFP Package, 
including the sample contract and to have satisfied themselves as to the conditions under 
which the work is to be performed before submitting a proposal and entering into the 
contract. 

 
No allowance shall subsequently be made on behalf of Proposer on account of an error on 
its part or its negligence or failure to become acquainted with the conditions of the site, or 
surrounding areas. 

 
31. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION:  To help insure contract compliance, a Contract 

Administration Process will be an integral part of the contract.  This Contract Administration 
Process is an audit and feedback system and will be in addition to any of the other policies 
and procedures contained herein.  The Contract Administration Process is a total quality 
management tool that empowers the users to monitor and assure contract compliance.  The 
Proposer should know during the proposal process that the successful Proposer will be 
closely monitored for contract compliance.  No additional cost is anticipated to be incurred 
by the successful Proposer by the presence of the Contract Administration Process, as long 
as contract compliance is maintained.   

 
All changes or amendments to the contract are to be in writing, authorized by the 
Purchasing Director, approved by the City Council, and signed by authorized 
representatives of the parties. 
 

32. CONTRACT TYPE:  Firm Fixed Fee.  Initial contract term shall be for one (1) year. 
 
33. CONTRACT RENEWAL:  The City reserves the right to unilaterally extend the period of the 

contract for ninety (90) days beyond the stated expiration date.  In addition, by mutual 
written consent, the contract may be renewed for supplemental periods of up to one (1) 
additional one (1) year term.   

  
34. BUSINESS OPERATIONS IN IRAN/SUDAN:  In accordance with A.R.S. § 35-397, the 

Provider certifies that the Provider and its affiliates and subsidiaries do not have scrutinized 
business operations in Sudan or Iran.  If the City determines that the Provider’s certification 



is false, the City may impose all legal and equitable remedies available to it, including but 
not limited to termination of this Agreement. 
 

35. OFFER ACCEPTANCE PERIOD:  In order to allow for an adequate evaluation, the City 
requires an offer in response to this solicitation to be valid and irrevocable for ninety (90) 
days after the opening time and date. 

 
36. CONTACT WITH CITY EMPLOYEES AND CONTRACTORS 

All persons and/or firms that are interested in this project (including the firm’s employees, 
representatives, agents, lobbyists, attorneys, and sub-contractors) will refrain, under penalty 
of disqualification, from direct or indirect contact for the purpose of influencing the 
evaluation/selection or creating bias in the evaluation/selection process with any person who 
may play a part in the evaluation/selection process.  This includes but is not limited to the 
evaluation panel, City Council Members, City Manager, Assistant City Manager(s), Deputy 
City Manager(s), Department Directors or other staff.  This policy is intended to create a 
level playing field for all potential firms, assure that contract decisions are made in public, 
and to protect the integrity of the selection process.  All contact on this selection process 
should be addressed to the authorized representative identified on Page One of this 
document. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/BACKGROUND 
 

The Flagstaff Metropolitan Planning Organization (FMPO) is seeking consulting services to 
refine and or develop a number of tools to be utilized in preparation of a mandated update to the 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Study.  The formal update will not commence until the draft 
Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 has been formally acted on by city voters in May 2014.  Until that 
time, the consultant will assist the FMPO in preparing data, analytical tools, and alternatives.  
This resource development and collection is for the public’s future consideration of objectives, 
performance measures, project selection criteria and more. 
 
The FMPO is seeking to improve its ability to meet and exceed federal MAP-21 requirements 
and to deliver a cost-effective, multi-modal transportation plan that meets the expectations of 
the region’s citizens.  The region has seen marked improvement in transit, bicycling and 
pedestrian facilities and mode share over the last decade.  Several significant roadway 
improvements have also been implemented.  The arterial and collector network is still under-
developed making the means of providing mobility and managing congestion now and into the 
future challenging.  It also puts a premium on clearly communicating the effectiveness of various 
transportation investments to decision makers and the public.  
 
The land use plan and policy currently in effect is the Flagstaff Regional Land Use and 
Transportation Plan (2001).  The FMPO Regional Transportation Plan 2009 is the RTP to 
be updated.  It is an advisory document that refines and describes the implementation of the 
land use and circulation elements of the 2001 plan.  A draft update of the comprehensive 



plan, Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030, is underway.  FMPO played a central role in developing 
its transportation policies and supporting illustrative maps.  The tools developed under this 
contract should anticipate the policy implications of this updated plan.  NAIPTA, the local 
transit provider recently completed their 5-Year and Long Range Transit Plan updates that 
coordinated closely with the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 process.  Work on this effort 
should assume adoption of the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 in May 2014. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
1. Budget - $110,000 
2. Schedule – Nine (9) months.  Could be influenced by May 2014 election schedule. 
3. Refine Scope of Work – Work with the Project Team and Citizens Task Force to 

identify priority issues and the tasks most appropriate to address them.  Submit a 
revised scope of work. 

4. Goals, Policies and Objectives – Goals and policies will be assumed from the draft 
Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 

a. Prepare alternative, measurable objectives under select policies primarily in 
the Transportation Element. 

5. NEPA Advice – Research and provide direction on the ability to achieve NEPA 
“Planning and Environmental Linkage” or “Tier 1: Purpose and Need” status for all or 
most projects within the RTP via the RTP process 

6. Regional Transportation Model Update – FMPO uses TransCAD for its Regional 
Transportation Model and seeks to update this model to base year summer 2013 
and prepare projected land use and network data sets for the RTP update.   

a. Update land use database using assessors data and document the 
methodology 

b. Develop “Build Out” land use data set and interim data sets on 10-year 
increments to be used with the Benefit Cost Analysis tool – FMPO should 
have a “Build Out” scenario based on the draft Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 
Growth Illustration and is seeking effective means of interpolation to interim 
periods 

c. Assist FMPO in calibration of base year model primarily through education on 
any new TransCAD tools or techniques and modification of the external to 
external and internal to external trip tables 

d. Updates to GIS-DK as needed 
7. Application of Benefit Cost Analysis tool to broad range of RTP projects – The 

FMPO is now developing a BCA tool and will have it calibrated and applied to a few 
sample projects.  This task will utilize the BCA tool and the updated regional 
transportation model to develop benefit cost ratios for RTP projects 

8. Performance Measures and Monitoring 
a. Develop alternatives and recommendations for measures to be associated 

with Goals, Policies and Objectives 
i. Report on status of MAP-21 compliant performance measures from 

Arizona DOT 
ii. Assist project team and citizens group in selecting measures that are 

broad, effectively narrate progress toward policy implementation, and 
are readily managed by FMPO and member agency staff.  Attention to 
safety is a priority. 



b. Benchmark three to five regions of current FMPO population size (85,000) 
and three to five regions of forecasted community size (150,000) on a series 
of select measures to assist in establishing performance targets 

9. Project Selection/Scoring  
a. Identification of Alternative Project Selection Criteria Categories and 

recommendations 
i. Identify effective means of incorporating Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 

data into the scoring methodology from at least the natural resources, 
cultural resources and economic development elements 

b. Identification of Alternative methodologies for defining range of scores within 
each category that are closely tied to performance measures, again, safety is 
important. 

i. Incorporation of Benefit Cost Ratio from BCA tool 
c. Alternative methods for engaging public in value weighting of criteria 

10. Cost  
a. Updated “actual” costs – The FMPO has developed a roadway planning level 

cost estimation tool based on actual bid tabs. This task will update those 
actual costs. 

b. Review and improve cost estimation methodologies for transit, pedestrian and 
bicycle cost of service and/or facilities estimation. 

c. Incorporation of life-cycle cost elements (possible source or sources include 
BCA tool development).  The Operation & Maintenance Study will not be 
available. 

11. Funding Analysis – coordination with the City, County and NAIPTA on long range 
funding plans and strategies. 

12. Public Involvement/Participation Plan (PIP) – Commencing shortly after the May 
2014 election, the FMPO will engage the public to update the RTP.  FMPO seeks a 
PIP that will  

a. Make effective use of the tools, data and outputs developed under this 
contract 

b. Create and maintain public interest and reach conclusions expeditiously 
c. Establish areas of consensus and concentrate the majority of time on areas 

where consensus needs to be built.  Implementation of the PIP is not part of 
this contract. 

13. Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Compliance Strategy (MAP-21) – The 
consultant will draft a strategy the FMPO should follow after the May 2014 election to 
achieve RTP compliance with MAP-21. 

 





  9. C.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: James Duval, Sr. Project Manager 

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Rio de Flag Flood Control Project Design Concept Report

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1)Award the Engineering Design Professional Services Contract to Michael Baker Jr.  Inc., of
Phoenix, Arizona in an amount not to exceed $247,285.89, including a $22,480.00 contract
allowance and a 205 calendar-day contract period; and 
2)Approve Change Order Authority to the City Manager in the amount of $22,480.00 (10% of
contract amount excluding allowance) for unanticipated or additional items of work; and
3)Authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Provide engineering design services for the Rio de Flag Flood Control Project Design Concept Report
based on FEMA criteria

Subsidiary Decisions Points: None

Financial Impact:
The project cost is estimated to be $224,805.89.

Connection to Council Goal:
Complete Rio de Flag 100-year flood control project

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Yes- Council gave direction to staff at the  meeting of April 2, 2013 to proceed with the preparation of the
Design Concept Report  

Options and Alternatives:
Approve the Award as recommended.
Direct staff to continue negotiations with Michael Baker Jr., Inc. to reduce the project fee.
Reject approval of the award and direct staff to re-advertise the Request for Statements of
Qualifications.  This would have the affect of delaying the project for approximately 3 months.
Reject approval of the award.  This option would have the affect of the City not proceeding with the
Design Concept Report (DCR) and to continue design and construction as is currently provided
under the Project Cooperation Agreement with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.



Background/History:
Flooding along the Rio de Flag and Clay Avenue Wash has been documented as far back as 1888.  This
flood potential currently is approximately 1,500 structures, valued at over $916,000,000 in a 500-year
event and would have catastrophic impacts to Northern Arizona University, Route 66, the Burlington
Northern and Santa Fe Railroad and much of the Historic and Southside areas.  Economic damages from
a single event could surpass $93,000,000.
 
On August 3, 2004 the City Council approved the Project Cooperation Agreement (PCA) with the USACE
to establish the roles and responsibilities for each agency with the WRDA established authorized project
limit at $24 M.  In every subsequent year since 2004 the total project cost has increased and in 2013 the
USACE total project cost estimate was $101 M.
 
On February 26, 2013 staff gave a presentation to Council outlining the continued funding issues and
lack of progress associated with the project and proposed four options:

Stay the Course and continue project development and funding with the USACE1.
Pursue Self Administration with the USACE2.
Sever ties with the USACE and continue development of the project using City staff and funding3.
Terminate the project entirely4.

On April 2, 2013 Staff again met with the City Council and received direction to proceed with the
preparation of a DCR in order to determine the cost and feasibility of design and construction of the
project to FEMA standards and proceed without USACE support or requirements.
 
On September 22, 2013 the City advertised Requests for Statements of Qualifications (RSOQ) for the
DCR project.  Six RSOQ responses were received and evaluated by the five-person selection committee
consisting of four City staff members and one local private engineer.  Scores were evaluated and Michael
Baker Jr. Inc. was selected as the best qualified service provider pursuant to the evaluation and ranking
process per A.R.S. 34-603 and modified by H.B. 2579.
 
Michael Baker Jr.  Inc. will prepare the DCR in accordance with the attached contract and Scope of
Services.  The report completion is anticipated by May 2014 and will conclude with a presentation to
Council on the report findings and recommendations. 

Key Considerations:
Since the Feasibility Study in 2000, project costs have escalated 317%.  In addition, there were no
Federal project appropriations in Federal FY 2011.  Federal appropriations in FY 12 were $2.5M
specifically allocated to repair the Clay Wash Detention Basin due to faulty construction.  There have
been no Federal appropriations in FY 13 and it appears there will be no appropriations in FY 14.
 
The stated purpose of the project is to remove the affected residents and businesses from Rio de Flag
FEMA regulated floodplain by containing the 100- year event within the proposed flood control
structures.  With consideration of this statement, the USACE has developed project hydrology that differs
significantly from that prepared by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  In general, the
FEMA flows are substantially smaller than those developed by the USACE.  The DCR will consider
FEMA flows for the study and resulting recommendation which should result in reduced structure size
and reduced project costs and meet the stated purpose of the project.  The existing FEMA flows will be
maintained, even with future development, due to the City standards for stormwater runoff.



Expanded Financial Considerations:
The purpose of this study is to develop the designs and associated cost estimates for a 100-year flood
control project using the current FEMA flows.  It is anticipated that such a project can be delivered at a
cost substantially below the USACE current estimate.  This design contract will be funded through the
existing Rio de Flag project account which is currently funded in the amount of $2,727,429 in account
No. 210-3468-543 for FY 14. 

Community Benefits and Considerations:
Reduce flooding associated with the Clay Avenue Wash as well as the Rio de Flag.
Remove from the floodplain a considerable portion of the properties adjacent to the Rio de Flag as
well as NAU and allow significant economic redevelopment of the downtown area.
New and improved Flagstaff Urban Trail System along the new Rio de Flag channel north of Route
66.
Elimination of mandatory flood insurance and restrictive floodplain management regulations.
Provides connectivity and urban open space preservation along the Rio de Flag corridor.  The
Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan and Greater Flagstaff Open Space and
Greenways Plan identify the Rio de Flag Project as an essential element of Flagstaff’s growth.

Community Involvement:
Involve - The Rio de Flag Flood Control Project has been included as a major element of the City’s
Capital program and budget since 2004.  The project has also been the subject of numerous Council
Work Sessions, Friends of the Rio meetings, Citizen’s Advisory Committee meetings, City to Citizen,
Cityscape and Arizona Daily Sun articles.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
1) Approve the award as recommended.
 2) Direct staff to continue negotiations with Michael Baker Jr., Inc. to reduce the project fee.  This option
will require that staff return to Council at a later date.
 3)  Reject approval of the award and direct staff to re-advertise the Requests for Statements of
Qualifications.  This would have the affect of delaying the project for approximately 3 months.
 4) Reject approval of the award.  This option would have the affect of the City not proceeding with the
Design Concept Report (DCR) and to continue design and construction under the Project Cooperation
Agreement with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.

Attachments:  Vicinity Map
Service Agreement
Fee Schedule



E ROUTE 66

E BUTLER AVE

S M
ILT

ON
 R

D

INTERSTATE 40

S K
NO

LE
S D

R

N B
EA

VE
R S

T

S B
EA

VE
R S

T
S S

AN
 FR

AN
CIS

CO
 ST

S L
ON

E T
RE

E R
D

E PONDEROSA PKWY

N L
ER

OU
X S

T

N PINE CLIFF DR

W ROUTE 66

N B
ON

ITO
 ST

N THORPE RD

W BIRCH AVEW ASPEN AVE
N SWITZER CANYON DR

N S
AN

 FR
AN

CIS
CO

 ST

W CHERRY AVE

E DAVID DR

S B
AB

BI
TT

 D
R

N H
UM

PH
RE

YS
 ST

S O
'LE

AR
Y S

T

S Y
AL

E S
T

N A
ZT

EC
 ST

W ELM AVE

E PINE KNOLL DR

W CLAY AVE

N TURQUOISE DR

S P
LA

ZA
 WAY

E FRANKLIN AVE

N GEMINI DR

N A
GA

SS
IZ 

ST

W KAIBAB LN

W RIORDAN RD

N LOCUST ST

W COCONINO AVE

E SAWMILL RD

N P
AR

K S
T

S L
ER

OU
X S

T

W SANTA FE AVE

S R
IO

RD
AN

 R
AN

CH
 ST

W PHOENIX AVE N V
ER

DE
 ST

S PA
SEO DEL F

LA
G  

W DALE AVE

N BERTRAND ST

MCCREARY DR

W NAVAJO RD

CHURCH DRIVE

E BRANNEN AVE

S ELLIOT ST

E MCCONNELL DR

NOELLE
 LN

W MARS HILL RD

E PA
YTO

N WAY

S H
UM

PH
RE

YS
 ST

N FOREST VIEW DR

N JAMES ST
E PHOENIX AVE

S RIVER RUN RD

S P
AR

K 
ST

DESILVA AVE

E HILLTOP AVE

OS
BO

RN
E D

R

E KENSINGTON DR

E RUNKE DR

N A
PO

LL
O 

WA
Y

E PASEO DEL RIO  

E PICCADILLY DR

E CRESTVIEW DR

MOUNTAIN VIEW DR

S WILSON LN

N HEMLOCK WAY

W COLUMBUS AVE

N M
AN

ZA
NI

TA
 W

AY

W BLOME DR

E CANYON VIEW DR

INTERSTATE 40

W DALE AVE

W ROUTE 66

strmwpma
Polygon

strmwpma
Typewritten Text

strmwpma
Typewritten Text

jduval
Text Box
Rio de Flag Flood Control Project                Vicinity Map             N.T.S. 10-24-13

jduval
Line

jduval
Text Box
N



 

 1 of 11   

SERVICE AGREEMENT 
FOR   

RIO DE FLAG FLOOD CONTROL DESIGN CONCEPT PROJECT 
 

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
and 

 
MICHAEL BAKER JR., INC. 

 
 This Agreement for the Rio De Flag Flood Control Design Concept Project (“Agreement”) is made by and 
between the City of Flagstaff (“City”), an Arizona municipal corporation with offices at 211 W. Aspen Avenue, 
Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona, and Michael Baker Jr., Inc, Pennsylvania corporation, with offices at 2929 
North Central Aveneu, Phoenix, Arizona, (City/State/Zip) (“Provider"), effective as of the date written below. 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. The City desires to enter into this Agreement in order to obtain services of a consultant for the Rio De Flag 
Flood Control Design Concept Project, as outlined in the Scope of Work/Specifications section of the RSOQ 
document; and 

B. Provider has available and offers to provide the personnel necessary to provide said services within the 
required time in accordance with the Scope of Services included in this Agreement; 

C. The following exhibits are incorporated by reference and are expressly made a part of this 
Agreement: 
 
Scope of Work                   Exhibit A 
Fee Schedule           Exhibit B 
 
 For the reasons recited above, and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, 
the City and Provider agree as follows: 
 
1. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY PROVIDER 

Provider agrees to perform the following services: 

1.1  Provider agrees to provide the services as set forth in detail in Exhibit “A” attached and  incorporated in this 
Agreement.   

1.2  Provider warrants that all materials, services or construction delivered under the Agreement shall conform to 
the specifications of the Agreement.  The City’s receipt or inspection of the materials, services, or construction 
specified shall not alter or affect the obligations of Provider or the rights of the City under the foregoing warranty.   
 
1.3  All services, information, computer program elements, reports and other deliverables which may be created 
under the Agreement are the sole property of the City and shall not be used or released by Provider or any other 
person except with prior written permission of the City. 
 
2. COMPENSATION OF PROVIDER 
 
Provider agrees to provide all of the services set forth in Exhibit “A” for prices not to exceed the amounts set forth in 
the fee/price schedule, attached as Exhibit “B”.    

3. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PROVIDER 
 
3.1 Independent Contractor.  The parties agree that Provider performs specialized services and that Provider 
enters into this Agreement with the City as an independent contractor.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed 
to constitute Provider or any of Provider’s agents or employees as an agent, employee or representative of the City.  
As an independent contractor, Provider is solely responsible for all labor and expenses in connection with this 
Agreement and for any and all damages arising out of Provider’s performance under this Agreement. 



 

 2 of 11   

3.2 Provider’s Control of Work.  All services to be provided by Provider shall be performed as determined by 
the City in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit “A.”  Provider shall furnish the qualified 
personnel, materials, equipment and other items necessary to carry out the terms of this Agreement.  Provider shall 
be responsible for, and in full control of, the work of all such personnel. 

3.3 Reports to the City.  Although Provider is responsible for control and supervision of work performed under 
this Agreement, the services provided shall be acceptable to the City and shall be subject to a general right of 
inspection and supervision to ensure satisfactory completion.  This right of inspection and supervision shall include, 
but not be limited to, all reports to be provided by Provider to the City and the right of the City, as set forth in the 
Scope of Services, and the right of the City to audit Provider’s records. 

3.4 Compliance with All Laws.  Provider shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations 
and executive orders of the federal, state and local government, which may affect the performance of this 
Agreement.  Any provision required by law, ordinances, rules, regulations, or executive orders to be inserted in this 
Agreement shall be deemed inserted, whether or not such provisions appear in this Agreement. 

3.5 Completeness and Accuracy of Provider’s Work.  The Provider shall be responsible for the completeness 
and accuracy of his work, plans, supporting data, and Special Provisions prepared or compiled under his obligation 
for this project and shall correct, at his expense, all errors or omissions therein. 

 
 3.5.1  All documents prepared by the design professional shall bear the stamp or seal of the design 

professional.  All preparation of technical and related documents shall be completed in accordance with 
the prevailing Arizona law and services performed in a manner consistent with that degree of care and 
skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar 
circumstances.. 

 
 3.5.2  Correction of errors or omissions disclosed and determined to exist by the City during the 

construction of the project shall be accomplished by the Provider.  The costs that become necessary to 
correct those errors attributable to the Provider and any expense incurred by the City as a result of 
additional construction costs caused by such errors shall be chargeable to the Provider.  The fact that 
the City has accepted or approved the Provider's work shall in no way relieve the Provider of any of his 
responsibilities or professional liability. Should the Provider be contracted to perform construction 
inspection of the project, he shall be responsible for errors and omissions in construction inspection 
disclosed and determined to exist by the City during and subsequent to the construction of the project. 
Provider's duty in the construction inspection phase is to assure City that the project is constructed in 
conformity with detailed plans and specifications and the cost of design necessary to correct errors and 
omissions in inspection attributable to the Provider and any expense incurred by City as a result of 
additional construction costs caused by such errors shall be chargeable to the Provider.  Acceptance or 
approval by City of Provider's work shall not relieve Provider of inspection responsibilities or 
professional liability. 

 
4. NOTICE PROVISIONS 
 
Notice.  Any notice concerning this Agreement shall be in writing and sent by certified or registered mail as follows: 
 

To the City’s Authorized Representative  
(James Duval): 
 

To Provider: 

Patrick Brown, C.P.M. 
Senior Procurement Specialist 
City of Flagstaff 
211 W. Aspen 
Flagstaff, Arizona  86001 

Timothy Quillman, P.E. 
Assistant Vice President 
Michael Baker Jr., Inc. 
2929 North Central Avenue, Suite 800 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Provider shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the City of 
Flagstaff and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, 
actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim 



 

 3 of 11   

processing, investigation and litigation) (“Claims”) including claims for bodily injury or personal injury (including 
death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, 
by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Provider or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, 
employees or subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under 
the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Provider to conform to any federal, state or 
local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is agreed that Provider shall be responsible for 
primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable.  Provider shall 
waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising 
from the work performed by Provider for the City. 
 
6. INSURANCE    
 
Provider and subcontractors shall procure and maintain insurance against claims for injury to persons or 
damage to property, which may arise from or in connection with this Agreement by the Provider, Provider’s 
agents, representatives, employees or contractors until all of their obligations under this Agreement have been 
discharged, including any warranty periods.  The insurance requirements are minimum requirements for this 
Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement.  The City does not 
represent or warrant that the minimum limits set forth in this Agreement are sufficient to protect the Provider 
from liabilities that might arise out of this Agreement, and Provider is free to purchase such additional insurance 
as Provider may determine is necessary. 

 
6.1. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  Provider shall provide coverage at least as broad and with 
limits not less than those stated below. 

 
6.1.1. Commercial General Liability - Occurrence Form 

(Form CG 0001, ed.  10/93 or any replacement thereof) 
 
General Aggregate $2,000,000 
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 
Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
Each Occurrence $1,000,000 
Fire Damage (any one fire) $500,000 
Medical Expense (any one person) Optional 
 

6.1.2. Automobile Liability - Any Automobile or Owned, Hired and Non-owned Vehicles 
 (Form CA 0001, ed.  12/93 or any replacement thereof) 

 
Combined Single Limit Per Accident 
for Bodily Injury and Property Damage $1,000,000 
 

6.1.3. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 
 
Workers’ Compensation Statutory 
Employer’s Liability: Each Accident $500,000 
Disease - Each Employee $500,000 
Disease - Policy Limit $500,000 
 

6.1.4. Professional Liability $1,000,000 
 

6.2 Self-insured Retention/Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must be declared to 
and approved by the City.  If not approved, the City may require that the insurer reduce or eliminate such self-
insured retentions with respect to the City, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers. 

 
6.3. Other Insurance Requirements.  The policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following 
provisions: 

 
6.3.1 Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages.  The City of Flagstaff, its 
officers, officials, agents and employees shall be named as additional insureds with respect to liability 
arising out of the use and/or occupancy of the Premises subject to this Agreement and activities 



 

 4 of 11   

performed by or on behalf of the Provider, including products and completed operations of the Provider; 
and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Provider. 

 
6.3.2 The Provider’s insurance shall contain broad form contractual liability coverage. 
 
6.3.3 The City of Flagstaff, its officers, officials, agents and employees volunteers shall be named as 
additional insureds to the full limits of liability purchased by the Provider even if those limits of liability 
are in excess of those required by this Agreement. 
 
6.3.4. The Provider’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the City, its 
officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
City, its officers, officials, agents and employees, shall be in excess of the coverage of the Provider’s 
insurance and shall not contribute to it. 
 
6.3.5 The Provider’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made 
or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 
 
6.3.6 Coverage provided by the Provider shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Agreement. 
 
6.3.7 The policies shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the City, its officers, officials, agents 
and employees for losses arising from work performed by Provider for the City. 

 
6.4 Notice of Cancellation.  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Agreement 
shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, reduced in coverage or in 
limits except after thirty (30) days’ prior written notice has been given to the City.  When cancellation is for non-
payment of premium, then at least ten (10) days’ prior notice shall be given to the City.  Notices required by this 
section shall be sent directly to Patrick Brown, Senior Procurement Specialist, City of Flagstaff, 211 W. Aspen 
Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona  86001. 

 
6.5 Acceptability of Insurers.  Provider shall place insurance hereunder with insurers duly licensed or 
approved unlicensed companies in the State of Arizona and with a “Best’s” rating of not less than A-: VII.  The 
City does not represent or warrant that the above required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Provider from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
6.6 Verification of Coverage.  The Provider shall furnish the City with certificates of insurance (ACORD 
form) as required by this Agreement.  The certificates for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  Any policy endorsements that restrict or limit coverage 
shall be clearly noted on the certificate of insurance. 
 

6.6.1 The City must receive and approve all certificates of insurance before the Provider commences 
work.  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be in effect at, or before, commencement 
of work under this Agreement and shall remain in effect until all Provider’s and its subcontractors’ 
obligations under this Agreement have been met.  The Provider’s failure to maintain the insurance 
policies as required by this Agreement or to provide timely evidence of renewal will be considered a 
material breach of this Agreement.   
 
6.6.2 All certificates of insurance shall be sent directly to Patrick Brown, Senior Procurement 
Specialist, 211 West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona 86001.  The City project/contract number 
and project description shall be noted on the certificates of insurance.  The City reserves the right 
to require, and receive within ten (10) days, complete, certified copies of all insurance policies and 
endorsements required by this Agreement at any time.  The City shall not be obligated, however, to 
review any insurance policies or to advise Provider of any deficiencies in such policies and 
endorsements.  The City’s receipt of Provider’s policies or endorsements shall not relieve Provider from, 
or be deemed a waiver of, the City’s right to insist on strict fulfillment of Provider’s obligations under this 
Agreement. 

 



 

 5 of 11   

6.7 Subcontractors.  Provider’s certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insureds under 
its policies, or Provider shall furnish to the City Separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.  
All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified above. 
 
6.8 Approval.  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Agreement must have 
the prior approval of the City’s Attorney’s Office, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a 
formal Agreement amendment but may be made by administrative action. 
 
7. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 
 
7.1 Events of Default Defined.  The following shall be Events of Default under this Agreement:  

7.1.1 Any material misrepresentation made by Provider to the City; 
 
7.1.2 Any failure by Provider to perform its obligations under this Agreement including, but not limited to, 
the following: 

7.1.2.1 Failure to commence work at the time(s) specified in this Agreement due to a reason or 
circumstance within Provider’s reasonable control; 

7.1.2.2 Failure to perform the work with sufficient personnel and equipment or with sufficient 
equipment to ensure completion of the work within the specified time due to a reason or 
circumstance within Provider’s reasonable control; 

7.1.2.3 Failure to perform the work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the City; 

7.1.2.4 Failure to promptly correct or re-perform within a reasonable time work that was rejected 
by the City as unsatisfactory or erroneous; 

7.1.2.5 Discontinuance of the work for reasons not beyond Provider’s reasonable control; 

7.1.2.6 Unsatisfactory performance as judged by the Contract Administrator; 

7.1.2.7 Failure to provide the City, upon request, with adequate assurance of future 
performance; 

7.1.2.8 Failure to comply with a material term of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the 
provision of insurance; and 

7.1.2.9 Any other acts specifically stated in this Agreement as constituting a default or a breach 
of this Agreement.  

7.2 Remedies.   

7.2.1  Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the City may declare Provider in default under this 
Agreement.  The City shall provide written notification of the Event of Default.  If such Event of Default is not 
cured within seven (7) days of receipt of the notification, the City may invoke any or all of the following 
remedies: 

 
7.2.1.1 The right to cancel this Agreement as to any or all of the services yet to be performed; 

7.2.1.2 The right of specific performance, an injunction or any other appropriate equitable 
remedy; 

7.2.1.3 The right to monetary damages; 

7.2.1.4 The right to withhold all or any part of Provider’s compensation under this Agreement; 



 

 6 of 11   

7.2.1.5 The right to deem Provider non-responsive in future contracts to be awarded by the City; 
and 

7.2.1.6 The right to seek recoupment of public funds spent for impermissible purposes. 

7.2.2 The City may elect not to declare an Event of Default or default under this Agreement or to 
terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of an Event of Default.  The parties acknowledge that this 
provision is solely for the benefit of the City, and that if the City allows Provider to continue to provide the 
Services despite the occurrence of one or more Events of Default, Provider shall in no way be relieved of 
any of its responsibilities or obligations under this Agreement, nor shall the City be deemed to waive or 
relinquish any of its rights under this Agreement. 
 
7.2.3 In the Event of Default by the Provider, the City shall not be liable to Provider for any amount, 
and Provider may be liable to the City for any and all damages sustained by reason of the default which 
gave rise to the termination.   

 
7.3 Right to Offset.  Any costs, including but not limited to attorney’s fees, costs of remediation, and costs of 
delay, incurred by the City due to default of Provider, or due to the City’s exercise any of the remedies available to it 
under this Agreement, may be offset by use of any payment due for services completed before the default or the 
exercise of any remedies.  If the offset amount is insufficient to cover excess costs, Provider shall be liable for and 
shall remit promptly to the City the balance upon written demand from the City. 
 
7.4 Termination for Convenience.  The City reserves the right to terminate, with or without cause, this 
Agreement upon ninety (90) days written notice.  The City shall be responsible only for those standard items or 
services which have been delivered and accepted.  If any items being purchased are truly unique and therefore 
not saleable or useable for any other application, the City shall reimburse Provider for actual labor, material, and 
burden costs, plus a profit not to exceed 8%.  Title to all materials, work in progress, and completed but 
undelivered goods, shall pass to the City after costs are claimed and allowed.  Provider shall submit detailed 
cost claims in an acceptable manner and shall permit the City to examine such books and records as may be 
necessary in order to verify the reasonableness of any claims. 
 
8. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
8.1 Headings.  The article and section headings contained herein are for convenience in reference and are not 
intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Agreement. 
 
8.2 Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the 
State of Arizona.  Provider hereby submits itself to the original jurisdiction of those courts located within Coconino 
County, Arizona. 
 
8.3 Attorney’s Fees.  If suit or action is initiated in connection with any controversy arising out of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in addition to costs, such sum as the court, including an 
appellate court, may adjudge reasonable as attorney fees. 
 
8.4 Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be found by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, then notwithstanding such illegality or unenforceability, the remainder 
of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and such term or provision shall be deemed to be deleted. 
 
8.5 Successors and Assigns.  No right or interest in the Agreement shall be assigned by Provider without 
prior written permission of the City, and no delegation of any duty of Provider shall be made without prior written 
permission of the City.  The City shall not unreasonably withhold approval and shall notify Provider of the City’s 
position within fifteen (15) days of receipt of written notice by Provider.  This Agreement shall extend to and be 
binding upon the Provider, its successors and assigns, including any individual, company, partnership, or other 
entity with or into which the Provider shall merge, consolidate, or be liquidated, or any person, corporation, 
partnership, or other entity to which the Provider shall sell its assets.  
  
8.6 Subcontracts.  No subcontract shall be entered into by Provider with any other party to furnish any 
service specified in this Agreement without the advance written approval of the City.  All subcontracts shall 
comply with Federal, State and local laws and regulations that are applicable to the services covered by the 



 

 7 of 11   

subcontract and shall include all the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement which shall apply with 
equal force to the subcontract, as if the subcontractor were the Provider.  Provider is responsible for contract 
performance whether or not subcontractors are used.  The City shall not unreasonably withhold approval and 
shall notify Provider of the City’s position within fifteen (15) days of receipt of written notice by Provider. Provider 
shall be responsible for executing the agreement with subcontractor and obtaining Certificates of Insurance 
verifying the insurance requirements.  
 
8.7 Conflict of Interest.  Provider covenants that Provider presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 
interest, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to 
be performed under this Agreement.  Provider further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, Provider 
shall not engage any employee or apprentice having any such interest.  The parties agree that this Agreement may 
be cancelled for conflict of interest in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes § 38-511. 
 
8.8 Authority to Contract.  Each party represents and warrants that it has full power and authority to enter into 
this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and that it has taken all actions necessary to authorize 
entering into this Agreement. 
 
8.9 Integration.  This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Provider as to those matters 
contained in this Agreement, and no prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to 
those matters, except for documents comprising the RFP Package that have been incorporated into this Agreement.  
This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing signed by duly authorized representatives of the 
parties. 

8.10 Non Appropriation.  If the City Council does not appropriate funds to continue this Agreement and pay 
for charges under this Agreement, the City may terminate this Agreement at the end of the current fiscal period, 
or at the time that funds are no longer available to meet the City’s payment obligations.  The City agrees to give 
written notice of termination to the Provider at least thirty (30) days prior to any termination for a lack of funds 
and will pay to the Provider all approved charges incurred prior to Provider’s receipt of such notice, subject to 
the availability of funds appropriated and budgeted by the City to fund payments under this Agreement. 
 
 
8.11 Non-Discrimination.  Provider shall not discriminate against any employee, or applicant for 
employment in violation of Federal Executive Order 11246, State Executive Order 75-5 as modified by State 
Executive Order 99-4 or A.R.S. 41-1461 et. seq. The Provider shall be required to comply with all applicable 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable 
federal regulations under the Act. 
 
8.12 Compliance with Federal Immigration Laws and Regulations.  Provider hereby warrants to the City 
that the Provider and each of its subcontractors (“Subcontractors”) will comply with, and are contractually 
obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and A.R.S. 
§23-214(A) (hereinafter “Provider Immigration Warranty”). 
 

8.12.1  A breach of the Provider Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement and shall subject the Provider to penalties up to and including termination of this Agreement 
at the sole discretion of the City.  
 
8.12.2  The City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Provider or Subcontractor employee 
who works on this Agreement to ensure that the Provider or Subcontractor is complying with the 
Provider Immigration Warranty. Provider agrees to assist the City in regard to any such inspections.  
 
8.12.3  The City may, at its sole discretion, conduct random verification of the employment records of 
the Provider and any of Subcontractors to ensure compliance with Provider’s Immigration Warranty. 
Provider agrees to assist the City in regard to any random verifications performed. 
  
8.12.4  The provisions of this Article must be included in any contract the Provider enters into with any 
and all of its Subcontractors who provide services under this Agreement or any subcontract. “Services” 
are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor. 
Services include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or transportation facility or 
improvement to real property. 



 

 8 of 11   

 
8.13 Anti-Trust Violations.  The City maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust 
violations are borne by the Provider.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, Provider hereby assigns to the 
City any and all claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill this Agreement.  
 
8.14 Advertising.  Provider shall not advertise or publish information concerning the Agreement, without the 
prior written consent of the City. 
 
8.15 Inspection.  All material, services or construction are subject to final inspection and acceptance by the 
City.  The City may, at reasonable times and at its expense, inspect the plant or place of business of Provider or 
its subcontractor(s) which is related to the performance of this Agreement.  This right of inspection and 
supervision shall include, but not be limited to the right of the City to audit Provider’s records. 
 
8.16 Force Majeure.  Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor deemed 
in default under this Agreement if and to the extent that such party’s performance of this Agreement is 
prevented by reason of force majeure.   
 

8.16.1  The term “force majeure” means an occurrence that is unforeseeable and beyond the control of 
the party affected, which occurs without its fault or negligence, and which it is unable to prevent by 
exercising reasonable diligence.  Without limiting the foregoing, force majeure includes acts of God, acts 
of the public enemy, war, riots, strikes, mobilization, labor disputes, civil disorders, fire, flood, lockouts, 
injunctions-intervention-acts, or unreasonable failures or refusal to act by government authority, and 
other similar occurrences.  The force majeure shall be deemed to commence when the party declaring 
force majeure notifies the other party, in writing, of the existence of the force majeure and shall be 
deemed to continue as long as the results or effects of the force majeure prevent the party from 
resuming performance in accordance with this agreement. 
 
8.16.2  Force majeure shall not include the following occurrences: 
 

8.16.2.1  Late delivery of equipment or materials caused by congestion at a manufacturer’s plant 
or elsewhere, or by an oversold condition of the market. 
 
8.16.2.2  Late performance by a Subcontractor unless the delay arises directly out of a force 
majeure occurrence in accordance with this force majeure term and condition.  Any delay or 
failure in performance by either party hereto shall not constitute default hereunder or give rise to 
any claim for damages or loss of anticipated profits if, and to the extent that, such delay or failure 
is caused by force majeure. 

 
8.16.3  If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by force majeure, the delayed 
party shall notify the other party in writing as soon as is practical, of the commencement of such delay 
and shall specify the causes of such delay in such notice.  Such notice shall be hand delivered or 
mailed certified-return receipt and shall make a specific reference to this section, thereby invoking its 
provisions.  The delayed party shall cause such delay to cease as soon as practicable and shall notify 
the other party in writing when it has done so.  The time of completion shall be extended by Agreement 
modification for a period of time equal to the time that the results or effects of such delay prevent the 
delayed party from performing in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 9 of 11   

8. DURATION 
 
This Agreement shall become effective on and from the date it is executed by the parties, and shall continue for a 
period of _________, unless sooner terminated as provided in this Agreement.  The City reserves the right to 
unilaterally extend the period of the Agreement for ninety (90) days beyond the stated termination date. The 
Agreement may be renewed in writing for a supplemental period of up to 1 additional one-year terms.  The City 
Council authorizes the City of Flagstaff Purchasing Director to administratively renew this Agreement for the 
additional terms specified in this paragraph.  Any additional renewals must be approved by the City Council. 
 
 

(Please sign in blue ink. Submit original signatures – photocopies not accepted)  
 
 
City of Flagstaff  Michael Baker Jr., Inc. 
   

Kevin Burke, City Manager   
   
Attest:   
   

City Clerk   
   
Approved as to form: 
 

  

   
   
City Attorney  Date of Execution: 



 

 10 of 11   

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 

A. Design Concept Report Scope of Services 
 

1. Consultant shall schedule and facilitate project kick off meeting with City staff and project 
stakeholders. Deliverables shall include preparation and distribution of meeting minutes and exhibits. 

 
2. Consultant shall perform a review of the current USACE Plans, Reports and Estimates: 

a.   Review existing 90% USACE flood control plans 
b.  Review existing 90% COF Utility and Surface replacement plans and cost estimates. These 

plans were previously prepared by Shephard Wesnitzer Inc. (SWI) under a contract with the City 
of Flagstaff 

 
3. Consultant shall obtain and review current COF digital topographic survey titled 2013 Aerial 
Survey Lidar/Imaging in LAS format. DCR shall utilize this data to develop the concept plans, 
alternatives, estimates and schedules. 

 
4. Consultant shall prepare an Alternatives Analysis. Consultant shall facilitate an alternative 
alignment design charette with City Staff and appropriate stakeholders to identify design alternatives for the 
study. It is anticipated that the design charette shall produce no more than three alignments for the 
alternatives study. 

 
The chosen alignments shall use FEMA 100 year flows and shall include a preliminary hydraulic model, 
proposed structures, constructability analysis, COF utility and surface impact analysis, preliminary cost and 
schedule estimates and recommendation for preferred alignment. The Consultant shall determine the best 
option from the alternatives developed by the charette team. The best option shall provide a cost effective 
alignment that minimizes impacts to adjacent properties, City and Franchise utilities, surface replacements and 
also takes into account planning considerations and engineering principles for future 
full scale design and construction. 

 
5. Prepare a cost estimate for the preferred alternative. The cost estimate shall include all major 
construction items and shall be presented in a bid schedule format. The cost estimate shall also include any 
contingency items identified during the development of the preferred alternative. Costs shall be consistent 
with historic bids in the Northern Arizona region and shall be reviewed by a registered contractor. Bid 
tabulations from recent City of Flagstaff infrastructure projects are available to assist with this task. 

 
6. Consultant shall schedule and facilitate monthly update meetings with City staff. Consultant shall also 
present the final findings of the DCR to City Council. Deliverables shall consist of all technical data, backup 
data and associated exhibits, cost estimates, schedules and documents. Hydraulic modeling shall be in HEC-
RAS or other format approved by FEMA and the City of Flagstaff. 

 
B. Additional Services 

 
1. Full Design Phase Services. The City may elect to negotiate a new contract with the consultant for full 
design phase services as a second phase of this project. Continuation of the second phase with the 
consultant for full design may be based on performance of this contract AND/OR results of the Design Concept 
Report. The City also reserves the right to solicit for a new procurement and selection process if 
it is determined to be in the best interest of the City. 

 
2. Provide non-exclusive release of all copyrights to the City of Flagstaff. 



 

 11 of 11   

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

 
(SEPARATE ATTACHMENT) 



Michael Baker Jr., Inc.
2929 North Central Ave.
Suite 800
Phoenix, AZ 85012
602-279-1234
FAX 602-279-1411

November 18, 2013 

James Duval 
City of Flagstaff
211 W. Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, AZ. 86001

RE: Rio de Flag Flood Control Design Concept Proposal (Revised)

Dear Mr. Duval: 

Michael Baker Jr., Inc. is proud to present our proposal for providing engineering technical services 
related to the Rio de Flag Flood Control Design Concept Project based on our understanding of the work 
requested by the City of Flagstaff. Attached to this letter you will find proposed Scope of Work and Cost 
Proposal for your review and consideration. Should all the attached items meet your expectations, please 
let us know and we will work with you to complete the contract documents. Should you have any 
comments on any of the attached documents, please send them back to us and we will work with you to a 
final resolution.

We look forward to a successful completion to this high profile project for the City of Flagstaff.

Sincerely,

Timothy Quillman, P.E. 
Assistant Vice President

Attachments: Scope of Work
Cost Proposal 



 

 
November 18, 2013  Page 1 of 7 
SOW - Rio de Flag FEMA DCR 

RIO DE FLAG FLOOD CONTROL DESIGN CONCEPT PROJECT 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

PROJECT BACKGROUND 

This project is located in the northwest quadrant of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona. It is the CLIENT’s desire 
to develop a flood control project that will contain the existing Rio de Flag floodplain for the 100-year 
event within proposed flood control structures. 

Recently the City of Flagstaff has partnered with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) to facilitate 
the stated goal. Due to continued funding issues at the Federal Level, the CLIENT is exploring the option 
of delivering this project without the assistance of the USACE. A project alignment and design have been 
developed to 90% level of completion by the USACE using USACE hydrology and hydraulic modeling (not 
available). In addition, the CLIENT has developed 90% plans for the replacement of City owned utilities 
and surface replacements relative to the USACE flood control plans. 

The Rio de Flag Flood Control Design Concept project will require the CONSULTANT to prepare a Design 
Concept Report (DCR). The DCR shall be based on Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
criteria and shall include the development of up to 3 separate project alternative alignment 
recommendations, preliminary hydraulic modeling, proposed flood control structures, scheduling, cost 
estimating and an outline of the requirements for the City of Flagstaff to ultimately contain the Rio de 
Flag floodplain and obtain CLOMR prior to and LOMR upon completion of construction. 

 
TASK DESCRIPTIONS & DELIVERABLES 
 
Task A Client Coordination  

A.1 Kick-Off Meeting 

CONSULTANT shall organize and facilitate a project kick-off meeting with the CLIENT. The project kick-off 
meeting shall be held at CLIENT office location at a time agreed upon between the CLIENT and 
CONSULTANT. CLIENT shall provide the CONSULTANT with a list of stakeholders that are to be invited to 
the kick-off meeting. CONSULTANT shall come prepared to kick-off meeting to discuss CONSULTANT 
team organization, project design criteria and assumptions, project schedule and anticipated design 
questions. 

Task A.1 DELIVERABLES: Within three working days before the kick-off meeting, CONSULTANT shall 
provide a PDF of the kick-off meeting agenda. Within five working days of completion of the kick-off 
meeting, CONSULTANT shall provide a PDF of the draft meeting minutes for review by CLIENT and 
stakeholders. Upon receiving and review comments of the meeting minutes, the CONSULTANT shall 
address comments and submit a PDF of the final meeting minutes to the CLIENT and stakeholders. 

A.2 LIDAR Turn-over 

CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the CLIENT to obtain and review current CLIENT digital topographic 
survey titled 2013 Aerial Survey Lidar/Imaging in LAS format. The project Design Concept Report (DCR) 



 

 
November 18, 2013  Page 2 of 7 
SOW - Rio de Flag FEMA DCR 

shall utilize this data to develop the concept plans, alternatives, estimates and schedules. Consultant 
shall work with CLIENT staff to identify which portions of CLIENT owned LIDAR data is required for 
production of the DCR. 
 
A.3 Monthly Meetings 

CONSULTANT shall attend monthly meetings throughout the duration of the project. The purpose of the 
meetings will be to discuss progress, issues and schedule. The CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the 
CLIENT regarding the timing of meetings and list of stakeholders to be invited.  

Task A.3 DELIVERABLES: Within three working days before each meeting, the CONSULTANT shall provide 
a PDF of the agenda to the CLIENT and CLIENT identified stakeholders. Within five working days after 
each meeting, the CONSULTANT shall provide a PDF of the meeting minutes to the CLIENT and 
stakeholders. 

A.4 Council Meeting 

CONSULTANT shall attend one City Council Meeting with the CLIENT for purposes of presenting findings 
of the project design concept study. The council meeting will be held in the evening at City of Flagstaff 
pre-determined location.  

Task A.4 DELIVERABLES: The CONSULTANT shall provide 24x36 color exhibits showing the alternatives 
analyzed and recommendations. In addition, the CONSULTANT shall be prepared to produce and 
provide 8 ½ x 11 color hand-outs for facilitating the meeting and have the presentation available in 
Microsoft Power Point Format. 

Task B New Effective Model 

B.1 Structures & Cross Section Survey 

CONSULTANT shall provide additional necessary field survey for capturing structures within the Rio De 
Flag alternative alignments. Structures survey shall include, but not be limited to: invert elevations at 
inlet and outlet, profile length of structure and opening dimensions. 

Task B.1 DELIVERABLES: All survey captured shall be provided to the CLIENT in AutoCAD format.  

B.2 Hydraulic Model 

CONSULTANT shall develop an existing conditions hydraulic model and delineate the 100-year floodplain 
for the reaches of the Rio de Flag and Clay Avenue Wash identified below.    

Rio de Flag: from Lone Tree Road, upstream for approximately 8500 feet (1.61 river miles) to 
Beal Road.  
Clay Avenue Wash:  from the Rio de Flag confluence, upstream for approximately 3600 feet 
(0.68 river miles) to Chateau Drive.  

The model and delineation shall meet all FEMA standards for floodplain mapping, and will constitute the 
“Pre Project” model required for FEMA map revision submittals. While this model may consider local 
drainage effects, identified by the existing USACE design, no new hydrology or hydraulics for local 
drainage will be required for completion of the model. This work will not include any of the 



 

 
November 18, 2013  Page 3 of 7 
SOW - Rio de Flag FEMA DCR 

documentation or other administrative tasks needed solely to revise the Flood Insurance Rate Map(s) 
for these watercourses.  

CONSULTANT shall obtain and review the existing, FEMA regulatory model for these watercourses (if 
available) and the hydraulic models and supporting information developed for the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers project. Where possible, hydraulic structures data shall be taken from these sources to reduce 
the amount of field survey necessary.  

Task B.2 DELIVERABLES: CONSULTANT shall present model input and output files to the CLIENT for 
review and comment. Model submittals will include cross-section location maps with topographic data 
at a scale appropriate for review. Any comments by the CLIENT on the models shall be submitted at one 
time for response by CONSULTANT. Once comments are resolved, CONSULTANT shall submit the final 
models to the CLIENT for their records as part of the final Design Concept Report. 

Task C Review Existing Corps Plans & Models 

C.1 Hydraulic Models 

CONSULTANT shall review hydraulic models produced for the Thorpe Road Bridge under the recently 
completed USACE Rio de Flag design project. Where ever possible, the Consultant shall use the existing 
hydraulic models as the basis for new hydraulic modeling to be completed for the alternatives analysis. 

C.2 90% Plans & Reports 

Consultant shall obtain and review the existing USACE 90% plans and all other supporting project 
documents.  Consultant shall deliver a summary of all reports and reference any data used in the 
development of the project Conceptual Design Report for the City of Flagstaff. 
 
Task D Alternatives Analysis 

D.1 Hydraulic Modeling & CLOMR Requirements 

CONSULTANT shall select and model up to three alignment recommendations for the Rio de Flag using 
FEMA effective flow rates, one of which shall include the current alignment as proposed by USACE. 
CONSULTANT shall develop hydraulic models for each of the three alternatives using the latest FEMA 
approved version of HEC-RAS. While these models may consider local drainage effects identified by the 
existing USACE design, no new hydrology or hydraulics for local drainage will be required for completion 
of the model. All models shall meet FEMA standards for floodplain mapping and effective map revisions. 
Based on the modeling results, each alternative’s influence on the effective Special Flood Hazard Area 
will be used as part of the alternatives analysis. For each alternative alignment, CONSULTANT shall 
identify additional data and analyses that may be required as part of a future CLOMR or LOMR 
application process. 

Task D.1 DELIVERABLES: CONSULTANT shall present model input and output files to the CLIENT for 
review and comment for all hydraulic models developed for this project. Model submittals shall include 
cross-section location maps with topographic data at a scale appropriate for review. Any comments by 
the CLIENT on the models shall be submitted at one time for response by CONSULTANT. Once comments 



 

 
November 18, 2013  Page 4 of 7 
SOW - Rio de Flag FEMA DCR 

are resolved, CONSULTANT shall submit the final models to the CLIENT for their records as part of the 
final Design Concept Report. 

D.2 Utilities Analysis 

For each alternative alignment recommendation selected for hydraulic modeling, CONSULTANT shall 
provide preliminary design concepts for addressing utility conflicts. Design concepts shall take into 
consideration previous designs generated under the USACE Rio de Flag project. Utility analysis shall 
include both public and private utilities that are affected by each of the alternative alignments.  

D.3 Surface Analysis 

For each alternative alignment recommendation selected for hydraulic modeling, CONSULTANT shall 
provide preliminary design concepts for associated surface improvements. Design concepts shall take 
into consideration previous designs generated under the USACE Rio de Flag project. 

D.4 Structures Analysis 

For each alternative alignment selected for hydraulic modeling, CONSULTANT shall provide preliminary 
design concept for arch type structures used to convey the design storm and any modifications required 
to structures that are to remain. Structure design concepts shall include typical cross sections that are to 
be implemented throughout each of the alignments. 

D.5 Constructability & Sequencing Analysis 

For each alternative alignment selected for hydraulic modeling, CONSULTANT shall provide preliminary 
design concepts for construction sequencing. Each alternative alignment shall be reviewed for 
constructability concerns by the CONSULTANT. Design concepts for addressing constructability concerns 
shall be provided by the CONSULTANT.  

D.6 Construction Cost Analysis 

For each alternative alignment selected for hydraulic modeling, CONSULTANT shall provide preliminary 
cost analysis. The cost analysis shall include all major construction items and shall be presented in a bid 
schedule format.  The cost analysis shall also include any contingency items identified during the 
development of the preferred alternative. Costs shall be consistent with historic bids in the Northern 
Arizona region and shall be reviewed by a registered contractor.  Bid tabulations from recent City of 
Flagstaff infrastructure projects are available to assist with this task and can be provided by the CLIENT 
upon request. 

D.7 Value Engineering Charette 

Prior to production of the design concept report, the CONSULTANT shall hold a value engineering (VE) 
Charette at which time the CONSULTANT shall present the alternative alignment recommendations 
selected for hydraulic modeling and the results of the alternatives analysis. The CONSULTANT shall 
prepare one plan exhibit for each of the alternative alignments selected for hydraulic modeling. The plan 
exhibits shall each show arch typical sections and horizontal alignment overlaid with associated surface 
and utility requirements. The VE Charette shall include the CONSULTANT, CLIENT and stakeholders as 
required by the CLIENT.  Upon completion of the VE Charette, one of the three alternative alignments 



 

 
November 18, 2013  Page 5 of 7 
SOW - Rio de Flag FEMA DCR 

selected for hydraulic modeling will be chosen as the preferred alignment. Recommendations discussed 
during the VE Charette shall be documented by the Consultant and considered when producing the 
Design Concept Report.  

Task D.7 DELIVERABLES: One Plan exhibit for each of the alternative alignment recommendations 
selected for hydraulic modeling shall be prepared by the CONSULTANT for the VE Charette. Plan exhibits 
shall be produced on 22x34 sheets. For presentation of floodplain analysis, exhibits shall be produced in 
color on 11x17 sheets. Other analysis documentation may be produced in black & white on 8 ½ x 11 
sheets. Following the VE Charette, CONSULTANT shall present model input criteria and output to the 
CLIENT as PDFs for review and comment. Any comments by the CLIENT on the models shall be 
submitted at one time for response by CONSULTANT. Once comments are resolved, CONSULTANT shall 
submit the final models to the CLIENT for their records as part of the Design Concept Report. All 
deliverables shall also be provided to the CLIENT in color PDF format. In addition to providing hard copy 
documents during the VE Charette, the CONSULTANT shall also be prepared present all materials on 
overhead projector. 

Task E  Design Concept Report 

E.1 Finalize Hydraulic Model 

CONSULTANT shall finalize the hydraulic model for the preferred alignment based on the results of the 
VE Charette and for any other changes that occurred while finalizing the Design Concept Report. The 
final hydraulic model for the preferred alignment shall meet FEMA standards for floodplain mapping and 
map revisions. Based on the modeling results, the City of Flagstaff’s requirements for obtaining a 
Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) and Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) from FEMA beyond the 
proposed improvements will be outlined in the Design Concept Report.  

E.2 Finalize Utility & Surface Recommendations 

CONSULTANT shall provide utility and surface improvement recommendations as a result of the 
preferred alignment. Utility and surface improvements for the preferred alignment shall be overlaid 
onto the plan sheets that show the preferred alignment. 

E.3 Finalize Structure Recommendations 

CONSULTANT shall provide structural recommendations for the arch structures and associated retaining 
walls required for each of the alternative alignments. In addition, CONSULTANT shall provide 
recommendations for modifications to existing structures as a result of the alternative alignments, 
where required. CONSULTANT shall provide  structural typical sections for the preferred alignment. 

E.4 Finalize Estimated Construction Costs 

CONSULTANT shall provide estimated construction costs for the preferred alignment. Estimated 
constructed costs completed in the Alternatives Analysis shall be updated for items identified in the VE 
Charette or as otherwise updated during production of the Draft DCR. 

 

 



 

 
November 18, 2013  Page 6 of 7 
SOW - Rio de Flag FEMA DCR 

E.5 Draft DCR 

CONSULTANT shall produce a draft DCR that presents the final recommendations for the Rio de Flag 
flood control measures. The DCR shall be comprised of the following sections/appendices: 

1. Project background including relevant USACE design data 
2. Design criteria and assumptions 
3. General description of each of the alternatives considered 
4. Design approach and results for the preferred alignment including: 

Hydrology 
Hydraulics  
Conveyance structures 
Associated utility improvements 
Associated surface improvements 
Associated Environmental implications 
Associated Geotechnical implications 
Engineering principles for future full scale design and construction 
FEMA footprints 
CLOMR requirements 
Estimated construction costs 
VE considerations 

5. Final recommendations 
6. Preferred alignment plans (appendices) 
7. Detailed back-up documentation for estimated construction costs (appendices) 
8. Floodplain delineations (appendices) 
9. Hydraulic models and calculations (appendices) 

The preferred alignment plans shall be one plan set that shows arch typical sections, centerline profile 
and horizontal alignment overlaid with associated surface and utility requirements. CONSULTANT shall 
submit the DCR to the CLIENT and identified stakeholders for one review and comment phase. Upon 
review of the DCR by the CLIENT, CONSULTANT shall compile comments received into a draft comment 
matrix and provide response to comments. Once comments are addressed, CONSULTANT shall hold one 
comment review meeting with the CLIENT and identified stakeholders for discussion of comments and 
responses. Following the comment review meeting, CONSULTANT shall provide a final comment 
response matrix that documents all final responses and decisions made during the comment review 
meeting. 

DELIEVERABLES: Five copies of the draft DCR and a color PDF shall be submitted to the CLIENT for review 
and comment. Preferred alignment plans and floodplain map exhibits prepared by the CONSULTANT 
shall be produced on 11x17 sheets at 40 Scale, unless otherwise agreed to by the CLIENT and 
CONSULTANT. Other analysis documentation may be produced on 8 ½ x 11 sheets. Comment review 
matrices shall be submitted in PDF. CONSULTANT shall present model input and output files to the 
CLIENT for review and comment for all hydraulic models developed for the Draft DCR. Model submittals 
shall include cross-section location maps with topographic data at a scale appropriate for review. 



 

 
November 18, 2013  Page 7 of 7 
SOW - Rio de Flag FEMA DCR 

E.6 Final DCR 

CONSULTANT shall produce and submit a final DCR upon distribution of the draft DCR final comment 
response matrix. The final DCR shall be comprised of all sections and appendices included in the draft 
DCR with the appropriate edits made. Upon completion of the final DCR, CONSULTANT shall submit the 
final DCR to the CLIENT for final back check. Should the CLIENT identify any comments noted in the final 
comment response matrix that were not addressed, CONSULTANT shall promptly make the necessary 
corrections and re-submit the final DCR to the CLIENT. 

DELIEVERABLES: Five copies of the draft DCR and a color PDF shall be submitted to the CLIENT for review 
and comment. Plans and floodplain map exhibits prepared by the CONSULTANT shall be produced on 
11x17 sheets. Other analysis documentation may be produced on 8 ½ x 11 sheets. Comment review 
matrices shall be submitted in PDF. CONSULTANT shall submit model input and output files to the 
CLIENT for all hydraulic models developed for the Final DCR. Model submittals shall include cross-section 
location maps with topographic data at a scale appropriate for review. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

The CLIENT has identified a project completion date of June 30, 2014. CONSULTANT shall coordinate 
with the CLIENT regarding intermediate project submittal dates. Once initial dates are agreed upon by 
the CLIENT and CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT shall develop the project draft schedule in Microsoft 
Project format. CONSULTANT shall provide a PDF of the draft schedule to the CLIENT for review and 
comment. Once all comments are resolved, the draft schedule shall be finalized as the baseline schedule 
by the CONSULTANT and provided to the CLIENT. 



Michael Baker Jr., Inc.

Contract No.:  TBD
Project Name: Rio De Flag Flood Control Project Conceptual Design Report
Date: November 18, 2013

Project Manager 110 7,150.00$
Engineer Sr 210 10,920.00$
Geotechnical Engineer Sr 8 416.00$
Engineer Jr 250 10,750.00$
CAD Technician 164 3,936.00$
Project Assistant / Administrator 18 360.00$

760

Total Direct Labor 33,532.00$
Overhead 162.92% 54,630.33$

Total Labor with Overhead 88,162.33$

Travel 3,607.20$
Reproduction 498.00$
Shipping 40.00$
Miscellaneous 200.00$

Total Other Direct Costs 4,345.20$

Shepard Wesnitzer, Inc. 80,472.08$
Hunter Contracting, Co. 39,998.28$

Total Sub-Consultant Costs 120,470.36$

Total Cost to Consultant 212,977.90$
PROFIT (Direct Labor) 10.00% 8,816.23$

Sub-Consultant Administration 2.50% 3,011.76$
TOTAL COST 224,805.89$

Timothy Quillman, PE
Assistant Vice President

Date

SUB-CONSULTANT COSTS

20.00$

 Hourly Rates 
65.00$
52.00$

Total Hours

OTHER DIRECT COSTS

COST PROPOSAL SUMMARY

LABOR

Classification Hours
 Average 

52.00$

 Direct Labor
Costs 

43.00$
24.00$

11/18/2013



Michael Baker Jr., Inc.

Contract No.:  TBD

Project Name: Rio De Flag Flood Control Project Conceptual Design Report

Labor (Burdened) ODC Sub-Consultants (Plus 
Administration) Sub-Task Total Task Total

Task A Client Coordination 28,232.99$

A.1 Kick-Off Meeting 4,037.40$ 329.75$ 3,965.32$ 8,332.47$

A.2 LIDAR Turn-over 526.37$ -$ 3,482.95$ 4,009.31$

A.3 Monthly Meetings 7,114.62$ 989.75$ 1,302.16$ 9,406.53$

A.4 Council Meeting 3,493.68$ 752.65$ 2,238.34$ 6,484.67$

Task B New Effective Model 24,074.06$

B.1 Structures & Cross Section Survey 994.89$ -$ 9,048.59$ 10,043.48$

B.2 Hydraulic Modeling 13,055.03$ 975.55$ -$ 14,030.58$

Task C Review Existing Corps Plans & Models 12,295.69$

C.1 Hydraulic Models 2,573.99$ -$ -$ 2,573.99$

C.2 90% Plans & Reports 977.54$ 28.00$ 8,716.17$ 9,721.70$

Task D Alternatives Analysis 95,934.21$

D.1 Hydraulic Modeling 23,669.11$ -$ -$ 23,669.11$

D.2 Utilities Analysis 375.98$ -$ 28,446.55$ 28,822.52$

D.3 Surface Analysis 375.98$ -$ 5,589.60$ 5,965.57$

D.4 Structures Analysis 601.56$ -$ 7,876.51$ 8,478.07$

D.5 Constructability & Sequencing Analysis 1,955.07$ -$ 4,169.21$ 6,124.28$

D.6 Cost Analysis 1,955.07$ -$ 10,608.34$ 12,563.41$

D.7 Value Engineering & Charette 5,656.99$ 429.75$ 4,224.50$ 10,311.24$

Task E Design Concept Report 64,268.94$

E.1 Finalize Hydraulic Model 3,846.52$ -$ -$ 3,846.52$

E.2 Finalize Utility & Surface Recommendations 375.98$ -$ 23,705.03$ 24,081.01$

E.3 Finalize Structure Recommendations 977.54$ -$ 2,069.89$ 3,047.42$

E.4 Finalize Cost Estimates 977.54$ -$ 2,613.59$ 3,591.12$

E.5 Draft DCR 18,613.68$ 255.00$ 3,439.24$ 22,307.92$

E.6 Final DCR 4,824.06$ 584.75$ 1,986.14$ 7,394.94$

96,978.57$ 4,345.20$ 123,482.12$ 224,805.89$

BAKER TASK SUMMARY

Totals

Task



Michael Baker Jr., Inc.

Contract No.:  TBD

Project Name: Rio De Flag Flood Control Project Conceptual Design Report

Descriptions

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er

E
ng

in
ee

r 
Sr

G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l 
E

ng
in

ee
r 

Sr

E
ng

in
ee

r 
Jr

C
A

D
 T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n

 P
ro

je
ct

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
 / 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

or
 

T
ot

al
 H

ou
rs

B
as

e 
L

ab
or

 $

 $                 65.00  $                   52.00  $           52.00  $                   43.00  $                24.00 20.00$                 

Task A Client Coordination

A.1 Kick-Off Meeting 8                          12                         4                           4                          28 1,396.00$               

A.2 LIDAR Turn-over 2                           4                         6 182.00$                  

A.3 Monthly Meetings 36                        6                          42 2,460.00$               

A.4 Council Meeting 8                          8                           8                         4                          28 1,208.00$               

Task B New Effective Model

B.1 Structures & Cross Section Survey 8                           8 344.00$                  

B.2 Hydraulic Modeling 2                          24                         64                         16                       106 4,514.00$               

Task C Review Existing Corps Plans & Models

C.1 Hydraulic Models 2                          8                           8                           18 890.00$                  

C.2 90% Plans & Reports 2                          4                           6 338.00$                  

Task D Alternatives Analysis

D.1 Hydraulic Modeling 8                          72                         80                         20                       180 8,184.00$               

D.2 Utilities Analysis 2                          2 130.00$                  

D.3 Surface Analysis 2                          2 130.00$                  

D.4 Structures Analysis 4                    4 208.00$                  

D.5 Constructability & Sequencing Analysis 4                          8                           12 676.00$                  

D.6 Cost Analysis 4                          8                           12 676.00$                  

D.7 Value Engineering & Charette 8                          8                           4                           32                       4                          56 1,956.00$               

Task E Design Concept Report

E.1 Finalize Hydraulic Model 2                          8                           16                         4                         30 1,330.00$               

E.2 Finalize Utility & Surface Recommendations 2                          2 130.00$                  

E.3 Finalize Structure Recommendations 2                          4                    6 338.00$                  

E.4 Finalize Cost Estimates 2                          4                           6 338.00$                  

E.5 Draft DCR 12                        30                         64                         56                       162 6,436.00$               

E.6 Final DCR 4                          16                         24                       44 1,668.00$               

Total Hours 110                      210                       8                    250                       164                     18                        760        

Totals $ 7,150.00$            10,920.00$           416.00$         10,750.00$           3,936.00$           360.00$               33,532.00$             

BAKER LABOR SUMMARY



Michael Baker Jr., Inc.

Contract No.:  TBD

Project Name: Rio De Flag Flood Control Project Conceptual Design Report

No. of 
People No. of Trips Days per Trip Lodging Rate Lodging 

Taxes
M&IE Rate Task Total Trips Miles per 

Trip Units Miles Unit Rate Task Total

Task A Client Coordination -$                   -$                       

A.1 Kick-Off Meeting 2 1 1 66.00$           132.00$             1 350 350 0.565$             197.75$                 

A.2 LIDAR Turn-over -$                   -$                       

A.3 Monthly Meetings 2 6 1 66.00$           792.00$             1 350 350 0.565$             197.75$                 

A.4 Council Meeting 2 1 2 83.00$                     12.45$         66.00$           454.90$             1 350 350 0.565$             197.75$                 

Task B New Effective Model -$                   -$                       

B.1 Structures & Cross Section Survey -$                   -$                       

B.2 Hydraulic Modeling 2 1 3 83.00$                     12.45$         66.00$           777.80$             1 350 350 0.565$             197.75$                 

Task C Review Existing Corps Plans & Models -$                   -$                       

C.1 Hydraulic Models -$                   -$                       

C.2 90% Plans & Reports -$                   -$                       

Task D Alternatives Analysis -$                   -$                       

D.1 Hydraulic Modeling -$                   -$                       

D.2 Utilities Analysis -$                   -$                       

D.3 Surface Analysis -$                   -$                       

D.4 Structures Analysis -$                   -$                       

D.5 Constructability & Sequencing Analysis -$                   -$                       

D.6 Cost Analysis -$                   -$                       

D.7 Value Engineering & Charette 2 1 1 66.00$           132.00$             1 350 350 0.565$             197.75$                 

Task E Design Concept Report -$                   -$                       

E.1 Finalize Hydraulic Model -$                   -$                       

E.2 Finalize Utility & Surface Recommendations -$                   -$                       

E.3 Finalize Structure Recommendations -$                   -$                       

E.4 Finalize Cost Estimates -$                   -$                       

E.5 Draft DCR -$                   -$                       

E.6 Final DCR 2 1 1 66.00$           132.00$             1 350 350 0.565$             197.75$                 

Totals 2,420.70$          1,186.50$              

Total Travel Costs: 3,607.20$

MileagePer Diem (Lodging + M&IE)
TaskTask

BAKER TRAVEL COSTS



Michael Baker Jr., Inc.

Contract No.:  TBD

Project Name: Rio De Flag Flood Control Project Conceptual Design Report

Task A Client Coordination -$ -$ -$ -$

A.1 Kick-Off Meeting -$ -$ -$ -$

A.2 LIDAR Turn-over -$ -$ -$ -$

A.3 Monthly Meetings -$ -$ -$ -$

A.4 Council Meeting -$ -$ -$ 5 20.00$ 100.00$

Task B New Effective Model -$ -$ -$ -$

B.1 Structures & Cross Section Survey -$ -$ -$ -$

B.2 Hydraulic Modeling -$ -$ -$ -$

Task C Review Existing Corps Plans & Models -$ -$ -$ -$

C.1 Hydraulic Models -$ -$ -$ -$

C.2 90% Plans & Reports -$ 100 4 0.07$ 28.00$ -$ -$

Task D Alternatives Analysis -$ -$ -$ -$

D.1 Hydraulic Modeling -$ -$ -$ -$

D.2 Utilities Analysis -$ -$ -$ -$

D.3 Surface Analysis -$ -$ -$ -$

D.4 Structures Analysis -$ -$ -$ -$

D.5 Constructability & Sequencing Analysis -$ -$ -$ -$

D.6 Cost Analysis -$ -$ -$ -$

D.7 Value Engineering & Charette -$ -$ -$ 5 20.00$ 100.00$

Task E Design Concept Report -$ -$ -$ -$

E.1 Finalize Hydraulic Model -$ -$ -$ -$

E.2 Finalize Utility & Surface Recommendations -$ -$ -$ -$

E.3 Finalize Structure Recommendations -$ -$ -$ -$

E.4 Finalize Cost Estimates -$ -$ -$ -$

E.5 Draft DCR 50 8 0.50$ 200.00$ 10 50 0.07$ 35.00$ 1 20.00$ 20.00$ -$

E.6 Final DCR 50 8 0.50$ 200.00$ 10 50 0.07$ 35.00$ 1 20.00$ 20.00$ -$

Totals 400.00$ 98.00$ 40.00$ 200.00$

Total Reproduction:  $          498.00 

Total Shipping:  $            40.00 

Total Miscellaneous  $          200.00 

BAKER REPRODUCTION & MISCELLANEOUS COSTS
Poster Boards

Number Unit RateDocument 
Pages

Unit Rate Task Total Unit RateNumber

Copies 11x17

Copies

Shipping/Express MailCopies 8.5x11 (Color)

Task TotalTask TotalUnit Rate CopiesTask Task TotalDocument 
Pages



Michael Baker Jr., Inc.

Contract No.:  04-03014

Project Name: Rio De Flag Flood Control Project Conceptual Design Report

SWI HUNTER Total

Task A Client Coordination -$                        

A.1 Kick-Off Meeting 2,134.77$             1,733.84$              3,868.61$               

A.2 LIDAR Turn-over 3,398.00$             3,398.00$               

A.3 Monthly Meetings 1,270.40$             1,270.40$               

A.4 Council Meeting 1,143.67$             1,040.08$              2,183.75$               

Task B New Effective Model -$                        

B.1 Structures & Cross Section Survey 8,827.90$             8,827.90$               

B.2 Hydraulic Modeling -$                        

Task C Review Existing Corps Plans & Models -$                        

C.1 Hydraulic Models -$                        

C.2 90% Plans & Reports 1,417.66$             7,085.92$              8,503.58$               

Task D Alternatives Analysis -$                        

D.1 Hydraulic Modeling -$                        

D.2 Utilities Analysis 27,752.73$           27,752.73$             

D.3 Surface Analysis 5,453.27$             5,453.27$               

D.4 Structures Analysis 7,684.40$              7,684.40$               

D.5 Constructability & Sequencing Analysis 4,067.52$              4,067.52$               

D.6 Cost Analysis 10,349.60$            10,349.60$             

D.7 Value Engineering & Charette 1,693.87$             2,427.60$              4,121.47$               

Task E Design Concept Report -$                        

E.1 Finalize Hydraulic Model -$                        

E.2 Finalize Utility & Surface Recommendations 23,126.86$           23,126.86$             

E.3 Finalize Structure Recommendations 2,019.40$              2,019.40$               

E.4 Finalize Cost Estimates 2,549.84$              2,549.84$               

E.5 Draft DCR 2,835.31$             520.04$                 3,355.35$               

E.6 Final DCR 1,417.66$             520.04$                 1,937.70$               

80,472.08$           39,998.28$            120,470.36$            

BAKER SUBCONSULTANT SUMMARY

Task

Totals



MICHAEL BAKER JR., INC.

Sub-Consultant

Shepard Wesnitzer, Inc.



Contract No.:  TBD

Project Name: Rio De Flag Flood Control Project Conceptual Design Report

Date: November 15, 2013

Project Manager 87                                5,046.00$                           
Project Engineer 68                                2,873.00$                           
Design Engineer 504                              14,278.32$                         
CAD Drafter 36                                864.00$                              
Project Surveyor 96                                2,784.00$                           
Robotic Total Station Survey Crew -                                   -$                                    
Clerical 9                                  189.00$                              

800                               

Total Direct Labor 26,034.32$                         

  Overhead 181.00% 47,122.12$                         

Total Labor with Overhead 73,156.44$                         

Travel -$                                    
Reproduction -$                                    
Shipping -$                                    
Miscellaneous -$                                    

Total Other Direct Costs -$                                    

Total Cost to Consultant 73,156.44$                         

PROFIT (Direct Labor) 10.00% 7,315.64$                           

TOTAL COST 80,472.08$                         

NAME Guillermo E. Cortes
TITLE Vice President

11/15/2013
Date

COST PROPOSAL SUMMARY

LABOR

Classification Hours
 Average  Direct Labor

Costs 

21.00$                              

 Hourly Rates 
58.00$                              
42.25$                              

Total Hours

OTHER DIRECT COSTS

28.33$                              
24.00$                              
29.00$                              

8.33$                                



SHEPARD WESNITZER, INC.

Contract No.:  TBD
Project Name: Rio De Flag Flood Control Project Conceptual Design Report

Labor (Burdened) ODC Sub-Task Total Task Total

NON-DESIGN

Task A Client Coordination 7,946.84$

A.1 Kick-Off Meeting 2,134.77$ -$ 2,134.77$

A.2 LIDAR Turn-over 3,398.00$ -$ 3,398.00$

A.3 Monthly Meetings 1,270.40$ -$ 1,270.40$

A.4 Council Meeting 1,143.67$ -$ 1,143.67$

Task B New Effective Model 8,827.90$

B.1 Structures & Cross Section Survey 8,827.90$ -$ 8,827.90$

B.2 Hydraulic Modeling -$ -$ -$

Task C Review Existing Corps Plans & Models 1,417.66$

C.1 Hydraulic Models -$ -$ -$

C.2 90% Plans & Reports 1,417.66$ -$ 1,417.66$

Task D Alternatives Analysis 32,097.69$

D.1 Hydraulic Modeling -$ -$ -$

D.2 Utilities Analysis 24,950.55$ -$ 24,950.55$

D.3 Surface Analysis 5,453.27$ -$ 5,453.27$

D.4 Structures Analysis -$ -$ -$

D.5 Constructability & Sequencing Analysis -$ -$ -$

D.6 Cost Analysis -$ -$ -$

D.7 Value Engineering & Charette 1,693.87$ -$ 1,693.87$

Task E Design Concept Report 30,182.01$

E.1 Finalize Hydraulic Model -$ -$ -$

E.2 Finalize Utility & Surface Recommendations 25,929.04$ -$ 25,929.04$

E.3 Finalize Structure Recommendations -$ -$ -$

E.4 Finalize Cost Estimates -$ -$ -$

E.5 Draft DCR 2,835.31$ -$ 2,835.31$

E.6 Final DCR 1,417.66$ -$ 1,417.66$

80,472.08$ -$ 80,472.08$

SWI TASK SUMMARY

Totals

Task



SHEPARD WESNITZER, INC.

Contract No.:  TBD

Project Name: Rio De Flag Flood Control Project Conceptual Design Report

Descriptions

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er

Pr
oj

ec
t E

ng
in

ee
r

D
es

ig
n 

E
ng

in
ee

r

C
A

D
 D

ra
fte

r

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ur
ve

yo
r

R
ob

ot
ic

 T
ot

al
 

St
at

io
n 

Su
rv

ey
 

C
re

w

 C
le

ri
ca

l 

T
ot

al
 H

ou
rs

B
as

e 
L

ab
or

 $

 $                 58.00  $                   42.25  $                   28.33  $                24.00 29.00$ 8.33$ 21.00$

Task A Client Coordination

A.1 Kick-Off Meeting 8 8 16 690.64$

A.2 LIDAR Turn-over 1 4 32 37 1,099.32$

A.3 Monthly Meetings 6 3 9 411.00$

A.4 Council Meeting 4 4 2 10 370.00$

Task B New Effective Model

B.1 Structures & Cross Section Survey 4 32 64 100 2,856.00$

B.2 Hydraulic Modeling 0 -$

Task C Review Existing Corps Plans & Models

C.1 Hydraulic Models 0 -$

C.2 90% Plans & Reports 4 8 12 458.64$

Task D Alternatives Analysis

D.1 Hydraulic Modeling 0 -$

D.2 Utilities Analysis 24 24 200 248 8,072.00$

D.3 Surface Analysis 8 12 28 48 1,764.24$

D.4 Structures Analysis 0 -$

D.5 Constructability & Sequencing Analysis 0 -$

D.6 Cost Analysis 0 -$

D.7 Value Engineering & Charette 8 4 12 548.00$

Task E Design Concept Report

E.1 Finalize Hydraulic Model 0 -$

E.2 Finalize Utility & Surface Recommendations 8 32 232 272 8,388.56$

E.3 Finalize Structure Recommendations 0 -$

E.4 Finalize Cost Estimates 0 -$

E.5 Draft DCR 8 16 24 917.28$

E.6 Final DCR 4 8 12 458.64$

Total Hours 87 68 504 36 96 - 9 800

Totals $ 5,046.00$ 2,873.00$ 14,278.32$ 864.00$ 2,784.00$ -$ 189.00$ 26,034.32$

NON-DESIGN

SWI LABOR SUMMARY



MICHAEL BAKER JR., INC.

Sub-Consultant

Hunter Contracting Co.





HUNTER CONTRACTING  CO.

Contract No.:  TBD

Project Name: Rio De Flag Flood Control Project Conceptual Design Report

Descriptions

Pr
og

ra
m

 M
an

ag
er

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Sr

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er

E
ng

in
ee

r 
Sr

St
ru

ct
ur

al
 

E
ng

in
ee

r 
Sr

G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l 
E

ng
in

ee
r 

Sr

C
iv

il 
E

ng
in

ee
r

St
ru

ct
ur

al
 

E
ng

in
ee

r

G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l 
E

ng
in

ee
r

A
rc

hi
te

ct
 J

r

E
ng

in
ee

r 
Jr

D
es

ig
ne

r

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
Su

rv
ey

or

Pa
rt

y 
C

hi
ef

 S
ur

ve
y 

T
ec

h 
/ 

In
st

ru
m

en
t P

er
so

n 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
A

dm
in

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

 

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
E

st
im

at
in

g 

 C
os

t E
st

im
at

or
 

Pr
oj

ec
t A

ss
is

ta
nt

 / 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
or

 

T
ot

al
 H

ou
rs

B
as

e 
L

ab
or

 $

 $         130.01  $           86.72  $                 69.45  $                        -    $                      -    $                 -    $                   -    $                93.71  $                 -    $                 -    $                        -    $                      -   -$               -$               -$               35.30$           80.85$           117.14$              86.72$                 -$                     

Task A Client Coordination

A.1 Kick-Off Meeting 8 8 16 1,733.84$               

A.2 LIDAR Turn-over 0 -$                        

A.3 Monthly Meetings 0 -$                        

A.4 Council Meeting 8 8 1,040.08$               

Task B New Effective Model

B.1 Data collection and review 0 -$                        

B.2 Hydraulic modeling 0 -$                        

B.3 Floodplain delineation 0 -$                        

B.4 Structures & Cross Section Survey 0 -$                        

Task C Review Existing Corps Plans & Models

C.1 Hydraulic Models 0 -$                        

C.2 90% Plans & Reports 16 8 16 8 24 72 7,085.92$               

Task D Alternatives Analysis

D.1 Hydraulic Modeling 0 -$                        

D.2 Utilities Analysis 0 -$                        

D.3 Surface Analysis 0 -$                        

D.4 Structures Analysis 16 46 16 78 7,684.42$               

D.5 Constructability & Sequencing Analysis 16 8 16 40 4,067.52$               

D.6 Cost Analysis 8 4 16 8 80 116 10,349.60$             

D.7 Value Engineering & Charette 8 8 8 24 2,427.60$               

Task E Design Concept Report

E.1 Finalize Hydraulic Model 0 -$                        

E.2 Finalize Utility & Surface Recommendations 0 -$                        

E.3 Finalize Structure Recommendations 4 16 20 2,019.40$               

E.4 Finalize Cost Estimates 4 24 28 2,549.84$               

E.5 Draft DCR 4 4 520.04$                  

E.6 Final DCR 4 4 520.04$                  

Total Hours 92 32 - - - - - 62 - - - - - - - 4 64 20 136 - 410

Totals $ 11,961 2,775 -$                     -$                       -$                    -$               -$                 5,810.02$           -$               -$               -$                       -$                    -$               -$               -$               141.20$         5,174.40$      2,342.80$           11,793.92$          -$                     39,998.30$             

NON-DESIGN

COMPANY NAME LABOR SUMMARY





  10. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Ryan Roberts, Utilities Engineering Manager

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Wildcat Hill WWTP Temporary Digested Solids Dewatering
System Project

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Authorize award and execution of a contract with Felix Construction for the installation of the
Temporary Digested Solids Dewatering Project at the Wildcat Hill Wastewater Treatment Plant for a
total contract amount not to exceed $1,023,501.
2) Authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Award of the contract will authorize the construction of the Temporary Digested Solids Dewatering
System project at the Wildcat Hill Wastewater Treatment Plant in accordance with the approved Public
Improvement Plans prepared by Carollo Engineers. This is a regulatory project required to comply with
the Consent Order issued by the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality signed May 2013. 

Financial Impact:
Funding is available in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Utilities Division Capital Budget.
This project is budgeted in Account # 201-5709-772-4306 (FY2014) in the amount of $1,200,000 dollars.
To date $150,076 has been spent on engineering fees, leaving $1,049,923 remaining in the project fund
balance for the completion of this project without change orders.

Connection to Council Goal:
  1. Repair Replace maintain infrastructure (streets & utilities)

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Staff approached City Council on February 26, 2013 who approved $1.2M in upgrades to Wildcat Hill
WWTP solids handling operation. The City hired Carollo Engineers who completed the design in July
2013 on a temporary solution to better handle the solids at Wildcat Hill WWTP. This new design was
recently approved by ADEQ in October 2013.  

Options and Alternatives:
Approve the award as recommended
Reject bids and re-advertise the project



Background/History:
Significant concerns with the existing solids dewatering system at the Wildcat Hill Wastewater Treatment
Plant (WWTP) have caused the city to implement a temporary solids (digested sludge) dewatering
project. Currently, the two Solids Settling basins (SSBs) at the Wildcat Hill facility are completely full of
solids. This results in an overflow condition where the supernatant being returned to the plant process
contains high levels of solids, nitrogen and ammonia. The supernatant being returned to the WWTP is
thought to be causing issues with the treatment process. This new project is generally described as
temporarily installing a supplemental geotextile fabric tube (Geotube®) dewatering system that will work
in conjunction with the existing solids settling basins (SSBs) and Dedicated Land Disposal (DLD) site, to
maintain compliance with the plant’s existing permits.
     
The Wildcat Hill WWTP was originally designed by Brown & Caldwell in 1979 to handle 1083 tons per
year of digested solids. Since that time the plant has continually added solids from other sources such as
Rio De Flag WRF, other Coconino County subdivisions, and septic haulers while never increasing the
solids handling capacity of the plant. Currently the plant is handling 1480 tons per year of solids loading
which is 400 tons per year above the original design of 1083 tons per year. This is a 37% increase in
solids handling due to growth in our community and the surrounding area.  The upgrade to Wildcat Hill
WWTP completed in 2010 did not include an upgrade to its solids handling and treatment process.

The Wildcat Hill WWTP has no mechanical dewatering of digested sludge. Sludge is pumped from the
anaerobic digesters to the solids settling basins that are located southeast of the WWTP for storage. At
appropriate times (seasonal, or when ponds are full) the solids from SSBs are disposed of using on-site
land application in an approximately 40-acre DLD area. The sludge is disked, or knifed, into the earth on
the DLD when frost or saturation conditions allow. When the DLD is shut down due to
seasonality/weather, the digested solids are stored in the solids settling basins until the warmer dry
weather returns.

The existing two SSBs have been experiencing operational issues since 2009. The SSBs are not
functioning to drop the solids out of the dewatering system. Some of the digested sludge solids and high
nitrogen loads are being returned to the WWTP in the supernatant. The supernatant flow comes back
into the WWTP downstream of the primary clarifiers. The digested sludge solids that are returned to the
WWTP do not settle out, they float, so they are not removed in the secondary clarifiers, causing bulking
and solids overflow to the tertiary filters, which causes additional problems with filtration and disinfection.
The solids and nitrogen loads that are being returned are thought to be causing issues with the
Integrated Fixed-Film Activated sludge (IFAS) process. Some of the issues the City would like to address
with the temporary dewatering system are: dewater the solids; reduce the amount of solids returning to
the plant; reduce the amount of ammonia being returned to the plant; process the solids on-site versus
hauling costs and disposal fee to take to a landfill; and install a temporary system that will function during
cold weather months.

The current project will develop a temporary solids dewatering system solution to allow the city to return
dewatering supernatant to the WWTP with a lower solids content and ammonia load than the current
system does. It is estimated that the temporary dewatering system will be in place at for approximately
2-3 years.

The design of the temporary solids dewatering system includes the following:
  

Installation of a temporary digested sludge solids dewatering and polymer injection system to
dewater an average daily sludge flow of approximately 70,000 gallons per day at 1.5 – 2.5 percent
solids.
Constructing a paved lay down area for the placement of the geotextile fabric dewatering bags
(Geotubes®). The lay down area will generally consist of grading a pad, installing a geogrid or
geotechnical fabric, placing and compacting an aggregate subbase, and installation of an asphalt
cement running surface for trucks or earthmoving machinery. The dewatering concept will utilize a



new header piping system with detachable hose to fill the Geotubes® with digested sludge. The
supernatant (or filtrate) from the Geotubes® will be returned to the WWTP utilizing the existing
12-inch Supernatant line. The filtrate will return to the plant in its current location.
The plant will inject polymer into the digested sludge line prior to filling the Geotube® bags.
The Geotube® bags will be designed to allow for filling from more than one location.
The plant will have the option of either disposing of the dewatered solids at the existing DLD, or
having them taken to a landfill for disposal.

Staff issued an Invitation for Bid for construction services on September 18, 2013. The solicitation ran for
three consecutive weeks with two advertisements in the Az Daily Sun. Staff received eight responses,
Felix Construction Company was the lowest responsive bid.   

Key Considerations:
This project is required in order to maintain our existing permit and regulatory compliance with the
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality(state)  and the EPA (federal).

This temporary solids dewatering system project was approved and permitted by ADEQ in October 2013.
  

Expanded Financial Considerations:
This is a temporary solution  estimated to be in place 2-3 years until a permanent Solids Handling
process can be designed and implemented at the Wildcat Hill Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
Using geotextile fabric dewatering bags to dewatering sludge is a very cost-effective temporary method
versus mechanical dewatering of digested sludge which requires high energy demand. This process
uses gravity rather than electrical energy to dewater the sludge. 

Community Involvement:
Inform

Attachments:  Bid Results - Wildcat Temp Solids Dewatering Project 10-14-2013
Construction Contract



City of Flagstaff 

Bid Tabulation Sheet 

 

Date: 10/14/2013                 Bid/Project No:  2014-26       

Bid/Project name: Wildcat Hill WWTP Temporary Digested Solids 

Dewatering System Project 

 

# Vendor Bid Amount 

1 Felix Construction $1,023,501 

2 KEAR Civil Corp $1,169,000 

3 Fann Environmental $1,205,400 

4 PCL Construction $1,214,000 

5 Hunter Contracting $1,231,100 

6 Sky Engineering $1,292,002 

7 Skanska $1,422,500 

8 Woodruff Construction $1,527,000 

 



 1  

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 

City of Flagstaff, Arizona 
And 

Felix Construction Company 
 

This Construction Contract (“Contract”) is made and entered into this    day of  
    2013, by and between the City of Flagstaff, an Arizona municipal 
corporation with offices at 211 West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona ("Owner") and Felix 
Construction Company, an Arizona Corporation ("Contractor") with offices at 1326 West Industrial 
Avenue, Coolidge, Arizona.  Contractor and the Owner may be referred to each individually as a 
“Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Owner desires to obtain construction services; and  
 
B. Contractor has available and offers to provide personnel and materials necessary to 
accomplish the work and complete the Project as described in the Scope of Work within the 
required time in accordance with the calendar days included in this Contract. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Owner and Contractor agree as follows: 
 

1. Scope of Work.  The Contractor shall furnish any and all labor, materials, equipment, 
transportation, utilities, services and facilities required to perform all work for the construction of 

Wildcat Hill Wastewater Treatment Plant Temporary Digested Solids Dewatering System 
(the “Project”).  Contractor shall construct the Project for the Owner in a good, workmanlike and 
substantial manner and to the satisfaction of the Owner through its engineers and under the 
direction and supervision of the City Engineer, or his properly authorized agents including but not 
limited to project managers and project engineers.  Contractor’s work shall be strictly pursuant to 
and in conformity with the Contract. 
 
1.1 A Pre-Construction Conference will be held with the successful Contractor after the Notice 

of Award is issued.   The date and time of the Conference will be agreed upon between the 
Contractor and the Engineer.  The meeting will be held at City Hall, 211 West Aspen 
Avenue, Flagstaff, AZ 86001.  The purpose of the meeting is to outline specific 
construction items and procedures that the City of Flagstaff (the “Owner”) feels require 
special attention on the part of the Contractor.  The Contractor may also present any 
variations in procedures to improve the workability of the Project, reduce the cost, or reduce 
inconvenience to the public.  The Contractor shall submit a written proposal at this 
conference outlining intended plans for pavement replacement, maintaining continuous 
access to residences and businesses along the construction site, and traffic control. 

 

2. Contract; Ownership of Work.  Contractor shall furnish and deliver all of the materials 
and perform all of the work in accordance with this Contract; Construction Plans; Special 
Provisions; the City of Flagstaff Engineering Design and Construction Standards and 



 2  

Specifications; the latest version of the Maricopa Association of Governments (“MAG”) 
Specifications for Public Works Construction and City revisions to the MAG Specifications for 
Public Works Construction (“Exhibit A”); and any Arizona Department of Transportation 
(A.D.O.T.) Standards that may be referenced on the Plans or in the specifications, incorporated in 
this Contract by reference, plans and associated documents.  All provisions of the Invitation for 
Construction Bids, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Certificates of Insurance, Addenda, Change 
Orders and Field Orders, if any, are hereby incorporated into this Contract.  All materials, work, 
specifications and plans shall be the property of the Owner. 
 
The following exhibits are incorporated by reference and are expressly made a part of this 
Contract: 
 
2.1.1 Revisions of MAG Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction Exhibit A 
                    (“Flagstaff Addendum to MAG”)       
2.1.2 Special Provisions         Exhibit B 
 

3. Payments.  In consideration of the faithful performance of the work described in this 

Contract, the Owner shall pay an amount not to exceed $1,023,501.00 to the Contractor for work 
and materials provided in accordance with the bid schedule, which amount includes all federal, 
state, and local taxes, as applicable.  This amount shall be payable through monthly progress 
payments, subject to the following conditions: 
 
3.1 Contractor shall promptly submit to the Owner all proper invoices necessary for the 

determination of the prices of labor and materials; 
 
3.2 Progress payments shall be made in the amount of ninety percent (90%) of the value of 

labor and materials incorporated in the work, based on the sum of the Contract prices of 
labor and material, and of materials stored at the worksite, on the basis of substantiating 
paid invoices, as estimated by the Owner, less the aggregate of all previous payments, until 
the work performed under this Contract is fifty percent (50%) complete.  When and after 
such work is fifty (50%) complete, the ten percent (10%) of value previously retained may 
be reduced to five percent (5%) of value completed if Contractor is making satisfactory 
progress as determined by the Owner, and providing that there is no specific cause or claim 
requiring a greater amount to be retained.  If at any time the Owner determines that 
satisfactory progress is not being made, the ten percent (10%) retention shall be reinstated 
for all subsequent progress payments made under this Contract; 

 
3.3 The City Engineer shall have the right to finally determine the amount due to Contractor; 
 
3.4 Monthly progress payments shall be made by the Owner, on or before fourteen (14) 

calendar days after the receipt by the Owner of an approved estimate of the work 
completed;  

 
3.5 Contractor agrees that title to materials incorporated in the work, and stored at the site, shall 

vest with the Owner upon receipt of the corresponding progress payment; 



 3  

 
3.6 The remainder of the Contract price, after deducting all such monthly payments and any 

retention, shall be paid within sixty (60) days after final acceptance of completed work by 
the Owner.  The release of retention or alternate surety shall be made following the Owner’s 
receipt and acceptance of: Contractor's Affidavit Regarding Settlement of Claims, Affidavit 
of Payment, Consent of Surety for Final Payment, and Unconditional Full and Final lien 
waivers from all subcontractors and suppliers who have filed an Arizona Preliminary 20 
Day Lien Notice in accordance with A.R.S. §§ 33-992.01 and 33-992.02. 

 
4. Time of Completion.  Contractor agrees to complete all work as described in this Contract 

within 180 calendar days from the date of the Owner’s Notice to Proceed free of all liens, claims 
and demands of any kind for materials, equipment, supplies, services, labor, taxes and damages to 
property or persons, in the manner and under the conditions specified within the time or times 
specified in this Contract. 
 

5. Performance of Work.  All work covered by this Contract shall be done in accordance 
with the latest and best accepted practices of the trades involved.  The Contractor shall use only 
skilled craftsmen experienced in their respective trades to prepare the materials and to perform the 
work. 
 

6. Acceptance of Work; Non Waiver.  No failure of the Owner during the progress of the 
work to discover or reject materials or work not in accordance with this Contract shall be deemed 
an acceptance of, or a waiver of, defects in work or materials.  No payment shall be construed to be 
an acceptance of work or materials which are not strictly in accordance with the Contract. 
 

7. Delay of Work.  Any delay in the performance of this Contract due to strikes, lockouts, 
fires, or other unavoidable casualties beyond the control of the Contractor and not caused by any 
wrongful act or negligence of the Contractor shall entitle the Contractor to an extension of time 
equal to the delay so caused.  The Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing specifying such 
cause within twenty-four (24) hours after its occurrence.  In the event such delay is caused by 
strikes, lockouts, or inability to obtain workmen for any other cause, the Owner shall have the right 
but shall not be obligated to complete the work on the same basis as is provided for in Section 13 
below (Contract Violations). 
 

8. Failure to Complete Project in Timely Manner.  If Contractor fails or refuses to execute 
this Contract within the time specified in Section 3 above, or such additional time as may be 
allowed, the proceeds of Contractor’s proposal guaranty shall become subject to deposit into the 
Treasury of the municipality as monies available to compensate the Owner for damages as provided 
by A.R.S. § 34-201 for the delay in execution of this Contract, and bonds and the performance of 
work under this Contract, and the necessity of accepting a higher or less desirable bid from such 
failure or refusal to execute this Contract and bond as required.  If Contractor has submitted a 
certified check or cashier's check as a proposal guaranty, the check shall be returned after execution 
of this Contract. The certified check or cashier's check of other Bidders shall be returned at the 
expiration of thirty (30) days from the date of opening of proposals or sooner, if this Contract is 
executed prior to that time. 



 4  

 

9. Labor Demonstration.  It is understood that the work covered by this Contract is for the 
Owner's business purposes and that any unfavorable publicity or demonstrations in connection with 
the work will have a negative effect upon the Owner.  If Contractor’s actions in performance of the 
Contract result in any public demonstration on behalf of the laborers or organized labor in the 
vicinity of the Owner's premises, whether such demonstration is in the form of picketing, posting of 
placards or signs, violence, threats of violence or in any other form, which in the Owner's judgment, 
might convey to the public the impression that the Owner or the Contractor or any subcontractor is 
unfair to laborers or to organized labor, the Owner shall have the right to terminate this Contract 
immediately, unless the Contractor shall have caused such demonstration to be discontinued within 
two (2) days after request of the Owner to do so.  In the event any such demonstration is attended by 
violence, the Owner may fix lesser time within which a discontinuance shall be accomplished.  In 
the event of Contract termination, the Contractor agrees to remove from the Premises within 
twenty-four (24) hours of termination, all machinery, tools, and equipment belonging to it or to its 
subcontractors.  All obligations or liabilities of the Owner to the Contractor shall be discharged by 
such termination, except the obligation to pay to the Contractor a portion of the Contract price 
representing the value based upon the Contract prices of labor and materials incorporated in the 
work as established by the Owner, less the aggregate of all previous payments, but subject to all of 
the conditions pertaining to payments generally. 
 

10. Material Storage.  During the progress of the work, the Contractor shall arrange for office 
facilities and for the orderly storage of materials and equipment.  Contractor shall erect any 
temporary structures required for the work at his or her own expense.  The Contractor shall at all 
times keep the premises reasonably free from debris and in a condition which will not increase fire 
hazards.  Upon completion of the work, the Contractor shall remove all temporary buildings and 
facilities and all equipment, surplus materials and supplies belonging to the Contractor.   Contractor 
shall leave the Premises in good order, clean, and ready to use by the Owner.  The establishment of 
any temporary construction yard, material storage area or staging area to be located within City of 
Flagstaff limits and outside the public right-of-way or Project limits generally requires a Temporary 
Use Permit.  (See Exhibit A, Section 107.2.1.) 

 

11. Assignment.  Contractor shall not assign this Contract, in whole or in part, without the prior 
written consent of the Owner. 
 

12. Notices.  All notices or demands required to be given, pursuant to the terms of this 
Contract, shall be given to the other Party in writing, delivered in person, sent by facsimile 
transmission, deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested or deposited with any commercial air courier or express service at the 
addresses set forth below, or to such other address as the Parties may substitute by written notice, 
given in the manner prescribed in this paragraph. 
 

If to Owner: If to Contractor: 
 
Patrick Brown, C.P.M. 
Senior Procurement Specialist 

 
Joel Felix 
Director 



 5  

211 West Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, AZ  86001 

1326 West Industrial Avenue 
Coolidge, AZ 85128 

 

13. Contract Violations.  In the event of any of the provisions of this Contract are violated by 
the Contractor or by any of Contractor’s subcontractors, the Owner may serve written notice upon 
the Contractor and the Surety of its intention to terminate such Contract (the “Notice to 
Terminate”).  The Contract shall terminate within five (5) days of the date Contractor receives the 
Notice to Terminate, unless the violation ceases and Contractor makes arrangements for correction 
satisfactory to the Owner.  In the event of any such termination, the Owner shall immediately serve 
notice of the termination upon the Surety by registered mail, return receipt requested.  The Surety 
shall have the right to take over and perform the Contract.  If the Surety does not commence 
performance within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of the Owner’s notice of termination, the 
Owner may complete the work at the expense of the Contractor, and the Contractor and his or her 
Surety shall be liable to the Owner for any excess cost incurred by the Owner to complete the work. 
 If the Owner completes the work, the Owner may take possession of and utilize such materials, 
appliances and plants as may be on the worksite site and necessary for completion of the work. 
 

14. Contractor's Liability and Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the 
Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its agents, representatives, 
officers, directors, officials and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and 
expenses (including but not limited to attorney fees, court costs, and the cost of appellate 
proceedings), relating to arising out of, or alleged to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, 
omissions, work or services of the Contractor, its employees, agents, or any tier of subcontractors in 
the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the 
Owner, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees shall arise in 
connection with the claim, damage, loss or expense that is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, 
disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use resulting 
there from, caused by any acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services in the performance of 
this Contract including any employee of the Contractor or any tier of subcontractor or any other 
person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services the Contractor may be legally 
liable.  The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth in the Contract (Section 
103.6 of Exhibit A) will in no way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this 
paragraph.   
 

15. Non Appropriation.  In the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and 
budgeted in any fiscal period of the Owner to meet the Owner’s obligations under this Contract, the 
Owner will notify Contractor in writing of such occurrence, and this Contract will terminate on the 
earlier of the last day of the fiscal period for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever 
the funds appropriated for payment under this Contract are exhausted.  No payments shall be made 
or due to the other party under this Contract beyond these amounts appropriated and budgeted by 
the Owner to fund the Owner’s obligations under this Contract. 
 

16. Amendment of Contract.  This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in 
writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of the parties. 
 



 6  

17. Subcontracts.  Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract, or issue any purchase order 
for the completed work, or any substantial part of the work, unless in each instance, prior written 
approval shall have been given by the Owner.  Contractor shall be fully responsible to the Owner 
for acts and omissions of Contractor's subcontractors and all persons either directly or indirectly 
employed by them. 
 

18. Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  This Contract is subject to the cancellation 
provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 
 

19. Compliance with All Laws.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, statutes, 
ordinances, regulations and governmental requirements in the performance of this Contract.   
 

20.    Employment of Aliens.  Contractor shall comply with A.R.S. § 34-301, which provides 
that a person who is not a citizen or ward of the United States shall not be employed upon or in 
connection with any state, county or municipal public works project. 
 

21.    Compliance with Federal Immigration Laws and Regulations.  Contractor warrants that 
it complies with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and 
complies with A.R.S. 23-214.A.  Contractor acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. 41-4401 a 
breach of this warranty is a material breach of this contract subject to penalties up to and including 
termination of this contract, and that the City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 
employee who works on the contract to ensure compliance with this warranty. 
 

22.      Business Operations in Sudan/Iran.   In accordance with A.R.S. § 35-397, the 
Contractor certifies that the Contractor and its affiliates and subsidiaries do not have scrutinized 
business operations in Sudan or Iran.  If the City determines that the Provider’s certification is 
false, the City may impose all legal and equitable remedies available to it, including but not 
limited to termination of this Agreement. 
 

23. Contractor’s Warranty.  Contractor warrants that it complies with all Federal 
Immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and complies with A.R.S. § 23-
214.A, Verification of Employment Eligibility.  Contractor shall not employ aliens in accordance 
with A.R.S. § 34-301, Employment of Aliens on Public Works Prohibited.  Contractor 
acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-4401, Government Procurement; E-Verify 
Requirement; Definitions, a breach of this warranty is a material breach of this contract subject to 
penalties up to and including termination of this Contract, and that the Owner retains the legal 
right to inspect the papers of any employee who works on the Contract to ensure compliance with 
this warranty.  
 

24. Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the 
laws of the State of Arizona.  The Contractor hereby submits itself to the original jurisdiction of 
those courts located within Coconino County, Arizona. 

 
25. Attorney's Fees.  If suit or action is initiated in connection with any controversy arising out 
of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover in addition to costs such sum as 



 7  

the court may adjudge reasonable as attorney fees, or in event of appeal as allowed by the appellate 
court. 

 
26. Time is of the Essence.  Contractor acknowledges that the completion of the Contract by 
the dates specified final completion is critical to the Owner, time being of the essence of this 
Contract. 
 

27. Headings.  The article and section headings contained herein are for convenience in 
reference and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Contract. 
 

28. Severability.  If any part of this Contract is determined by a court to be in conflict with any 
statute or constitution or to be unlawful for any reason, the parties intend that the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect unless the stricken provision leaves 
the remaining Contract unenforceable. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner and Contractor, by their duly authorized representatives, 
have executed this Contract as of the date written above.  
 
(Please sign in blue ink. Submit original signatures – photocopies not accepted)  
 

Owner, City of Flagstaff  Felix Construction Company 
   

Kevin Burke, City Manager  Signature 
   
   

Attest:  Printed Name 
   

City Clerk   
 
 
 

  

Approved as to form:   
   

City Attorney   
   

 



 8  

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA 
PAYMENT BOND 

 

PROJECT NAME:  Wildcat Hill Wastewater Treatment Plant Temporary Digested Solids  
   Dewatering System Project 

PROJECT NUMBER: 570900    BID NUMBER: 2014-26 
 
 STATUTORY PAYMENT BOND PURSUANT TO TITLE 34 
 CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
 (Penalty of this Bond must be 100% of the Contract Amount) 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 That,   

(Hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal, and,   

          , a corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of      , with its 

principal office in the City of       (“Surety”), as Surety, are held and 

firmly bound unto the City of Flagstaff, Arizona (“Obligee”), in the amount of    

     Dollars ($    ) for the payment 

whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrators, executors, 

successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

 WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written Contract with the Obligee, 

dated this       day of   , 20___, to the City of Flagstaff which 

Contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at 

length herein. 

 Now, therefore, the condition of this obligation is such, that if the principal promptly pays 

all monies due to all persons supplying labor or materials to the principal or the principal's 

subcontractors in the prosecution of the work provided for in the contract, this obligation is void.  

Otherwise it remains in full force and effect. 

 Provided, however, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, 

Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in 

accordance with the provisions, conditions and limitations of said Title and Chapter, to the same 

extent as if it were copied at length in this Contract. 



 9  

 The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment reasonable 

attorney fees that may be fixed by a judge of the court. 

 

 Witness our hands this    day of     20___. 

              

Principal (Seal)     Surety (Seal) 

 

By:        By:        

 

              

Agency of Record     Agency Address 

  
 
 



 10  

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA 
PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

PROJECT NAME:  Wildcat Hill Wastewater Treatment Plant Temporary Digested Solids  
   Dewatering System Project 

PROJECT NUMBER: 570900    BID NUMBER: 2014-26 
 
 STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND PURSUANT TO TITLE 34 
  CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
 (Penalty of this Bond must be 100% of the Contract Amount) 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 That, ____________________________________________________________________ 

(hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal, and,        

   , a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of   

   , with its principal office in the City of       

(“Surety”), as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the City of Flagstaff, Arizona (“Obligee”), in 

the amount of         Dollars ($   

 ) for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, 

administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

 WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written Contract with the Obligee, 

dated this   day of     200__ in the City of Flagstaff which 

Contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at 

length herein. 

 Now, therefore, the condition of this obligation is such, that if the principal faithfully 

performs and fulfills all of the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of 

contract during the original term of the contract and any extension of the contract, with or without 

notice to the surety, and during the life of any guaranty required under the contract, and also 

performs and fulfills all of the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of all 

duly authorized modifications of the contract that may hereafter be made, notice of which 

modifications to the surety being hereby waived, the above obligation is void.  Otherwise it remains 

in full force and effect. 

 



 11  

 Provided, however, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, 

Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in 

accordance with the provisions of said Title and Chapter, to the extent as if it were copied at length 

in this Contract. 

 The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as part of the judgment reasonable 

attorney fees that may be fixed by a judge of the court. 

 
 Witness our hands this    day of    20__. 
 
              
Principal (Seal)      Surety (Seal) 
 
By:        By:        
 
              
Agency of Record     Agency Address 
 



  10. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Kyle Brown, Project Manager

Co-Submitter: David McKee, Watershed Specialist

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Bundled Drainage Improvement Projects #1 and
#2 construction contracts

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Approve the construction contracts with Kinney Construction Services in the amount of
$153,605.81 for Bundled Drainage Improvements Project #1 with 120 calendar days contract time;
and $207,395.89 for Bundled Drainage Improvements Project #2 with 120 calendar days contract
time
2) Approve change order authority in the amount of $15,360.58 (10% of contract amount) for
Bundled Drainage Improvements #1; and $20,739.59 (10% of contract amount) for Bundled
Drainage Improvements #2.
3) Authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents 

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Bundled Drainage Improvements Projects #1 and #2 need to be implemented in order to resolve
long-standing drainage issues driven from citizen complaints.  These drainage problems are causing
damage to properties and have required on-going response from City Staff every monsoon season. 
Action is needed to correct these drainage issues. 

Financial Impact:
Funds for these projects have been allocated from the Drainage Improvement Program for FY' 14 which
is funded through the Stormwater Utility Fee.

Connection to Council Goal:
1. Repair Replace maintain infrastructure (streets & utilities)

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
No previous council decisions have been made on this.



Options and Alternatives:
Bundled Drainage Projects #1 has one project, 800 West University Heights, that has an alternative bid
amount of $36,243.01.  The base bid amount is $44,598.12.   The base bid ensures the project is done
in full, maximizing the amount of flows captured by two catch basins, rather than one in the alternative. 
However, the alternative would save funds.

If council does not approve Bundled Drainage Projects #1 and #2, the alternative would be to include
these projects in the Drainage Improvement Program funds for FY'15  to meet on-going citizen drainage
concerns.

Background/History:
The Bundled Drainage Improvement Projects #1 and #2 consist of implementing solutions to ten
on-going neighborhood drainage problems throughout the City of Flagstaff. These problems were
identified through long-standing citizen complaints regarding on-going drainage issues.  There are two
sets of five projects (ten total), to be managed by two project managers (Kyle Brown and David McKee).
Bundled Drainage Project #1 includes the following locations: 110 East Oak Avenue, 420 North San
Francisco Street, 3125 E. Mount Elden Drive, 800 W. University Drive South, and 2240 North Southern
Hills. Bundled Drainage Project #2 includes the following locations: 2001 N. Foxhill, 522 E. Route 66, 407
E David Dr., 1628 Izabel, and 4101 E. Marymont Circle.

The Stormwater Department has received hundreds of drainage complaints from citizens regarding
flooding for many years now.
In order to address these small infrastructure challenges, funds from the Drainage Improvement Program
are being utilized to fix these site scale drainage problems and create new, more resilient drainage
infrastructure for these citizens. Each site addressed in this project corresponds to a drainage complaint
number received by City Stormwater Staff. These projects are small in scope, utilizing driveway, street,
curb/gutter, stormdrain, and natural drainage features to improve flooding and erosion problems.

Bundling of projects were determined by the separate engineering firms designs, and by separate project
managers assigned. Both bundled projects were solicited separately at the same time for two and a half
weeks. The same five contractors bid separately on both projects with Kinney Construction Services
coming in as lowest responsive and responsible bidder on both projects. 

Expanded Financial Considerations:
Bid Results for Bundled Drainage Project #1

Kinney Construction $153,605.81
RTR Paving $174,838.00
Eagle Mountain $206,996.60
LP's Excavating $211,995.00
RK Sanders  $301,148.00

Bid Results for Bundled Drainage Project #2

Kinney Construction $207,395.89
LP's Excavating $228,144.00
RTR Paving $238,055.00
Eagle Mountain $243,626.00
RK Sanders $270,588.00

Kinney Construction came in as the lowest responsive, responsible Bidder for both Bundled #1 and #2
projects.



Community Benefits and Considerations:
These drainage solutions will address long-standing community concerns regarding drainage and
damage to property.

Community Involvement:
Inform
Consult
Involve
Collaborate
Empower

Attachments:  Bundled Drainage 1 Contract
Bundled #1
Bundled Drainage 2 Contract
Bundled #2



 1  

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 

City of Flagstaff, Arizona 
And 

Kinney Construction Services, Inc. 
 

This Construction Contract (“Contract”) is made and entered into this    day of  
    2013, by and between the City of Flagstaff, an Arizona municipal 
corporation with offices at 211 West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona ("Owner") and Kinney 
Construction Services, Inc., an Arizona corporation with offices at 120 N. Beaver Street, Suite 100, 
Flagstaff, Arizona ("Contractor). Contractor and the Owner may be referred to each individually 
as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Owner desires to obtain construction services; and  
 
B. Contractor has available and offers to provide personnel and materials necessary to 
accomplish the work and complete the Project as described in the Scope of Work within the 
required time in accordance with the calendar days included in this Contract. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Owner and Contractor agree as follows: 
 

1. Scope of Work.  The Contractor shall furnish any and all labor, materials, equipment, 
transportation, utilities, services and facilities required to perform all work for the construction of 

Bundled Drainage Improvements #1 (the “Project”).  Contractor shall construct the Project for 
the Owner in a good, workmanlike and substantial manner and to the satisfaction of the Owner 
through its engineers and under the direction and supervision of the City Engineer, or his properly 
authorized agents including but not limited to project managers and project engineers.  Contractor’s 
work shall be strictly pursuant to and in conformity with the Contract. 
 
1.1 A Pre-Construction Conference will be held with the successful Contractor after the Notice 

of Award is issued.   The date and time of the Conference will be agreed upon between the 
Contractor and the Engineer.  The meeting will be held at City Hall, 211 West Aspen 
Avenue, Flagstaff, AZ 86001.  The purpose of the meeting is to outline specific 
construction items and procedures that the City of Flagstaff (the “Owner”) feels require 
special attention on the part of the Contractor.  The Contractor may also present any 
variations in procedures to improve the workability of the Project, reduce the cost, or reduce 
inconvenience to the public.  The Contractor shall submit a written proposal at this 
conference outlining intended plans for pavement replacement, maintaining continuous 
access to residences and businesses along the construction site, and traffic control. 

 

2. Contract; Ownership of Work.  Contractor shall furnish and deliver all of the materials 
and perform all of the work in accordance with this Contract; Construction Plans; Special 
Provisions; the City of Flagstaff Engineering Design and Construction Standards and 
Specifications; the latest version of the Maricopa Association of Governments (“MAG”) 



 2  

Specifications for Public Works Construction and City revisions to the MAG Specifications for 
Public Works Construction (“Exhibit A”); and any Arizona Department of Transportation 
(A.D.O.T.) Standards that may be referenced on the Plans or in the specifications, incorporated in 
this Contract by reference, plans and associated documents.  All provisions of the Invitation for 
Construction Bids, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Certificates of Insurance, Addenda, Change 
Orders and Field Orders, if any, are hereby incorporated into this Contract.  All materials, work, 
specifications and plans shall be the property of the Owner. 
 
The following exhibits are incorporated by reference and are expressly made a part of this 
Contract: 
 
2.1.1 Revisions of MAG Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction Exhibit A 
                    (“Flagstaff Addendum to MAG”)       
2.1.2 Special Provisions         Exhibit B 
 

3. Payments.  In consideration of the faithful performance of the work described in this 

Contract, the Owner shall pay an amount not to exceed $153,605.81 to the Contractor for work and 
materials provided in accordance with the bid schedule, which amount includes all federal, state, 
and local taxes, as applicable.  This amount shall be payable through monthly progress payments, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
3.1 Contractor shall promptly submit to the Owner all proper invoices necessary for the 

determination of the prices of labor and materials; 
 
3.2 Progress payments shall be made in the amount of ninety percent (90%) of the value of 

labor and materials incorporated in the work, based on the sum of the Contract prices of 
labor and material, and of materials stored at the worksite, on the basis of substantiating 
paid invoices, as estimated by the Owner, less the aggregate of all previous payments, until 
the work performed under this Contract is fifty percent (50%) complete.  When and after 
such work is fifty (50%) complete, the ten percent (10%) of value previously retained may 
be reduced to five percent (5%) of value completed if Contractor is making satisfactory 
progress as determined by the Owner, and providing that there is no specific cause or claim 
requiring a greater amount to be retained.  If at any time the Owner determines that 
satisfactory progress is not being made, the ten percent (10%) retention shall be reinstated 
for all subsequent progress payments made under this Contract; 

 
3.3 The City Engineer shall have the right to finally determine the amount due to Contractor; 
 
3.4 Monthly progress payments shall be made by the Owner, on or before fourteen (14) 

calendar days after the receipt by the Owner of an approved estimate of the work 
completed;  

 
3.5 Contractor agrees that title to materials incorporated in the work, and stored at the site, shall 

vest with the Owner upon receipt of the corresponding progress payment; 
 



 3  

3.6 The remainder of the Contract price, after deducting all such monthly payments and any 
retention, shall be paid within sixty (60) days after final acceptance of completed work by 
the Owner.  The release of retention or alternate surety shall be made following the Owner’s 
receipt and acceptance of: Contractor's Affidavit Regarding Settlement of Claims, Affidavit 
of Payment, Consent of Surety for Final Payment, and Unconditional Full and Final lien 
waivers from all subcontractors and suppliers who have filed an Arizona Preliminary 20 
Day Lien Notice in accordance with A.R.S. §§ 33-992.01 and 33-992.02. 

 
4. Time of Completion.  Contractor agrees to complete all work as described in this Contract 

within 120 calendar days from the date of the Owner’s Notice to Proceed free of all liens, claims 
and demands of any kind for materials, equipment, supplies, services, labor, taxes and damages to 
property or persons, in the manner and under the conditions specified within the time or times 
specified in this Contract. 
 

5. Performance of Work.  All work covered by this Contract shall be done in accordance 
with the latest and best accepted practices of the trades involved.  The Contractor shall use only 
skilled craftsmen experienced in their respective trades to prepare the materials and to perform the 
work. 
 

6. Acceptance of Work; Non Waiver.  No failure of the Owner during the progress of the 
work to discover or reject materials or work not in accordance with this Contract shall be deemed 
an acceptance of, or a waiver of, defects in work or materials.  No payment shall be construed to be 
an acceptance of work or materials which are not strictly in accordance with the Contract. 
 

7. Delay of Work.  Any delay in the performance of this Contract due to strikes, lockouts, 
fires, or other unavoidable casualties beyond the control of the Contractor and not caused by any 
wrongful act or negligence of the Contractor shall entitle the Contractor to an extension of time 
equal to the delay so caused.  The Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing specifying such 
cause within twenty-four (24) hours after its occurrence.  In the event such delay is caused by 
strikes, lockouts, or inability to obtain workmen for any other cause, the Owner shall have the right 
but shall not be obligated to complete the work on the same basis as is provided for in Section 13 
below (Contract Violations). 
 

8. Failure to Complete Project in Timely Manner.  If Contractor fails or refuses to execute 
this Contract within the time specified in Section 3 above, or such additional time as may be 
allowed, the proceeds of Contractor’s proposal guaranty shall become subject to deposit into the 
Treasury of the municipality as monies available to compensate the Owner for damages as provided 
by A.R.S. § 34-201 for the delay in execution of this Contract, and bonds and the performance of 
work under this Contract, and the necessity of accepting a higher or less desirable bid from such 
failure or refusal to execute this Contract and bond as required.  If Contractor has submitted a 
certified check or cashier's check as a proposal guaranty, the check shall be returned after execution 
of this Contract. The certified check or cashier's check of other Bidders shall be returned at the 
expiration of thirty (30) days from the date of opening of proposals or sooner, if this Contract is 
executed prior to that time. 
 



 4  

9. Labor Demonstration.  It is understood that the work covered by this Contract is for the 
Owner's business purposes and that any unfavorable publicity or demonstrations in connection with 
the work will have a negative effect upon the Owner.  If Contractor’s actions in performance of the 
Contract result in any public demonstration on behalf of the laborers or organized labor in the 
vicinity of the Owner's premises, whether such demonstration is in the form of picketing, posting of 
placards or signs, violence, threats of violence or in any other form, which in the Owner's judgment, 
might convey to the public the impression that the Owner or the Contractor or any subcontractor is 
unfair to laborers or to organized labor, the Owner shall have the right to terminate this Contract 
immediately, unless the Contractor shall have caused such demonstration to be discontinued within 
two (2) days after request of the Owner to do so.  In the event any such demonstration is attended by 
violence, the Owner may fix lesser time within which a discontinuance shall be accomplished.  In 
the event of Contract termination, the Contractor agrees to remove from the Premises within 
twenty-four (24) hours of termination, all machinery, tools, and equipment belonging to it or to its 
subcontractors.  All obligations or liabilities of the Owner to the Contractor shall be discharged by 
such termination, except the obligation to pay to the Contractor a portion of the Contract price 
representing the value based upon the Contract prices of labor and materials incorporated in the 
work as established by the Owner, less the aggregate of all previous payments, but subject to all of 
the conditions pertaining to payments generally. 
 

10. Material Storage.  During the progress of the work, the Contractor shall arrange for office 
facilities and for the orderly storage of materials and equipment.  Contractor shall erect any 
temporary structures required for the work at his or her own expense.  The Contractor shall at all 
times keep the premises reasonably free from debris and in a condition which will not increase fire 
hazards.  Upon completion of the work, the Contractor shall remove all temporary buildings and 
facilities and all equipment, surplus materials and supplies belonging to the Contractor.   Contractor 
shall leave the Premises in good order, clean, and ready to use by the Owner.  The establishment of 
any temporary construction yard, material storage area or staging area to be located within City of 
Flagstaff limits and outside the public right-of-way or Project limits generally requires a Temporary 
Use Permit.  (See Exhibit A, Section 107.2.1.) 

 

11. Assignment.  Contractor shall not assign this Contract, in whole or in part, without the prior 
written consent of the Owner. 
 

12. Notices.  All notices or demands required to be given, pursuant to the terms of this 
Contract, shall be given to the other Party in writing, delivered in person, sent by facsimile 
transmission, deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested or deposited with any commercial air courier or express service at the 
addresses set forth below, or to such other address as the Parties may substitute by written notice, 
given in the manner prescribed in this paragraph. 
 

If to Owner: If to Contractor: 
 
Patrick Brown, C.P.M. 
Senior Procurement Specialist 
211 West Aspen Avenue 

 
Travis Moore 
Kinney Construction Services 
120 N. Beaver Street, Suite 100 



 5  

Flagstaff, AZ  86001 Flagstaff, AZ 86001 
 

13. Contract Violations.  In the event of any of the provisions of this Contract are violated by 
the Contractor or by any of Contractor’s subcontractors, the Owner may serve written notice upon 
the Contractor and the Surety of its intention to terminate such Contract (the “Notice to 
Terminate”).  The Contract shall terminate within five (5) days of the date Contractor receives the 
Notice to Terminate, unless the violation ceases and Contractor makes arrangements for correction 
satisfactory to the Owner.  In the event of any such termination, the Owner shall immediately serve 
notice of the termination upon the Surety by registered mail, return receipt requested.  The Surety 
shall have the right to take over and perform the Contract.  If the Surety does not commence 
performance within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of the Owner’s notice of termination, the 
Owner may complete the work at the expense of the Contractor, and the Contractor and his or her 
Surety shall be liable to the Owner for any excess cost incurred by the Owner to complete the work. 
 If the Owner completes the work, the Owner may take possession of and utilize such materials, 
appliances and plants as may be on the worksite site and necessary for completion of the work. 
 

14. Contractor's Liability and Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the 
Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its agents, representatives, 
officers, directors, officials and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and 
expenses (including but not limited to attorney fees, court costs, and the cost of appellate 
proceedings), relating to arising out of, or alleged to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, 
omissions, work or services of the Contractor, its employees, agents, or any tier of subcontractors in 
the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the 
Owner, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees shall arise in 
connection with the claim, damage, loss or expense that is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, 
disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use resulting 
there from, caused by any acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services in the performance of 
this Contract including any employee of the Contractor or any tier of subcontractor or any other 
person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services the Contractor may be legally 
liable.  The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth in the Contract (Section 
103.6 of Exhibit A) will in no way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this 
paragraph.   
 

15. Non Appropriation.  In the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and 
budgeted in any fiscal period of the Owner to meet the Owner’s obligations under this Contract, the 
Owner will notify Contractor in writing of such occurrence, and this Contract will terminate on the 
earlier of the last day of the fiscal period for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever 
the funds appropriated for payment under this Contract are exhausted.  No payments shall be made 
or due to the other party under this Contract beyond these amounts appropriated and budgeted by 
the Owner to fund the Owner’s obligations under this Contract. 
 

16. Amendment of Contract.  This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in 
writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of the parties. 
 



 6  

17. Subcontracts.  Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract, or issue any purchase order 
for the completed work, or any substantial part of the work, unless in each instance, prior written 
approval shall have been given by the Owner.  Contractor shall be fully responsible to the Owner 
for acts and omissions of Contractor's subcontractors and all persons either directly or indirectly 
employed by them. 
 

18. Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  This Contract is subject to the cancellation 
provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 
 

19. Compliance with All Laws.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, statutes, 
ordinances, regulations and governmental requirements in the performance of this Contract.   
 

20.    Employment of Aliens.  Contractor shall comply with A.R.S. § 34-301, which provides 
that a person who is not a citizen or ward of the United States shall not be employed upon or in 
connection with any state, county or municipal public works project. 
 

21.    Compliance with Federal Immigration Laws and Regulations.  Contractor warrants that 
it complies with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and 
complies with A.R.S. 23-214.A.  Contractor acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. 41-4401 a 
breach of this warranty is a material breach of this contract subject to penalties up to and including 
termination of this contract, and that the City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 
employee who works on the contract to ensure compliance with this warranty. 
 

22. Contractor’s Warranty.  Contractor warrants that it complies with all Federal 
Immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and complies with A.R.S. § 23-
214.A, Verification of Employment Eligibility.  Contractor shall not employ aliens in accordance 
with A.R.S. § 34-301, Employment of Aliens on Public Works Prohibited.  Contractor 
acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-4401, Government Procurement; E-Verify 
Requirement; Definitions, a breach of this warranty is a material breach of this contract subject to 
penalties up to and including termination of this Contract, and that the Owner retains the legal 
right to inspect the papers of any employee who works on the Contract to ensure compliance with 
this warranty.  
 

23. Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the 
laws of the State of Arizona.  The Contractor hereby submits itself to the original jurisdiction of 
those courts located within Coconino County, Arizona. 

 
24. Attorney's Fees.  If suit or action is initiated in connection with any controversy arising out 
of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover in addition to costs such sum as 
the court may adjudge reasonable as attorney fees, or in event of appeal as allowed by the appellate 
court. 

 
25. Time is of the Essence.  Contractor acknowledges that the completion of the Contract by 
the dates specified final completion is critical to the Owner, time being of the essence of this 
Contract. 



 7  

 

26. Headings.  The article and section headings contained herein are for convenience in 
reference and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Contract. 
 

27. Severability.  If any part of this Contract is determined by a court to be in conflict with any 
statute or constitution or to be unlawful for any reason, the parties intend that the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect unless the stricken provision leaves 
the remaining Contract unenforceable. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner and Contractor, by their duly authorized representatives, 
have executed this Contract as of the date written above.  
 
(Please sign in blue ink. Submit original signatures – photocopies not accepted)  
 

Owner, City of Flagstaff  Kinney Construction Services, Inc. 
   

Kevin Burke, City Manager  Signature 
   
   

Attest:  Printed Name 
   

City Clerk   
 
 
 

  

Approved as to form:   
   

City Attorney   
   

 



 8  

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA 
PAYMENT BOND 

 

PROJECT NAME:  Bundled Drainage Improvements #1 

PROJECT NUMBER: 993419    BID NUMBER: 2014-24 
 
 STATUTORY PAYMENT BOND PURSUANT TO TITLE 34 
 CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
 (Penalty of this Bond must be 100% of the Contract Amount) 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 That,   

(Hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal, and,   

          , a corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of      , with its 

principal office in the City of       (“Surety”), as Surety, are held and 

firmly bound unto the City of Flagstaff, Arizona (“Obligee”), in the amount of    

     Dollars ($    ) for the payment 

whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrators, executors, 

successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

 WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written Contract with the Obligee, 

dated this       day of   , 20___, to the City of Flagstaff which 

Contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at 

length herein. 

 Now, therefore, the condition of this obligation is such, that if the principal promptly pays 

all monies due to all persons supplying labor or materials to the principal or the principal's 

subcontractors in the prosecution of the work provided for in the contract, this obligation is void.  

Otherwise it remains in full force and effect. 

 Provided, however, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, 

Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in 

accordance with the provisions, conditions and limitations of said Title and Chapter, to the same 

extent as if it were copied at length in this Contract. 



 9  

 The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment reasonable 

attorney fees that may be fixed by a judge of the court. 

 

 Witness our hands this    day of     20___. 

              

Principal (Seal)     Surety (Seal) 

 

By:        By:        

 

              

Agency of Record     Agency Address 

  
 
 



 10  

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA 
PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

PROJECT NAME:  Bundled Drainage Improvements #1 

PROJECT NUMBER: 993419    BID NUMBER: 2014-24 
 
 STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND PURSUANT TO TITLE 34 
  CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
 (Penalty of this Bond must be 100% of the Contract Amount) 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 That, ____________________________________________________________________ 

(hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal, and,        

   , a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of   

   , with its principal office in the City of       

(“Surety”), as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the City of Flagstaff, Arizona (“Obligee”), in 

the amount of         Dollars ($   

 ) for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, 

administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

 WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written Contract with the Obligee, 

dated this   day of     200__ in the City of Flagstaff which 

Contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at 

length herein. 

 Now, therefore, the condition of this obligation is such, that if the principal faithfully 

performs and fulfills all of the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of 

contract during the original term of the contract and any extension of the contract, with or without 

notice to the surety, and during the life of any guaranty required under the contract, and also 

performs and fulfills all of the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of all 

duly authorized modifications of the contract that may hereafter be made, notice of which 

modifications to the surety being hereby waived, the above obligation is void.  Otherwise it remains 

in full force and effect. 

 

 Provided, however, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, 

Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in 



 11  

accordance with the provisions of said Title and Chapter, to the extent as if it were copied at length 

in this Contract. 

 The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as part of the judgment reasonable 

attorney fees that may be fixed by a judge of the court. 

 
 Witness our hands this    day of    20__. 
 
              
Principal (Seal)      Surety (Seal) 
 
By:        By:        
 
              
Agency of Record     Agency Address 
 







“ ” 



“ ” 

“ ” 





“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ”

















 

 







 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

































 



 1  

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 

City of Flagstaff, Arizona 
And 

Kinney Construction Services, Inc. 
 

This Construction Contract (“Contract”) is made and entered into this    day of  
    2013, by and between the City of Flagstaff, an Arizona municipal 
corporation with offices at 211 West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona ("Owner") and Kinney 
Construction Services, Inc., an Arizona corporation with offices at 120 N. Beaver Street, Suite 100, 
Flagstaff, Arizona ("Contractor). Contractor and the Owner may be referred to each individually 
as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Owner desires to obtain construction services; and  
 
B. Contractor has available and offers to provide personnel and materials necessary to 
accomplish the work and complete the Project as described in the Scope of Work within the 
required time in accordance with the calendar days included in this Contract. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Owner and Contractor agree as follows: 
 

1. Scope of Work.  The Contractor shall furnish any and all labor, materials, equipment, 
transportation, utilities, services and facilities required to perform all work for the construction of 

Bundled Drainage Improvements #2 (the “Project”).  Contractor shall construct the Project for 
the Owner in a good, workmanlike and substantial manner and to the satisfaction of the Owner 
through its engineers and under the direction and supervision of the City Engineer, or his properly 
authorized agents including but not limited to project managers and project engineers.  Contractor’s 
work shall be strictly pursuant to and in conformity with the Contract. 
 
1.1 A Pre-Construction Conference will be held with the successful Contractor after the Notice 

of Award is issued.   The date and time of the Conference will be agreed upon between the 
Contractor and the Engineer.  The meeting will be held at City Hall, 211 West Aspen 
Avenue, Flagstaff, AZ 86001.  The purpose of the meeting is to outline specific 
construction items and procedures that the City of Flagstaff (the “Owner”) feels require 
special attention on the part of the Contractor.  The Contractor may also present any 
variations in procedures to improve the workability of the Project, reduce the cost, or reduce 
inconvenience to the public.  The Contractor shall submit a written proposal at this 
conference outlining intended plans for pavement replacement, maintaining continuous 
access to residences and businesses along the construction site, and traffic control. 

 

2. Contract; Ownership of Work.  Contractor shall furnish and deliver all of the materials 
and perform all of the work in accordance with this Contract; Construction Plans; Special 
Provisions; the City of Flagstaff Engineering Design and Construction Standards and 
Specifications; the latest version of the Maricopa Association of Governments (“MAG”) 



 2  

Specifications for Public Works Construction and City revisions to the MAG Specifications for 
Public Works Construction (“Exhibit A”); and any Arizona Department of Transportation 
(A.D.O.T.) Standards that may be referenced on the Plans or in the specifications, incorporated in 
this Contract by reference, plans and associated documents.  All provisions of the Invitation for 
Construction Bids, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Certificates of Insurance, Addenda, Change 
Orders and Field Orders, if any, are hereby incorporated into this Contract.  All materials, work, 
specifications and plans shall be the property of the Owner. 
 
The following exhibits are incorporated by reference and are expressly made a part of this 
Contract: 
 
2.1.1 Revisions of MAG Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction Exhibit A 
                    (“Flagstaff Addendum to MAG”)       
2.1.2 Special Provisions         Exhibit B 
 

3. Payments.  In consideration of the faithful performance of the work described in this 

Contract, the Owner shall pay an amount not to exceed $207,395.89 to the Contractor for work and 
materials provided in accordance with the bid schedule, which amount includes all federal, state, 
and local taxes, as applicable.  This amount shall be payable through monthly progress payments, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
3.1 Contractor shall promptly submit to the Owner all proper invoices necessary for the 

determination of the prices of labor and materials; 
 
3.2 Progress payments shall be made in the amount of ninety percent (90%) of the value of 

labor and materials incorporated in the work, based on the sum of the Contract prices of 
labor and material, and of materials stored at the worksite, on the basis of substantiating 
paid invoices, as estimated by the Owner, less the aggregate of all previous payments, until 
the work performed under this Contract is fifty percent (50%) complete.  When and after 
such work is fifty (50%) complete, the ten percent (10%) of value previously retained may 
be reduced to five percent (5%) of value completed if Contractor is making satisfactory 
progress as determined by the Owner, and providing that there is no specific cause or claim 
requiring a greater amount to be retained.  If at any time the Owner determines that 
satisfactory progress is not being made, the ten percent (10%) retention shall be reinstated 
for all subsequent progress payments made under this Contract; 

 
3.3 The City Engineer shall have the right to finally determine the amount due to Contractor; 
 
3.4 Monthly progress payments shall be made by the Owner, on or before fourteen (14) 

calendar days after the receipt by the Owner of an approved estimate of the work 
completed;  

 
3.5 Contractor agrees that title to materials incorporated in the work, and stored at the site, shall 

vest with the Owner upon receipt of the corresponding progress payment; 
 



 3  

3.6 The remainder of the Contract price, after deducting all such monthly payments and any 
retention, shall be paid within sixty (60) days after final acceptance of completed work by 
the Owner.  The release of retention or alternate surety shall be made following the Owner’s 
receipt and acceptance of: Contractor's Affidavit Regarding Settlement of Claims, Affidavit 
of Payment, Consent of Surety for Final Payment, and Unconditional Full and Final lien 
waivers from all subcontractors and suppliers who have filed an Arizona Preliminary 20 
Day Lien Notice in accordance with A.R.S. §§ 33-992.01 and 33-992.02. 

 
4. Time of Completion.  Contractor agrees to complete all work as described in this Contract 

within 120 calendar days from the date of the Owner’s Notice to Proceed free of all liens, claims 
and demands of any kind for materials, equipment, supplies, services, labor, taxes and damages to 
property or persons, in the manner and under the conditions specified within the time or times 
specified in this Contract. 
 

5. Performance of Work.  All work covered by this Contract shall be done in accordance 
with the latest and best accepted practices of the trades involved.  The Contractor shall use only 
skilled craftsmen experienced in their respective trades to prepare the materials and to perform the 
work. 
 

6. Acceptance of Work; Non Waiver.  No failure of the Owner during the progress of the 
work to discover or reject materials or work not in accordance with this Contract shall be deemed 
an acceptance of, or a waiver of, defects in work or materials.  No payment shall be construed to be 
an acceptance of work or materials which are not strictly in accordance with the Contract. 
 

7. Delay of Work.  Any delay in the performance of this Contract due to strikes, lockouts, 
fires, or other unavoidable casualties beyond the control of the Contractor and not caused by any 
wrongful act or negligence of the Contractor shall entitle the Contractor to an extension of time 
equal to the delay so caused.  The Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing specifying such 
cause within twenty-four (24) hours after its occurrence.  In the event such delay is caused by 
strikes, lockouts, or inability to obtain workmen for any other cause, the Owner shall have the right 
but shall not be obligated to complete the work on the same basis as is provided for in Section 13 
below (Contract Violations). 
 

8. Failure to Complete Project in Timely Manner.  If Contractor fails or refuses to execute 
this Contract within the time specified in Section 3 above, or such additional time as may be 
allowed, the proceeds of Contractor’s proposal guaranty shall become subject to deposit into the 
Treasury of the municipality as monies available to compensate the Owner for damages as provided 
by A.R.S. § 34-201 for the delay in execution of this Contract, and bonds and the performance of 
work under this Contract, and the necessity of accepting a higher or less desirable bid from such 
failure or refusal to execute this Contract and bond as required.  If Contractor has submitted a 
certified check or cashier's check as a proposal guaranty, the check shall be returned after execution 
of this Contract. The certified check or cashier's check of other Bidders shall be returned at the 
expiration of thirty (30) days from the date of opening of proposals or sooner, if this Contract is 
executed prior to that time. 
 



 4  

9. Labor Demonstration.  It is understood that the work covered by this Contract is for the 
Owner's business purposes and that any unfavorable publicity or demonstrations in connection with 
the work will have a negative effect upon the Owner.  If Contractor’s actions in performance of the 
Contract result in any public demonstration on behalf of the laborers or organized labor in the 
vicinity of the Owner's premises, whether such demonstration is in the form of picketing, posting of 
placards or signs, violence, threats of violence or in any other form, which in the Owner's judgment, 
might convey to the public the impression that the Owner or the Contractor or any subcontractor is 
unfair to laborers or to organized labor, the Owner shall have the right to terminate this Contract 
immediately, unless the Contractor shall have caused such demonstration to be discontinued within 
two (2) days after request of the Owner to do so.  In the event any such demonstration is attended by 
violence, the Owner may fix lesser time within which a discontinuance shall be accomplished.  In 
the event of Contract termination, the Contractor agrees to remove from the Premises within 
twenty-four (24) hours of termination, all machinery, tools, and equipment belonging to it or to its 
subcontractors.  All obligations or liabilities of the Owner to the Contractor shall be discharged by 
such termination, except the obligation to pay to the Contractor a portion of the Contract price 
representing the value based upon the Contract prices of labor and materials incorporated in the 
work as established by the Owner, less the aggregate of all previous payments, but subject to all of 
the conditions pertaining to payments generally. 
 

10. Material Storage.  During the progress of the work, the Contractor shall arrange for office 
facilities and for the orderly storage of materials and equipment.  Contractor shall erect any 
temporary structures required for the work at his or her own expense.  The Contractor shall at all 
times keep the premises reasonably free from debris and in a condition which will not increase fire 
hazards.  Upon completion of the work, the Contractor shall remove all temporary buildings and 
facilities and all equipment, surplus materials and supplies belonging to the Contractor.   Contractor 
shall leave the Premises in good order, clean, and ready to use by the Owner.  The establishment of 
any temporary construction yard, material storage area or staging area to be located within City of 
Flagstaff limits and outside the public right-of-way or Project limits generally requires a Temporary 
Use Permit.  (See Exhibit A, Section 107.2.1.) 

 

11. Assignment.  Contractor shall not assign this Contract, in whole or in part, without the prior 
written consent of the Owner. 
 

12. Notices.  All notices or demands required to be given, pursuant to the terms of this 
Contract, shall be given to the other Party in writing, delivered in person, sent by facsimile 
transmission, deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested or deposited with any commercial air courier or express service at the 
addresses set forth below, or to such other address as the Parties may substitute by written notice, 
given in the manner prescribed in this paragraph. 
 

If to Owner: If to Contractor: 
 
Patrick Brown, C.P.M. 
Senior Procurement Specialist 
211 West Aspen Avenue 

 
Travis Moore 
Kinney Construction Services 
120 N. Beaver Street, Suite 100 



 5  

Flagstaff, AZ  86001 Flagstaff, AZ 86001 
 

13. Contract Violations.  In the event of any of the provisions of this Contract are violated by 
the Contractor or by any of Contractor’s subcontractors, the Owner may serve written notice upon 
the Contractor and the Surety of its intention to terminate such Contract (the “Notice to 
Terminate”).  The Contract shall terminate within five (5) days of the date Contractor receives the 
Notice to Terminate, unless the violation ceases and Contractor makes arrangements for correction 
satisfactory to the Owner.  In the event of any such termination, the Owner shall immediately serve 
notice of the termination upon the Surety by registered mail, return receipt requested.  The Surety 
shall have the right to take over and perform the Contract.  If the Surety does not commence 
performance within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of the Owner’s notice of termination, the 
Owner may complete the work at the expense of the Contractor, and the Contractor and his or her 
Surety shall be liable to the Owner for any excess cost incurred by the Owner to complete the work. 
 If the Owner completes the work, the Owner may take possession of and utilize such materials, 
appliances and plants as may be on the worksite site and necessary for completion of the work. 
 

14. Contractor's Liability and Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the 
Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its agents, representatives, 
officers, directors, officials and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and 
expenses (including but not limited to attorney fees, court costs, and the cost of appellate 
proceedings), relating to arising out of, or alleged to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, 
omissions, work or services of the Contractor, its employees, agents, or any tier of subcontractors in 
the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the 
Owner, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees shall arise in 
connection with the claim, damage, loss or expense that is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, 
disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use resulting 
there from, caused by any acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services in the performance of 
this Contract including any employee of the Contractor or any tier of subcontractor or any other 
person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services the Contractor may be legally 
liable.  The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth in the Contract (Section 
103.6 of Exhibit A) will in no way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this 
paragraph.   
 

15. Non Appropriation.  In the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and 
budgeted in any fiscal period of the Owner to meet the Owner’s obligations under this Contract, the 
Owner will notify Contractor in writing of such occurrence, and this Contract will terminate on the 
earlier of the last day of the fiscal period for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever 
the funds appropriated for payment under this Contract are exhausted.  No payments shall be made 
or due to the other party under this Contract beyond these amounts appropriated and budgeted by 
the Owner to fund the Owner’s obligations under this Contract. 
 

16. Amendment of Contract.  This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in 
writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of the parties. 
 



 6  

17. Subcontracts.  Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract, or issue any purchase order 
for the completed work, or any substantial part of the work, unless in each instance, prior written 
approval shall have been given by the Owner.  Contractor shall be fully responsible to the Owner 
for acts and omissions of Contractor's subcontractors and all persons either directly or indirectly 
employed by them. 
 

18. Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  This Contract is subject to the cancellation 
provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 
 

19. Compliance with All Laws.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, statutes, 
ordinances, regulations and governmental requirements in the performance of this Contract.   
 

20.    Employment of Aliens.  Contractor shall comply with A.R.S. § 34-301, which provides 
that a person who is not a citizen or ward of the United States shall not be employed upon or in 
connection with any state, county or municipal public works project. 
 

21.    Compliance with Federal Immigration Laws and Regulations.  Contractor warrants that 
it complies with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and 
complies with A.R.S. 23-214.A.  Contractor acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. 41-4401 a 
breach of this warranty is a material breach of this contract subject to penalties up to and including 
termination of this contract, and that the City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 
employee who works on the contract to ensure compliance with this warranty. 
 

22. Contractor’s Warranty.  Contractor warrants that it complies with all Federal 
Immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and complies with A.R.S. § 23-
214.A, Verification of Employment Eligibility.  Contractor shall not employ aliens in accordance 
with A.R.S. § 34-301, Employment of Aliens on Public Works Prohibited.  Contractor 
acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-4401, Government Procurement; E-Verify 
Requirement; Definitions, a breach of this warranty is a material breach of this contract subject to 
penalties up to and including termination of this Contract, and that the Owner retains the legal 
right to inspect the papers of any employee who works on the Contract to ensure compliance with 
this warranty.  
 

23. Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the 
laws of the State of Arizona.  The Contractor hereby submits itself to the original jurisdiction of 
those courts located within Coconino County, Arizona. 

 
24. Attorney's Fees.  If suit or action is initiated in connection with any controversy arising out 
of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover in addition to costs such sum as 
the court may adjudge reasonable as attorney fees, or in event of appeal as allowed by the appellate 
court. 

 
25. Time is of the Essence.  Contractor acknowledges that the completion of the Contract by 
the dates specified final completion is critical to the Owner, time being of the essence of this 
Contract. 



 7  

 

26. Headings.  The article and section headings contained herein are for convenience in 
reference and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Contract. 
 

27. Severability.  If any part of this Contract is determined by a court to be in conflict with any 
statute or constitution or to be unlawful for any reason, the parties intend that the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect unless the stricken provision leaves 
the remaining Contract unenforceable. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner and Contractor, by their duly authorized representatives, 
have executed this Contract as of the date written above.  
 
(Please sign in blue ink. Submit original signatures – photocopies not accepted)  
 

Owner, City of Flagstaff  Kinney Construction Services, Inc. 
   

Kevin Burke, City Manager  Signature 
   
   

Attest:  Printed Name 
   

City Clerk   
 
 
 

  

Approved as to form:   
   

City Attorney   
   

 



 8  

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA 
PAYMENT BOND 

 

PROJECT NAME:  Bundled Drainage Improvements #2 

PROJECT NUMBER: 993419    BID NUMBER: 2014-25 
 
 STATUTORY PAYMENT BOND PURSUANT TO TITLE 34 
 CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
 (Penalty of this Bond must be 100% of the Contract Amount) 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 That,   

(Hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal, and,   

          , a corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of      , with its 

principal office in the City of       (“Surety”), as Surety, are held and 

firmly bound unto the City of Flagstaff, Arizona (“Obligee”), in the amount of    

     Dollars ($    ) for the payment 

whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrators, executors, 

successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

 WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written Contract with the Obligee, 

dated this       day of   , 20___, to the City of Flagstaff which 

Contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at 

length herein. 

 Now, therefore, the condition of this obligation is such, that if the principal promptly pays 

all monies due to all persons supplying labor or materials to the principal or the principal's 

subcontractors in the prosecution of the work provided for in the contract, this obligation is void.  

Otherwise it remains in full force and effect. 

 Provided, however, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, 

Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in 

accordance with the provisions, conditions and limitations of said Title and Chapter, to the same 

extent as if it were copied at length in this Contract. 



 9  

 The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment reasonable 

attorney fees that may be fixed by a judge of the court. 

 

 Witness our hands this    day of     20___. 

              

Principal (Seal)     Surety (Seal) 

 

By:        By:        

 

              

Agency of Record     Agency Address 

  
 
 



 10  

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA 
PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

PROJECT NAME:  Bundled Drainage Improvements #2 

PROJECT NUMBER: 993419    BID NUMBER: 2014-25 
 
 STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND PURSUANT TO TITLE 34 
  CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
 (Penalty of this Bond must be 100% of the Contract Amount) 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 That, ____________________________________________________________________ 

(hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal, and,        

   , a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of   

   , with its principal office in the City of       

(“Surety”), as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the City of Flagstaff, Arizona (“Obligee”), in 

the amount of         Dollars ($   

 ) for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, 

administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

 WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written Contract with the Obligee, 

dated this   day of     200__ in the City of Flagstaff which 

Contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at 

length herein. 

 Now, therefore, the condition of this obligation is such, that if the principal faithfully 

performs and fulfills all of the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of 

contract during the original term of the contract and any extension of the contract, with or without 

notice to the surety, and during the life of any guaranty required under the contract, and also 

performs and fulfills all of the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of all 

duly authorized modifications of the contract that may hereafter be made, notice of which 

modifications to the surety being hereby waived, the above obligation is void.  Otherwise it remains 

in full force and effect. 

 

 Provided, however, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, 

Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in 



 11  

accordance with the provisions of said Title and Chapter, to the extent as if it were copied at length 

in this Contract. 

 The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as part of the judgment reasonable 

attorney fees that may be fixed by a judge of the court. 

 
 Witness our hands this    day of    20__. 
 
              
Principal (Seal)      Surety (Seal) 
 
By:        By:        
 
              
Agency of Record     Agency Address 
 























  14. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Brian Kulina, Planning Development Manager

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Public Hearing, Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2013-30:  A resolution amending the
Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan to change the land use designation of
approximately 4.02 acres of real property located at 600 West University Heights Drive from Parks and
Recreation to High Density Residential (Changing Land Use Designation for Trailside Apartments).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Hold Public Hearing
2) Read Resolution No. 2013-30 by title only
3) City Clerk reads Resolution No. 2013-30 by title only (if approved above)
4) Adopt Resolution No. 2013-30 

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
The Flagstaff Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a Public Hearing to consider this
Regional Plan amendment request at its regular meeting on October 23, 2013.  The Planning
Commission voted (7-0) to forward the request to the City Council with a recommendation of approval. 
Regional Plan amendments are required to be adopted by resolution.

Financial Impact:
None 

Connection to Council Goal:
Retain, expand, and diversify economic base
Effective governance

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
This Regional Plan amendment request is accompanied by a Zoning Map amendment request.

Options and Alternatives:
The City Council may approve, deny, or modify the resolution as necessary to ensure that the
development meets the objectives of the Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan and the City of
Flagstaff's development goals.

  



Background/History:
See the Introduction and Discussion section of the Planning and Zoning Commission Regional Land Use
and Transportation Plan Amendment Staff Report, dated October 23, 2013, a copy of which is attached,
for the Background/History discussion.

Key Considerations:
Regional Plan amendments are adopted by the City Council via resolution.  Resolution No. 2013-30
changes the land use designation of approximately 4.02 acres from Parks and Recreation to
High Density Residential.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
None

Community Benefits and Considerations:
Community benefits and considerations related to this Regional Plan amendment request are addressed
in the attached Planning and Zoning Commission Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan
Amendment Staff Report, dated October 23, 2013.

Community Involvement:
Inform

The Developer held a neighborhood meeting on September 6, 2013, at which sixteen people attended. 
Notice of the neighborhood meeting was provided in accordance with the Zoning Code.  The results of
the neighborhood meeting are included in the Citizen Participation Plan and Report, a copy of which is
included in the attached Planning and Zoning Commission Attachments.  The Planning and Zoning
Commission conducted a Public Hearing on October 23, 2013.  Notice of that Public Hearing was
provided in accordance with State statute and the Zoning Code.  At the Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting, one member of the public provided comments expressing concern about traffic,
parking, and the possibility of the proposed development compromising the views to the mountains.  The
member of the public further commented that they would rather see an apartment complex developed on
on the subject property rather than a commercial use.

As of this writing, staff has received one letter, from the Sinclair Springs Townhomes Owners
Association, and one phone call.  The letter expressed concerns over parking and building height, as it
related to the view of the mountains.  The caller was looking to gather additional information related to the
proposal and stated that a comment letter would be forthcoming.  To date, staff has not received that
letter.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
(Recommended Action): The City Council may approve the Regional Plan amendment as
recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission and staff by reading and adopting
Resolution No. 2013-30.
The City Council may approve the Regional Plan amendment with modifications to the resolution.
The City Council may deny the Regional Plan amendment.

Attachments:  Res. 2013-30
Public Hearing Notices
Draft PZC Minutes (10/23/2013)
PZC Staff Report



PZC Staff Report
PZC Staff Report Attachments (1 of 2)
PZC Staff Report Attachments (2 of 2)























�

��������	��
����

�

���������������

�����������������������������

��  ���!�"#$%#�$��&��'��(#��)*&�) +*�

��������������&���,%'����-�.(#���
/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////�

�

���������0
�0�

������������	
��
����
����
��

�����������
����������	����

����������������������
���������  �!������	
��
�"���������#�$����������%#�$&'�������'
%#�������(
�((
�#�

��
	�
�� ��'
��"�)��
���������#���
!
�$��*'��#���&�����
�
�
���+���,--�� ������������������ �

���*���.%
�'"����((�/���'���

������0&���"��������� 
!
�	�
��������
��

0��1
�%�����	"����	�
�
�'�!
��������������
��

�
�*%������(("��
���������
��
���%�

�

����0���1��������

�

�2 ��1������������

��%#2�

�

12�����0�3��������������

23���
�&����

������(�����1
��4"�5�2���

�����%�����!
�����		��!
���
����&�
'��(���
��
�&����

������(�����1
��4"�5�2�"��'�'&1����
���
�'���%���,		��!
��'�'&1����
�����4#$�(��������''���
���������%����#'�%$#$�(����
�����''���
��$��*'����������������
��&������&'%�.���������''���
������
��1'���������&
����
��'��1'
��
������
��

�������

�

�

�

�

�

�



��������6�7�����������''����
 ��(�����&�
'�
����1
��5�"�5�2��
���
�5�

��1����5��0����

+2 ��������$#��6���.#%���

,���
''�� 8���9�:��!
�'��%�;
����'� ��!
�������
,''
''��<'�����
��&�1
��� 225=5�=�2�,"��2��"��2>��
���	
��%��.�
����� ���'��� 
!
�	�
���
,		��������� ������������

�����
,		���������&�1
��� �����) +*	   +�
���%����((�� ������0&����
,��������&�������� �
������/����:'
���������'	�������������,�
���
���

,��
������/����:'
���������'	���������������
���
����
?&
'��(����������������

���������
�&�!
%���"�����"����1
��(��(����'��� 
!
�	�
��"���������
���
�����&'
��
'���������(���
�		��@����
%����5����
'�����
�����8���9�:��!
�'��%�;
����'� ��!
�������(�������*'�����
�
��
���������;���� 
�'��%��
'��
�������

����0&������!
�����.
���������
'
�������������
�	��	�'
��	��A
���������'.
�
��?&
'����'�
(���������''���
�'��� �'�&''����.�'��
�������
��
'�&��
�	���
���������&���������
���A&�������.������
�,((����1
�;�&'�������
���!
�����%��

0
���;��'
�	���"�������������

��������1
��(��(���
��.�
�"�������&�
����
� 
!
�	�
���
�
���(�����
�	��	�'
��	��A
��������������
����
%�.
�
��!���1
�(���?&
'����'��

�����%��������������	
����
�	&1����
��������4#$�(����������������	
��
����#'�%$#$�(����
�����''���
���������%���������������
��&������&'%��

�,(��'���..#%����

�'���
����B�.�'�����"��
'��
����(���
�)���
��(�:��!
�'��%�;
����'"�
@	�
''
������
����1�&��
���((��"�	��*����������
�	�''�1���%��(���
�	��	�'
��	��A
������	����'������
�!�
.'�
������
�
�������
��'�
�.�&������
����!
��	����
��'���'�
����(�'��
�������*
���9�=������

�����%���������������'
���
�	&1����
��������4#$�(����������������	
��
����#'�%$#$�(����
�����''���
���������%���������������
��&������&'%��

 �'�&''����.�'��
���1�&����
�	��	�'
��	��A
�����������������	
��
��
@	�
''
����'�����
���
�1�&��!�����������
��
����������,�
���
���1
(��
��
������'��((<'�	�
'
�������������
�
�
C�������		��������.�����(��.'���;
��
����
��
�������
������''�������	�'�	��
�!������
������'��		��������&������
��
C�������		���������'��
��������

)2 �������$#��6���.#%���

,���
''�� 8���9�:��!
�'��%�;
����'� ��!
�������
,''
''��<'�����
��&�1
��� 225=5�=�2�,"��2��"��2>��
���	
��%��.�
����� ���'��� 
!
�	�
���
,		��������� ������������

�����
,		���������&�1
��� �0���) +*	   )�
���%����((�� ������0&����
,��������&�������� 7��������	�,�
���
���

,�7��������	���
���
����
?&
'��(����������������

����������&�!
%���"�����"����1
��(��(�
���'��� 
!
�	�
��"�����
C��
��		��@����
%����5����
'�����
�����8���9�:��!
�'��%�;
����'�
 ��!
�������(�����&1&�1�������
�����D��3�C��
��������
�;���� 
�'��%��
'��
�����D;�3�C��
��



��������6�7�����������''����
 ��(�����&�
'�
����1
��5�"�5�2��
���
���

����0&������!
�����.
���������
'
�������������
�	��	�'
��	��A
���������'.
�
��?&
'����'�
(���������''���
�'��� �'�&''����.�'��
��������
''"�	��*����������
���.
���
�&�����'��

0
���;��'
�	���"�������������

��������1
��(��(���
��.�
�"���'�&''
����
�	��*����
�
�&������.�'���!
���&
������
�	��@����%������1&'�'������������'��
@	�
''
����
��.�
��.�&��
�*
��� 
!
�	�
���,��

�
������(�
��A&'���'��&����'���
����%�'���
���
'�<��1
�
!
���������
'��&��1
��������������(���
�	��A
�����;
��'����'�&''
�����((��"����
''����������'�����
����
1&������.����!
�����.��
�����!
'�����������;��'
�	�����'����'.
�
��?&
'����'����(����
C��
��''&
'��

�����%��������������	
����
�	&1����
��������4#$�(����������������	
��
����#'�%$#$�(����
�����''���
������
���������������
��&������&'%��

�,(��'���..#%������
�

�����%���������������'
���
�	&1����
��������4#$�(����������������	
��
����#'�%$#$�(����
)��
���������� ��'
�����������������
��&������&'%��

 �'�&''����.�'��
�������
�	��	�'
��	��A
����

�����%�������������(��.����������%���&����(����		��!���		���������B�B�5�2�=���2�"����
�����
���
�����&'
��
'���������(����		��@����
%����5����
'�����
�����8���9�:��!
�'��%�
;
����'� ��!
�������(�������*'������
��
���������;���� 
�'��%��
'��
�������4#$�(����
���	
��
�����	
��
����#'�%$#$�(���������''���
�� ��'
�����������������
��&������&'%��

�

�����%�������������(��.����������%���&����(����		��!���		�����������7�5�2�=���5"����
�
C��
��		��@����
%����5����
'�����
�����8���9�:��!
�'��%�;
����'� ��!
�������(����
�&1&�1�������
�����D��3�C��
�������
�;���� 
�'��%��
'��
�����D;�3�C��
����4#$�(����
���	
��
�����	
��
����#'�%$#$�(���������''���
������
���������������
��&������&'%��

�

�����#��.#��'��5��#�����0#������ � � � � �

,���
''�� 5>2>����&�
��,!
�&
�
,''
''��<'�����
��&�1
��� 2�8=�4=��2"�2�8=�4=��5"�2�8=��=��>�"�2�8=��=��4-"�

2�8=2�=��5"�2�8=2�=��2 "�2�8=2�=��2�"�2�8=2�=��2�"�
2��=25=����

���	
��%��.�
����� ;������-���%�
,		��������� /���
�,�
�����;��
'�6��
'���'"������
,		���������&�1
��� ���0�) +*	  +*�
���%����((�� 0��1
�%�����	�
,��������&�������� ��A����
����������,�
���
���
,���A����
����������,�
���
����
?&
'��(���� 
'����9��*'��	"���������1
��(��(���
�;������
-���%"������
�������&'
��
'��������'��(��		��@����
%�>�>����
'�����
�����5>2>����&�
��
,!
�&
�(�������������
'
�!
�,�
��D��,3�����
����������
����"�;���= 
�'��%"��
��&��
 
�'��%"�����/�.� 
�'��%��
'��
����"�����:�1����	
���	��
��

�'������	���!
���1��
(�������&�������(���
�	��	�'
��	��A
���������
��������&�
����
�
�
!
�	�
����
����

























































































  14. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Brian Kulina, Planning Development Manager

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Public Hearing, Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2013-24:  An ordinance amending
the Flagstaff Zoning Map designation of approximately 4.02 acres of real property located at 600 West
University Heights Drive from "SC", Suburban Commercial, to " HR", High Density Residential (Amending
Zoning Map for Trailside Apartments).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
At the December 3, 2013 Council Meeting:
1) Hold Public Hearing
2) Read Ordinance No. 2013-24 by title only for the first time
3) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2013-24 by title only for the first time (if approved above)
At the December 17, 2013 Council Meeting:
4) Read Ordinance No. 2013-24 by title only for the final time
5) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2013-24 by title only for the final time (if approved above)
6) Adopt Ordinance No. 2013-24 

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
The Flagstaff Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a Public Hearing to consider this Zoning Map
amendment request at its regular meeting on October 23, 2013.  The Planning Commission voted (7-0)
to forward the request to the City Council with a recommendation of approval subject to two conditions. 
The attached ordinance list the two conditions of approval.  Zoning Map amendments are required to be
adopted by ordinance.

Subsidiary Decisions Points:
If the first reading of the ordinance is successful, the attached Development Agreement will be scheduled
for consideration by the City Council on December 17, 2013, prior to the second reading of the
ordinance.

Financial Impact:
None 

Connection to Council Goal:
Retain, expand, and diversify economic base
Effective governance



Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
This Zoning Map amendment request is accompanied by a Regional Plan amendment request.

Options and Alternatives:
The City Council may approve the ordinance with the proposed conditions, approve the ordinance with
additional or modified conditions, or deny the ordinance.

Background/History:
See the Introduction/Background section of the Planning and Zoning Commission Zoning Map
Amendment Staff Report, dated October 23, 2013, a copy of which is attached, for the
Background/History discussion.

Key Considerations:
Zoning Map amendments are adopted by the City Council via ordinance.  Ordinance No.
2013-24 changes the Zoning Map designation of approximately 4.02 acres from the Suburban
Commercial (SC) zone to the High Density Residential (HR) zone.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
None

Community Benefits and Considerations:
Community benefits and considerations related to this Zoning Map amendment request are addressed in
the attached Planning and Zoning Commission Zoning Map Amendment Staff Report, dated October 23,
2013.

Community Involvement:
Inform

The Developer held a neighborhood meeting on September 6, 2013, at which sixteen people
attended.  Notice of the neighborhood meeting was provided in accordance with the Zoning Code.  The
results of the neighborhood meeting are included in the Citizen Participation Plan and Report, a copy of
which is attached to the accompanying Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan
Amendment Staff Report.  The Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a Public Hearing on
October 23, 2013.  Notice of that Public Hearing was provided in accordance with State statute and the
Zoning Code.  At the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, one member of the public provided
comments expressing concern about traffic, parking, and the possibility of the proposed development
compromising the views to the mountains. The member of the public further commented that they would
rather see an apartment complex developed on on the subject property rather than a commercial use.

As of this writing, staff has received one letter, from the Sinclair Springs Townhomes Owners
Association, and one phone call.  The letter expressed concerns over parking and building height, as it
related to the view of the mountains.  The caller was looking to gather additional information related to the
proposal and stated that a comment letter would be forthcoming.  To date, staff has not received that
letter.



Expanded Options and Alternatives:
(Recommended Action): The City Council may approve the Zoning Map amendment as
recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission and staff by reading and adopting
Ordinance No. 2013-24.
The City Council may approve the Zoning Map amendment with additional or modified conditions
of approval.
The City Council may deny the Zoning Map amendment.

Attachments:  Ord. 2013-24
Public Hearing Notices
Draft PZC Minutes (10/23/2013)
PZC Staff Report
Exhibits 1 of 2
Exhibits 2 of 2



























�

��������	��
����

�

���������������

�����������������������������

��  ���!�"#$%#�$��&��'��(#��)*&�) +*�

��������������&���,%'����-�.(#���
/////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////�

�

���������0
�0�

������������	
��
����
����
��

�����������
����������	����

����������������������
���������  �!������	
��
�"���������#�$����������%#�$&'�������'
%#�������(
�((
�#�

��
	�
�� ��'
��"�)��
���������#���
!
�$��*'��#���&�����
�
�
���+���,--�� ������������������ �

���*���.%
�'"����((�/���'���

������0&���"��������� 
!
�	�
��������
��

0��1
�%�����	"����	�
�
�'�!
��������������
��

�
�*%������(("��
���������
��
���%�

�

����0���1��������

�

�2 ��1������������

��%#2�

�

12�����0�3��������������

23���
�&����

������(�����1
��4"�5�2���

�����%�����!
�����		��!
���
����&�
'��(���
��
�&����

������(�����1
��4"�5�2�"��'�'&1����
���
�'���%���,		��!
��'�'&1����
�����4#$�(��������''���
���������%����#'�%$#$�(����
�����''���
��$��*'����������������
��&������&'%�.���������''���
������
��1'���������&
����
��'��1'
��
������
��

�������

�

�

�

�

�

�



��������6�7�����������''����
 ��(�����&�
'�
����1
��5�"�5�2��
���
�5�

��1����5��0����

+2 ��������$#��6���.#%���

,���
''�� 8���9�:��!
�'��%�;
����'� ��!
�������
,''
''��<'�����
��&�1
��� 225=5�=�2�,"��2��"��2>��
���	
��%��.�
����� ���'��� 
!
�	�
���
,		��������� ������������

�����
,		���������&�1
��� �����) +*	   +�
���%����((�� ������0&����
,��������&�������� �
������/����:'
���������'	�������������,�
���
���

,��
������/����:'
���������'	���������������
���
����
?&
'��(����������������

���������
�&�!
%���"�����"����1
��(��(����'��� 
!
�	�
��"���������
���
�����&'
��
'���������(���
�		��@����
%����5����
'�����
�����8���9�:��!
�'��%�;
����'� ��!
�������(�������*'�����
�
��
���������;���� 
�'��%��
'��
�������

����0&������!
�����.
���������
'
�������������
�	��	�'
��	��A
���������'.
�
��?&
'����'�
(���������''���
�'��� �'�&''����.�'��
�������
��
'�&��
�	���
���������&���������
���A&�������.������
�,((����1
�;�&'�������
���!
�����%��

0
���;��'
�	���"�������������

��������1
��(��(���
��.�
�"�������&�
����
� 
!
�	�
���
�
���(�����
�	��	�'
��	��A
��������������
����
%�.
�
��!���1
�(���?&
'����'��

�����%��������������	
����
�	&1����
��������4#$�(����������������	
��
����#'�%$#$�(����
�����''���
���������%���������������
��&������&'%��

�,(��'���..#%����

�'���
����B�.�'�����"��
'��
����(���
�)���
��(�:��!
�'��%�;
����'"�
@	�
''
������
����1�&��
���((��"�	��*����������
�	�''�1���%��(���
�	��	�'
��	��A
������	����'������
�!�
.'�
������
�
�������
��'�
�.�&������
����!
��	����
��'���'�
����(�'��
�������*
���9�=������

�����%���������������'
���
�	&1����
��������4#$�(����������������	
��
����#'�%$#$�(����
�����''���
���������%���������������
��&������&'%��

 �'�&''����.�'��
���1�&����
�	��	�'
��	��A
�����������������	
��
��
@	�
''
����'�����
���
�1�&��!�����������
��
����������,�
���
���1
(��
��
������'��((<'�	�
'
�������������
�
�
C�������		��������.�����(��.'���;
��
����
��
�������
������''�������	�'�	��
�!������
������'��		��������&������
��
C�������		���������'��
��������

)2 �������$#��6���.#%���

,���
''�� 8���9�:��!
�'��%�;
����'� ��!
�������
,''
''��<'�����
��&�1
��� 225=5�=�2�,"��2��"��2>��
���	
��%��.�
����� ���'��� 
!
�	�
���
,		��������� ������������

�����
,		���������&�1
��� �0���) +*	   )�
���%����((�� ������0&����
,��������&�������� 7��������	�,�
���
���

,�7��������	���
���
����
?&
'��(����������������

����������&�!
%���"�����"����1
��(��(�
���'��� 
!
�	�
��"�����
C��
��		��@����
%����5����
'�����
�����8���9�:��!
�'��%�;
����'�
 ��!
�������(�����&1&�1�������
�����D��3�C��
��������
�;���� 
�'��%��
'��
�����D;�3�C��
��



��������6�7�����������''����
 ��(�����&�
'�
����1
��5�"�5�2��
���
���

����0&������!
�����.
���������
'
�������������
�	��	�'
��	��A
���������'.
�
��?&
'����'�
(���������''���
�'��� �'�&''����.�'��
��������
''"�	��*����������
���.
���
�&�����'��

0
���;��'
�	���"�������������

��������1
��(��(���
��.�
�"���'�&''
����
�	��*����
�
�&������.�'���!
���&
������
�	��@����%������1&'�'������������'��
@	�
''
����
��.�
��.�&��
�*
��� 
!
�	�
���,��

�
������(�
��A&'���'��&����'���
����%�'���
���
'�<��1
�
!
���������
'��&��1
��������������(���
�	��A
�����;
��'����'�&''
�����((��"����
''����������'�����
����
1&������.����!
�����.��
�����!
'�����������;��'
�	�����'����'.
�
��?&
'����'����(����
C��
��''&
'��

�����%��������������	
����
�	&1����
��������4#$�(����������������	
��
����#'�%$#$�(����
�����''���
������
���������������
��&������&'%��

�,(��'���..#%������
�

�����%���������������'
���
�	&1����
��������4#$�(����������������	
��
����#'�%$#$�(����
)��
���������� ��'
�����������������
��&������&'%��

 �'�&''����.�'��
�������
�	��	�'
��	��A
����

�����%�������������(��.����������%���&����(����		��!���		���������B�B�5�2�=���2�"����
�����
���
�����&'
��
'���������(����		��@����
%����5����
'�����
�����8���9�:��!
�'��%�
;
����'� ��!
�������(�������*'������
��
���������;���� 
�'��%��
'��
�������4#$�(����
���	
��
�����	
��
����#'�%$#$�(���������''���
�� ��'
�����������������
��&������&'%��

�

�����%�������������(��.����������%���&����(����		��!���		�����������7�5�2�=���5"����
�
C��
��		��@����
%����5����
'�����
�����8���9�:��!
�'��%�;
����'� ��!
�������(����
�&1&�1�������
�����D��3�C��
�������
�;���� 
�'��%��
'��
�����D;�3�C��
����4#$�(����
���	
��
�����	
��
����#'�%$#$�(���������''���
������
���������������
��&������&'%��

�

�����#��.#��'��5��#�����0#������ � � � � �

,���
''�� 5>2>����&�
��,!
�&
�
,''
''��<'�����
��&�1
��� 2�8=�4=��2"�2�8=�4=��5"�2�8=��=��>�"�2�8=��=��4-"�

2�8=2�=��5"�2�8=2�=��2 "�2�8=2�=��2�"�2�8=2�=��2�"�
2��=25=����

���	
��%��.�
����� ;������-���%�
,		��������� /���
�,�
�����;��
'�6��
'���'"������
,		���������&�1
��� ���0�) +*	  +*�
���%����((�� 0��1
�%�����	�
,��������&�������� ��A����
����������,�
���
���
,���A����
����������,�
���
����
?&
'��(���� 
'����9��*'��	"���������1
��(��(���
�;������
-���%"������
�������&'
��
'��������'��(��		��@����
%�>�>����
'�����
�����5>2>����&�
��
,!
�&
�(�������������
'
�!
�,�
��D��,3�����
����������
����"�;���= 
�'��%"��
��&��
 
�'��%"�����/�.� 
�'��%��
'��
����"�����:�1����	
���	��
��

�'������	���!
���1��
(�������&�������(���
�	��	�'
��	��A
���������
��������&�
����
�
�
!
�	�
����
����















































































































  14. C.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Kimberly Sharp, AICP, Comprehensive
Planning Manager

Co-Submitter: Jim Cronk, Planning Director

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE
Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030: Place Matters – Public Hearing #2

This Public Hearing will not begin before 6:00 p.m.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Conduct Public Hearing Number 2 on the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030: Place Matters

INFORMATION
Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030: Place Matters document titled “Public Hearing Draft”, dated August
2013 is before you and the public today as a broad policy document for consideration of City Council and
Board of Supervisors. The intent of Public Hearing #2 is to hear the public’s comments on the draft
document, so that elected officials may hear the community’s voice, and then begin deliberation. 
Because of the length of the document and the level of public and Council interest, the Council will
continue deliberation on the Regional Plan in subsequent public meetings.
 
The main contents of the plan include an Introduction and three broad categories identified as the
Natural Environment; the Built Environment; and the Human Environment.  The Introduction includes a
vision and guiding principles; a description of the region; background, existing conditions, and trends;
how the plan was developed; and how it will be used and implemented over time.  Each of the three
broad categories of Natural/Built/Human Environments includes several elements.  Each element
includes specific goals and policies regarding future development in the region.  The three categories
and their respective elements are listed below.
 

Natural Environment

Environmental
Planning and
Conservation
Open Space
Water Resources
Energy

Built Environment

Community Character
Land Use and Growth
Areas
Transportation
Cost of Development
Public Buildings,
Services, Facilities,
and Safety

Human Environment

Neighborhoods,
Housing, and Urban
Conservation
Economic Development
Recreation

 



 
Maps
 
The Plan contains numerous maps  intended to illustrate a variety of regional features, including natural
resources, population, housing, roads, trails, utilities, land ownership patterns, and other information. 
Unlike the current Flagstaff Regional Plan, this Plan update does not include a parcel-based “Land Use
Map” per se, but instead includes a more generalized “Future Growth Illustration.”  The Future Growth
Illustration is intended to depict a generalized conceptual growth pattern without specifically identifying a
particular land use on a parcel-by-parcel basis, which is contained in the Zoning Code.  In other words,
the emphasis in this plan update is on the goals and policies contained in each plan element rather than
on a particular land use designation on a map.
 
Goals and Policies
 
The Plan is structured so that there is at least one or more goals and related policies under each
subsection of each element in the plan.  The goals are high-level statements of a desired future
condition, and the policies are specific statements of intent designed to accomplish the goals.  As a
collection of goals and policies, the Plan is a policy document and not a regulatory document.  As such,
the broad, high-level goals and policies on various topics may occasionally conflict.  This is a normal
characteristic of a policy plan and is not a problem.  Decision-makers such as the Planning and Zoning
Commissions, City Council and Board of Supervisors have broad discretion in applying the goals and
policies of the Plan in relation to any given situation and may choose which goals or policies to
emphasize over others as they deem appropriate.
 
It should also be noted that there are certain policies in the plan that only apply in the City and other
policies that only apply in the County.  Other goals and policies are more general and could apply
throughout the region.  When it comes down to decision-making relative to future development in the City
and the County, each jurisdiction retains full authority in their respective areas.
 
Plan Hierarchy
 
The Regional Plan holds a different position in the hierarchy of plans at the City versus the County.  At the
City, the Regional Plan serves as the City’s General Plan, so it is the primary planning document at the
City.  By contrast, in the unincorporated County, the Regional Plan becomes another member of our
“family” of plans.  The Coconino County Comprehensive Plan is the overall primary planning document
County-wide, including the unincorporated portions of the greater Flagstaff area covered by the Regional
Plan.  In addition, the County has adopted five local area plans within the Regional Plan boundaries.
 
Public Process
 
The update process began in 2008 with a Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) established by ordinance
2008-34. The original CAC members were selected from publicly solicited applicants, both city and
county residents, and were selected by Councilmembers and Supervisors with the intent of a diverse
group representing the community at large.  Two Councilmembers and two Supervisors along with the
City Manager and Deputy County Manager, as the Steering Committee, have continued to advise the
Core Planning Team (city planners, county planners and FMPO Manager) for the past five years as well.
 
From February 2009-July 2013, the CAC met monthly and took into consideration existing Regional Plan
goals and policies along with the thousands of public comments gathered on the state-statute required
topics for the plan. With over 300 open houses, focus group meetings and working group meetings, the
Regional Plan was drafted as a policy document reflecting this community’s values.
 
A public review of the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030: Place Matters document was released March 28,
2013. Over 700 editing comments were gathered during the 60-day public comment period, via e-mail,
mail, and comment cards. During this public comment period, 60 community groups hosted a regional



plan presentation and discussion. In June and July, 2013, the CAC re-convened to review and
incorporate the suggested edits from the public and initial Planning & Zoning Commission discussions.
 
The Flagstaff Planning and Zoning Commission, Coconino County Planning and Zoning Commission,
Flagstaff City Council and the Coconino County Board of Supervisors have had the opportunity to review
and comment on the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030: Place Matters, titled “Public Hearing Draft” dated
August 2013. 
 
The Flagstaff Planning and Zoning Commission recommended adoption by Flagstaff City Council with a
list of 42 suggested edits (attached) on October 23, 2013.  For the City, the Flagstaff Regional Plan
2030: Place Matters will supersede the Flagstaff Area Land Use and Transportation Plan (2001) and
serves as the City’s General Plan.
 
The County Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval to the Board of Supervisors
without any changes on October 29, 2013.  For Coconino County, the Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030:
Place Matters will supersede the Flagstaff Area Land Use and Transportation Plan (2001) and will be
an amendment to the Coconino County Comprehensive Plan.
 
The December 3, 2013 City Council Meeting is the official Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030: Place Matters
-  Public Hearing #2.
 
RECOMMENDATION
The purpose of the hearing is to receive public comment, give the Council an opportunity to ask
questions of staff or the public, and to begin deliberation if possible considering time constraints.   It is
anticipated that Council will discuss, debate and give staff direction regarding the Regional Plan at
the Council retreat on Friday, December 6 at the Aquaplex beginning at 8 a.m. The Council will continue
deliberation and make decisions regarding the Plan at the December 17 City Council meeting.
 

Attachments: 



  15. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Roger Eastman, Zoning Code Administrator

Date: 11/25/2013

Meeting Date: 12/03/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration of Resolution No. 2013-32:  A resolution adopting a Major Amendment to the Flagstaff
Regional Plan for Little America Hotels and Resorts, Inc.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Read Resolution No. 2013-32 by title only.
2) City Clerk reads Resolution No. 2013-32 (if approved above) 
3) Adopt Resolution 2013-32 (adopting a major amendment to the Flagstaff Area Regional Land
Use and Transportation Plan by changing the plan designations of approximately 495 acres of real
property generally located south of East Butler Avenue and East of Interstate 40.)

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
At the December 3, 2013 meeting the Council will consider whether the application for this major
amendment to the (current) Flagstaff Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan should be approved or
denied. 

Financial Impact:
None.

Connection to Council Goal:
1. Retain, expand, and diversify economic base
2. Effective governance

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
No. However, a public hearing for this major amendment to the (current) Flagstaff Regional Land Use
and Transportation Plan was held on November 19, 2013.

Options and Alternatives:
1.Approve by resolution the proposed Regional Plan amendment application for Little America Hotels and
Resorts, Inc.

2.  Deny the proposed Regional Plan amendment application for Little America Hotels and Resorts, Inc.



Background/History:
Design Workshop on behalf of Little America Hotels & Resorts, Inc. has submitted a Major Regional
Land Use and Transportation Plan Amendment Application to the City of Flagstaff, and has
submitted all required materials and studies within the legal time frames as established in City Code Title
11 (General Plans and Subdivisions). The proposed development is comprised of 537 acres south of
Butler Avenue and east of Interstate 40.  Approximately 42 acres of the property includes the existing
Little America hotel which is currently designated as Regional Commercial on the RP Land use Map. The
remainder of the property is designated as Planning Reserve Area.
 
The Planning Reserve Areas (PRAs) are generally at the periphery of urbanized areas, are guidelines
intended to accommodate a range of densities and other non-residential uses, and are considered
suitable for future urban development. Land designated as PRAs do not currently have City services, but
are generally close to existing development and available urban services. The Regional Plan also
identifies that some of the areas are to be preserved for urban open space.
 
The applicant is proposing to retain the existing Little America Hotel; to add a new 200-room resort hotel
associated with a new 18-hole golf course that will be open to the public; a neighborhood commercial
center in the vicinity of the existing truck stop with approximately 157,000 sq. ft. of new commercial uses
on 9 acres; approximately 1,400 new residential units ranging from low density, through medium density,
to high density on approximately 336 acres; and a variety of recreational uses including public parks, the
public golf course, FUTS (Flagstaff Urban Trails System) and hiking trails on approximately 148 acres.
 
A detailed explanation of the requested amendment to the Regional Plan Land Use Map (Maps 3 and 4)
is included in the attached report to the Planning and Zoning Commission (Page 10 of 15). Note that no
text amendments to the existing Flagstaff Regional Plan are proposed.
 
The complete application and all supplementary reports are available for the City Council and the public
on-line. All links are provided in the attached staff summary report to the Planning and Zoning
Commission for their November 13, 2013 second public hearing.

A major amendment to the Flagstaff Regional Plan is required by state law and City Code Title 11
(General Plans and Subdivisions) to be approved by resolution. Accordingly Resolution No. 2013-32 is
attached. The conditions of approval recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission have not
been inserted into the resolution because they are more informational markers to the applicant of what
will be required at the future zone change and development agreement stage, than conditions of approval
per se. For this reason, they are noted below as a reference and as a record of what will be expected of
the applicant if the major plan amendment application is approved.

The following shall be addressed by the applicant during the future rezoning/development agreement
phase:

Water:  Show a complete utility loop system of 20” minimum water main (not just from Butler Ave.
to Butler Ave.) and water supply infrastructure in the utilities concept plan.

1.

Water:  Show all reclaim water on-site and off-site infrastructure improvements and adequate
supply.

2.

Stormwater: The final design will be compliant with the findings of the Drainage Impact Analysis.3.

Stormwater:  Watercourse restoration design and intent is required as scoped and approved by
the City Stormwater Section.

4.



Stormwater:  The golf course encroachment into the rural floodplain must be addressed to the
satisfaction of the Stormwater Management Section as part of the Zoning Case. 

5.

Traffic: This project must have two remote access points (secondary access) to meet traffic and
fire code regulations, and the rezoning proposal must address phasing of the development for
secondary access.

6.

Traffic: This project needs to analyze JW Powell Boulevard as a secondary access during the
rezoning phase of the project.

7.

Traffic: All Regional Plan roadway Right of Way (ROW) dedications for all roads of regional
significance must be resolved during the rezoning/development agreement process.   This
includes, but is not limited to, East Butler Avenue access, Herold Ranch Road, and the internal
street network.

8.

Traffic:  The applicant must solidify interconnectivity with surrounding properties and land uses
with roads and trails during the rezone/development agreement phase.

9.

Public Facilities:  Little America will coordinate the need for public facilities and services with
various agencies during the rezoning phase of the project.

10.

Phasing Plan:  The rezoning application must include a detailed phasing plan for development that
is linked to specific infrastructure improvements such as road improvements and full secondary
access; water and sewer infrastructure and supply; and reclaim water infrastructure and supply.

11.

Reclaimed Water: Reclaimed water shall be used on the golf course and other open space within
the project.

12.

Key Considerations:
The City Council held a public hearing for this application in accordance with the requirements of City
Code Title 11 (General Plans and Subdivisions) and applicable state law on November 19, 2013. At the
December 3, 2013 meeting the Council may consider whether to approve or deny the application.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
Not applicable.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
A summary of the benefits that the Flagstaff community may realize is included in the attached staff
summary for the Planning and Zoning Commission's public hearing #2, held on November 13, 2013 at
the Flagstaff Aquaplex.

Community Involvement:
Inform and Consult: Representatives for the applicant - Design Workshop - and their team hosted a
required neighborhood public meeting at Little America on September 10, 2013 that was attended by 58
community members. The attached staff summary for the Planning and Zoning Commission's public
hearing #2, on November 13, 2013 includes a summary of the principle issues and concerns discussed at
this meeting, as well as a link to all of the comments that were submitted. The Planning and Zoning
Commission has also held a work session on the Little America Regional Plan Major Amendment
application on October 9, 2013, as well as required public hearings on October 23, 2013 and November
13, 2013. All materials submitted in support of the application have been posted to the City web page
since early summer, 2013.
 



On November 13, 2013 the Planning and Zoning Commission held a second public hearing on the
requested major amendment application as required by state law. Approximately 25 - 30 residents
attended the hearing, of which only four chose to speak to the Commission. Two of the speakers spoke in
support of the project, acknowledging the many community benefits it would bring to Flagstaff and
encouraging the Planning Commission to recommend its approval. The two other speakers opposed the
project and urged the Commission to not recommend its approval, noting that while it was "a good
proposal except for the golf course, this project sends the wrong message to Flagstaff residents about
water use." Both speakers expressed concern with the proposed use of City reclaim water on the golf
course, and suggested that the golf course component of the project should be removed from the
proposed plan.
 
The Commission debated the merits of the project, expressed their concerns, and asked numerous
questions of staff and the applicant's representative. The Commission's two greatest concerns were with
regard to the use of reclaim water on the golf course, and with the residential density proposed in the
project being too low. By a 5-2 vote the Commission eventually moved to approve case number
PSPR20130013, the request for a major Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan Amendment for
Little America Hotels and Resorts, Inc. subject to the 11 conditions as listed in the staff report (Page 14 of
15) with the addition of a new condition that would "require the use of reclaimed water on the golf
courses and other open space within the project."
 
On November 19, 2013 at the Council's public hearing for this major Regional Plan amendment
application, 11 Flagstaff residents addressed the Council, six of whom encouraged the Council to support
and approve the application, while the remainder expressed concerns with various aspects of the
proposal.

After the public hearing on November 19, 2013, some members of the Council requested additional
information on a variety of topics. This information is presented below.

Better understanding of impact fees specific to the project: Staff has completed a preliminary
analysis of total fire and police impact fees that will be generated from the proposed project assuming
complete build-out of the development. The impact fees used in the calculation below are the current
impact fees adopted by Council - these may be revised up or down in the future. 

Single-family residential units - 327 units @ $675 each = $220.000
Multi-family residential units - 1460 units @ 536 each = $782,560

New resort hotel with 200 rooms @ $182 each = $36,400 (excludes est. 40,000 sq.ft. of conference
space)

Commercial/office - 157,000 sq.ft. @ $1.24/sq.ft. = $194,680 (only calculated on commercial floor
area as no est. of office floor area has been provided. This value will, therefore be revised
downward as the impact fee for offices is currently $0.43/sq.ft.)

   
Total impact fees (payable at time of building permit) for the complete project is est. $1.2 million.

The second attachment includes a response from the City Utilities Division with additional information on
specific questions asked by Vice Mayor Evans at the November 19th public hearing on impact and
capacity fees, and reclaimed contracts.
 
Additional general information on the amount of traffic that may connect south from the Little
America project to the future J.W. Powell Boulevard extension: The traffic study evaluated the traffic
impacts for year 2020, 2025 and 2030 scenarios. The J.W. Powell extension was included only in the
year 2030 scenario since this was the build out scenario for Little America and because the J.W. Powell
extension is considered a long-term transportation improvement. In the 2030 scenario,  it was assumed
that Herold Ranch Road would extend south where a connection would be provided between Herold



Ranch Road and the J.W. Powell/4 th Street extension. With this connection and at build out of the Little
America site, it was estimated that about 20 percent of new traffic generated by Little America would
utilize the connection to J.W. Powell/4 th Street extension for a total of approximate 3,900 daily trips.  Of
this traffic, it was assumed that about 2,300 or 60 percent would travel north, 1,250 or 32 percent would
travel south and 350 or nine percent would travel east. In 2030 it is anticipated that J.W. Powell
Boulevard will carry approximately 11,000 vehicles per day.

Provide additional information on stormwater management and flooding concerns, with specific
reference to the proposed Juniper Point and Canyon del Rio projects:  Little America has performed
a comprehensive Drainage Impact Analysis that quantifies increases in stormwater runoff for both peak
flows and volume increases. Little America has identified mitigations that will occur on-site to address
these increases. Primarily, stormwater will be captured and used to supplement watering of the golf
course. With these mitigations in place, stormwater runoff received by the Rio De Flag is equivalent to
runoff generated under natural, forested conditions.
 
Both Juniper Point and Canyon Del Rio also require that a Drainage Impact Analysis be performed to
address increases in peak flows and volume increases. Although their methods may vary from that
chosen by Little America, the end result will be no increase in stormwater runoff to the Rio De Flag.
 
In summary, all three developments require identification of mitigation measures to ensure control of
increases in both peak flow and volume, resulting in natural, undeveloped runoff quantities to the Rio de
Flag.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
Refer to options on Page 1.

Attachments:  Resolution No. 2013-32
Response to Utility Fees Questions



    RESOLUTION NO. 2013-32 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A MAJOR AMENDMENT TO THE FLAGSTAFF 
AREA REGIONAL LAND USE AND TRANSPORTATION PLAN BY 
CHANGING THE DESIGNATIONS ON MAP 3: REGIONAL LAND USE PLAN 
AND MAP 4: CITY LAND USE PLAN OF APPROXIMATELY 495 ACRES OF 
REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF EAST BUTLER 
AVENUE AND EAST OF INTERSTATE FORTY  

 
 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan (the “Regional 
Plan”) was adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of Flagstaff (the “City Council”) on 
November 13, 2001 and ratified by the qualified electors of the City of Flagstaff (the “City”) on 
May 21, 2002; and 
 
WHEREAS, among other things, the Regional Plan establishes the authority and procedures for 
major amendments; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Little America Hotels and Resorts, Inc. (the “Applicant”) desires to amend the 
Regional Plan to change the designations on Map 3, Regional Land Use Plan and Map 4, City 
Land Use Plan, of approximately 495 acres of real property generally located south of East 
Butler Avenue and east of Interstate Forty (the “Property”); and   
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes § 9-461.06(H) a major amendment to the 
Regional Plan shall be approved by an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the City Council, 
and must be presented at a single public hearing during the calendar year in which the 
proposed amendment is made; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes § 9-461.06(C)(2) the City has consulted with, 
advised and provided an opportunity for official comment by public officials and agencies, 
Coconino County, Flagstaff Unified School District, associations of governments, public land 
management agencies and other appropriate government jurisdictions, public utility companies, 
civic, educational, professional and other organizations, property owners and citizens; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Community Development Division, as the designated planning agency for the 
City, has provided a copy of the proposed amendment to the Regional Plan for review and 
further comment to the Planning and Zoning Commission of Flagstaff; the Flagstaff City Council; 
the planning agency for Coconino County; Coconino County; the regional planning agency 
within which the City of Flagstaff is located; the Arizona Department of Commerce; the Arizona 
Department of Water Resources; and, any other persons or entities that requested, in writing, a 
copy of the proposed amendment; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Flagstaff Planning and Zoning Commission held two public hearings on the 
proposed Amendment to the Regional Plan at different locations within the City and provided 
notice of said hearings by publication in the Arizona Daily Sun not less than fifteen nor more that 
thirty calendar days prior to the hearings; and 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-32  PAGE 2
   
  
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on the proposed amendment to the Regional 
Plan and notice of such hearing was published in the Arizona Daily Sun not less than fifteen nor 
more that thirty calendar days prior to the hearing;  
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the City Council hereby amends the Regional Plan to change Map 3, 
Regional Land Use Plan and Map 4, City Land Use Plan, by changing various land use 
designations in the area generally located south of East Butler Avenue and east of Interstate 
Forty to the corresponding land use designations set forth in the map attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A.” 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Council finds that notice has been given in the manner required by 
Arizona Revised Statutes § 9-461.06 et seq. and that each of the required publications have 
been made in the Arizona Daily Sun, a newspaper of general circulation within the City of 
Flagstaff.  
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council and approved by the Mayor of the City of 
Flagstaff this    day of      , 2013. 
 
 
 
               
        MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-32  PAGE 3
   
  
EXHIBIT A: Proposed Land Use Designations for the Little America Hotels and Resorts 
Inc. Major Regional Plan Amendment Application, December 3, 2013 
 

 

Golf Course 

Not to Scale 

Commercial Regional/ 
Community 

Golf Course 

Medium Density 
Residential (6 - 12 du/ac) 

Low Density 
Residential (1 - 5 du/ac) 

High Density 
Residential (>12 du/ac) 

Urban Open Space 



 
 

CITY COUNCIL REPORT 
 
DATE:  November 25, 2013 
 
TO:  Vice Mayor Evans 
 
FROM: Erin M. Young, R.G., Water Resources Manager 
     
CC: Roger Eastman, AICP, Comprehensive Planning and Code Administrator 
 Bradley M. Hill, R.G., Utilities Director  

Ryan Roberts, P.E., Utilities Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Reclaimed Water Fees 
 
 
This CCR is in response to a request by Vice Mayor Evans at the November 19, 2013 
Council Meeting regarding the discussion on the Major Regional Plan Amendment for 
Little America.  Questions were raised regarding impact and capacity fees and reclaimed 
contracts.  
 
How are improvements to the reclaimed system paid for? 
The reclaimed water commodity rate will increase over time to cover the needs of 
operational costs and capital improvements.  Utilities will determine through a rate case 
study how to include capital improvements into future rates.  Council will then decide to 
adopt rates and fund these capital projects.  An RFP from financial firms is currently 
advertised and due to staff on December 10.   
 
There is also an option for any developer to secure a volume of reclaimed water (volume 
available is determined by Utilities staff) by entering into a Development Agreement in 
which that customer would pay for the improvement made to the system.  If the 
developer wishes to proceed on a more aggressive project schedule, they will be 
responsible for paying the needed capital improvements to the Reclaimed Water system.   
 
How many pending reclaimed customers are there? 
The Utilities Director has not granted any new reclaimed agreements since December of 
2012.  Utilities currently have 7 customers in the cue for reclaimed water when available.   
 
Explain why Utilities cannot currently meet all peak summer demands and cannot 
take on the new customers? 
Utilities cannot meet peak summer demands for two reasons: First, Utilities has over-
allocated what the system can deliver during peak demand week in the summer.  This 
occurred since all prior reclaimed agreements never specified a maximum monthly or 
annual volume.  Utilities has addressed this by creating an accounting of each 
customer’s reclaimed water use.  Any new or renewed agreements now include a 
maximum monthly and annual total delivery to ensure we do not over allocate in the 
future. Second, there are a few Reclaimed Water distribution system deficiencies 
(bottlenecks) that need to be improved in order to increase the reclaimed water available 
capacity.  Utilities should be able to meet all current agreements (during the peak 
summer weeks) once those improvements are made.  At that point, Utilities will 



                                                                                                                 Page 2 

determine the volume available to commit to future customers.  Commitments to new 
reclaimed water customers are made on a first come first served basis. 
 
What are the reclaimed fees? 
Attached are our reclaimed fees for new customers. 
 
 
 
[one attached PDF file] 
 
RECOMMENDATION / CONCLUSION 
 
This report is for information only. 
  
 



3/4" 340$        N/A 24$                30.74$         
1" 520$        N/A 24$                45.95$         
1 1/2" 920$        N/A 24$                79.73$         
2" 1,070$     N/A 24$                92.40$         
3" 3,130$     N/A 24$                266.39$       
4" 4,130$     N/A 24$                350.85$       
6" 6,130$     N/A 24$                519.77$       
8" 13,737$   N/A 24$                1,162.25$    
10" Call N/A 24$                Call

Water Service Line Connection to Main 3" to 12" 310$                          26.18$            336.18$        

14,923.25$                                 
Call

Total Fees

Contractor excavates to water main - trenching, pavement cuts and patch not included in above cost. Call Customer Service for 
More Information 928-213-2231

DRAFT - CITY OF FLAGSTAFF RECLAIMED FEES
Effective January 1, 2014 except as otherwise noted  (**Subject to Change**)

RECLAIMED WATER FEES
Commercial & Residential

Meter Size Meter Fee Recalimed Water 
Capacity Fee Service Fee Taxes

394.74$                                      
589.95$                                      

1,023.73$                                   
1,186.40$                                   
3,420.39$                                   
4,504.85$                                   
6,673.77$                                   

CONNECTION FEES TO RECLAIMED SYSTEM
WATER FEES Tap Size Tap Fees Taxes Total Fees To determine actual service 

line connection cost of 
reclaimed water taps, please 
contact Customer Service at 

213-2231.


	Agenda
	Item04_A  Minutes
	ATT.10.24.2013.CCJWS.Minutes
	ATT.11.05.2013.CCRM.Minutes
	MINUTES
	REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

	ATT.11.12.2013.CCSMWS.Minutes
	ATT.11.18.2013.CCJWS.Minutes
	ATT.11.19.2013.CCRM.Minutes
	MINUTES
	REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
	A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA APPROVING A PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF AND THE GRAND CANYON TRUST


	Item07_A  Airport Commission Appointments
	ATT.Airport Commission Roster
	ATT.Airport Commission Authority
	ATT.Airport Commission Applicant Roster
	ATT.Airport Commission Applications
	Item07_B  Water Commission Appointments
	ATT.Water Commission Roster
	ATT.Water Commission Authority
	ATT.Water Commission Applicant Roster
	ATT.Water Commission Applications
	Item07_C  Planning & Zoning Commission Appointments
	ATT.PandZ Roster
	ATT.PandZ Authority
	ATT.PandZ Applicant Roster
	ATT.PandZ Applications
	Item07_D  Sustainability Commission Appointments
	ATT.Sustainability Roster
	ATT.Sustainability Authority
	ATT.Sustainability Applicant Roster
	ATT.Sustainability Applications
	Item08_A  Liquor License Application for Sucheewa Buschmann, _Ewa's Thai Cuisine_, Series 12
	ATT.Ewa's - Letter to Applicant
	ATT.Hearing Procedures
	ATT.Series 12 Description
	ATT.Ewa's - PD Memo
	ATT.Ewa's - Code Memo
	ATT.Ewa's - Tax Memo
	Item08_B  Liquor License Application for Cecily Clift-Maniaci, _The Toasted Owl Cafe_, Series 12
	ATT.Toasted Owl - Letter to Applicant
	ATT.Hearing Procedures
	ATT.Series 12 Description
	ATT.Toasted Owl - PD Memo
	ATT.Toasted Owl - Code Memo
	ATT.Toasted Owl - Tax Memo
	Item09_A  Third Amendment to Transit Service Intergovernmental Agreement
	ATT.Vicinity Map
	ATT.3rd Amendment IGA
	Item09_B  Award of Professional Services contract to Kimley Horn & Associates for $110,000 for regional transportation plan technical preparation
	ATT.Scoring tabulation
	ATT.Agreement
	AGREEMENT
	EXHIBIT A
	SKM423MGMTS13110815150

	Item09_C  Approval of Engineering Design Professional Services Contract for the Rio de Flags Flood Control Project Design Concept Report
	ATT.Vicinity Map
	ATT.Service Agreement
	ATT.Fee Schedule
	Item10_A  Wildcat Hill WWTP Temporary Digested Solids Dewatering System Project
	ATT.Bid Results - Wildcat Temp Solids Dewatering Project 10-14-2013
	ATT.Construction Contract
	Item10_B  Citizen Bundled Drainage Improvement Projects _1 and _2
	ATT.Bundled Drainage 1 Contract
	ATT.Bundled _1
	01 COVER.pdf
	02-05.13.01 COVER

	ATT.Bundled Drainage 2 Contract
	ATT.Bundled _2
	Sheet 01.pdf
	Sheet 02
	Sheet 03
	Sheet 04
	Sheet 05
	Sheet 06
	Sheet 07
	Sheet 08
	Sheet 09

	Item14_A  Trailside Apartments - Minor Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan Amendment
	ATT.Res. 2013-30
	ATT.Public Hearing Notices
	ATT.Draft PZC Minutes (10_23_2013)
	ATT.PZC Staff Report
	ATT.PZC Staff Report Attachments (1 of 2)
	ATT.PZC Staff Report Attachments (2 of 2)
	Item14_B  Trailside Apartments - Zoning Map Amendment
	ATT.Ord. 2013-24
	ATT.Public Hearing Notices
	ATT.Draft PZC Minutes (10_23_2013)
	ATT.PZC Staff Report
	ATT.Exhibits 1 of 2
	ATT.Exhibits 2 of 2
	Item14_C_aitem_952
	Item15_A  Consideration of a Major Amendment to the Flagstaff Regional Plan - Little America Resorts and Hotels, Inc.
	ATT.Resolution No. 2013-32
	ATT.Response to Utility Fees Questions
	CCR_VM Evans_Reclaimed_Fees_Customers_11_21_2013
	11_21_13 Reclaimed Water Fee Summary Sheet


